¢

AKCINE BENDROVE ,,LIETUVOS DUJOS*
JOINT STOCK COMPANY LIETUVOS DUJOS

Aguony g, 24, LT-03212 Vilnius, Lithuania
Tel. +370 5 236 0210 Fax+3705 236 0200 E-mail Id@lietuvosdujos.lt Home page http://www.dujos.It

CONFIRMATION OF RESPONSIBLE PERSONS
A6 March 2013 No 7- 3-452/

Following Art. 21 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and the Rules for the
Drawing up and the Submission of Periodic and Additional Information approved by the
Securities Commission of the Republic of Lithuania, we, Viktoras Valentukevicius, General
Manager and Giedré Glinskiené, Deputy General Manager-Chief Financial Officer of
AB Lietuvos Dujos, hereby confirm that to the best of our knowledge, the attached AB Lietuvos
Dujos Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for the Year Ended
31 December 2012 Prepared According to International Financial Reporting Standards as
Adopted by the European Union Presented together with Independent Auditor’s Report, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, profit or loss and cash flows of
AB Lietuvos Dujos and the Group; and the Consolidated Annual Report presents a true and fair
review of the business development and business activities, AB Lietuvos Dujos Consolidated
and Parent Company’s status including the description of the key risks and uncertainties.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AB Lietuvos Dujos, a public limited liability company registered in
the Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter the Company), and the consolidated financial statements of AB Lietuvos Dujos and its
subsidiary and joint venture (hereinafter the Group), which comprise the statements of financial position as of 31 December
2012, the statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes (comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other expianatory information).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing as set forth by the International Federation of Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financia! statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the Group's and the Company’s accounting policy (Note 2) property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The Group and the Company estimates the recoverable value of property,
plant and equipment whenever there is an indication that the property, plant and equipment may be impaired. As described
in Note 1 to the financial statements, recent developments in respect of the transmission activities unbundling, in our
opinion, indicate the need for impairment testing on separate activities level, however it was not performed by the Group's
and the Company's management due to high level of uncertainties involved (Note 2.19). Therefore, we were not able to
assess reliably the effect of the above mentioned matter on the Group's and the Company’s non-current tangible assets
related to transmission activities (the book value of which amounted to LTL 1,567,000 thousand as of 31 December 2012)
as well as on the Group's and the Company’s financial results for the year 2012.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matter described in section Basis for Qualified Opinion above,

the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and the
Company as of 31 December 2012, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Glohal
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, we have read the consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012 and have not noted any
material inconsistencies between the financial information included in it and the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012,

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company's license No. 001335

ﬁ L -
Jonas Akelis

Auditor's license No. 000003

/
The audit was completed on 6 March 2013,

A membed Hom ol Ernnl & Young Global



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position

Notes
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 4
Property, plant and equipment
Land
Buildings and structures
Buildings
Transmission networks and related installations
Distribution networks and related installations
Other buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Other equipment, tools and devices
Other property, plant and equipment
Construction in progress
Non-current financial assets
Investment into subsidiary 6
Investment into joint venture 7
Non-current accounts receivable 8

[8;]

Current assets

Inventories and prepayments

Inventories 9
Raw materials, spare parts and other inventories
Goods for resale (including natural gas)

Prepayments

Accounts receivable 10
Trade receivables

Other receivables 15
Prepaid income tax

Other current assets 11
Cash and cash equivalents 12

Total assets

APPROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

Group
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2012 2011

2,358,438 2,318,573
2,624 3,390
2,354,535 2,315,167
388 223
1,988,018 1,985,438
85,998 88,411
1,202,474 1,201,402
676,000 671,304
23,546 24,321
250,785 254,843
15,437 15,605
29,129 29,546
3,489 3,659
67,289 25,853
1,279 16

1,270
9 16
569,745 380,058
80,653 78,792
80,108 78,516
6,998 7,182
73,110 71,334
545 276
204,530 173,393
191,352 168,847
13,178 4,546

6,682
165,423 31,989
112,457 95,884
2,928,183 2,698,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

on.......... April2013
Company
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2012 2011
2,364,314 2,320,412
2,623 3,382
2,351,181 2,307,833
388 223
1,984,871 1,978,499
82,851 81,472
1,202,474 1,201,402
676,000 671,304
23,546 24,321
250,785 254,843
15,376 15,528
29,024 29,294
3,489 3,659
67,248 25,787
10.510 9,197
9,181 9,181
1,320
9 16
564,249 377,725
80,651 78,765
80,108 78,504
6,998 7,181
73,110 71,323
543 261
204,499 173,391
191,352 168,848
13,147 4,543
6,682
160,000 30,000
112,417 95,569
2,928,563 2,698,137

(cont’d on the next page)



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand uniess otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position (cont’d)

I.1.
1.2.
3.
1.4,
I1.5.
1.6

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Legal reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

. Non-current borrowings

Grants (deferred revenue)

Non-current employee benefits

Deferred income tax liability

Current liabilities

Current portion of non-current borrowings
Trade payables

Advances received

Income tax payable

Payroll related liabilities

Other payables and current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

13

14
15
16
21

14
17

18

APPROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

Group
As at 31 As at 31
December December

2012 2011
2,057,846 2,055,340
469,068 469,068
1,513,844 1,491,640
43,884 39,100
1,469,960 1,452,540
74,934 94,632
870,337 643,291
567 057 359 435
180,000 2,144
230,805 191,053
9,097 9,097
147,155 157,141
303 280 283 856
2,144 2,144
238,947 215,569
9,739 9,445
2,413
11,056 10,403
41,394 43,882
2,928,183 2,698,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager

Chief Accountant

Zydrinas Augutis

Viktoras Valentukevicius

on..... .. April2013
Company
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2012 2011

2,058,261 2,054,297
469,068 469,068
1,513,229 1,489,543
43,692 38,908
1,469,537 1,450,635
75,964 95,686
870,302 643,840
567,036 360,035
180,000 2,144
230,805 191,053
9,097 9,097
147,134 157,741
303.266 283,805
2,144 2,144
238,943 215,562
9,738 9,445
2,413
11,052 10,372
41,389 43,869
2,928,563 2,698,137

6 March 2013

6 March 2013



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Income statements

Group

Notes 2012
I Revenue 1,879,178
1. Sales 3 1,872,714
1.2, Other income 19 6,464
. Expenses (1,810,021)
I.1.  Cost of natural gas (1,517,813)
2.  Depreciation and amortisation 4,5 (114,331)
I.3.  Payroll and related social security
tax expenses (99,527)
I.4.  Repair and technical maintenance
expenses (47,908)
IL5.  Taxes, other than income tax (10,576)
I.6.  Other expenses (19,868)
il Profit from operations 69,157
Iv. Financial activity 20 1,543
V.1. Income 2,208
IV.2. Expense (665)
V. Profit before tax 70,700
VI.  Income tax 21 3,806
VL1, Current period income tax (6,180)
VI.2. Deferred income tax 9,986
VII. Net profit 74,506
Basic and diluted earnings per
share (LTL) 22 0.16

2011

1,845,869
1,840,012
5,857
(1.723,733)
(1,435,881)
(111,803)

(98,093)

(47,277)
(11,110)
(19,569)
122,136
(17,863)
2,467
(20.330)
104,273
(8,511)
(16,332)
7,821
95,762

0.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager

Chief Accountant

Viktoras Valentukevicius

Zydriinas Augutis

APPROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

on... . .. April2013
Company
2012 2011
1,878,891 1,844,906
1,872,432 1,839,064
6,459 5,842
(1,808,882) (1,722,576)
(1,517,813) (1,435,881)
(114,144) (111,535)
(99,150) (97,641)
(47,904) (47,274)
(10,525) (11,039)
(19,346) (19,2086)
70,009 122,330
1,528 (17,913)
2,143 2,417
(615) (20,330)
71,537 104,417
4,427 (8,731)
(6,180) (16,332)
10,607 7,601
75,964 95,686

6 March 2013

6 March 2013



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of comprehensive income

I. Net profit 75,964 95,686

Il. Total comprehensive income 75,964 95,686

The accompanying notes are an integral part
Viktoras Valentukevitius

Zvdranas Auqutis



APPROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lictuvos Dujos

on...... . April2013
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statements of changes in equity
Other Retained
Group Notes Share reserve reserves Total
Balance as of 1 January 2011 469,068 31,114 1,421,016 158,380 2,079,578
Transfer to legal reserve 7,986 (7,986)
Transfer to other reserves 31,729 (31,729)
Transfer from other reserves to
cover the losses of subsidiary (205) 205
Dividends declared 23 (120,000) (120,000)
Total comprehensive income 762 762
Net profit for the year 762 762
Balance as at 31 December
2011 469,068 39,100 1,452,540 94,632 2,055,340
Transfer to legal reserve 4,784 (4,784)
Transfer to other reserves 18,902 (18,902)
Transfer from other reserves to
cover the losses of subsidiary (1,482) 1,482
Dividends declared 23 (72,000) (72,000)
Total comprehensive income 74,506 74,506
Net profit for the year 506
Balance as at 31 December
2012 469,068 43,884 1,469,960 74,934 2,057,846
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
General Manager Viktoras Valentukevigius 6 March 2013
/

Chief Accountant

Zydrinas Augutis

6 March 2013



APPROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

on.......... April2013
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statements of changes in equity (cont’d)
Other Retained
Company Notes Share capital Legal reserve  reserves earnings Total
Balance as of 1 January 2011 469,068 30,922 1,418,906 159,715 2,078,611
Transfer to legal reserve 7,986 (7,986)
Transfer to other reserves 31,729 (31,729)
Dividends declared 23 (120,000) (120,000)
Total comprehensive income 686
Net profit for the year 686 686
Balance as at 31 December
2011 469,068 38,908 1,450,635 95,686 2,054,297
Transfer to legal reserve 4,784 - (4,784) -
Transfer to other reserves - 18,902 (18,902) -
Dividends declared 23 - - (72,000) (72,000)
Total comprehensive income - - 75,964 75,964
Net profit for the year 75,964 75,964
Balance as at 31 December
2012 469,068 43,692 1,469,537 75,964 2,058,261
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
General Manager Viktoras Valentukevicius 6 March 2013
Chief Accountant Zydrinas Augutis 6 March 2013



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

APPROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows

Notes
I. Cash flows from (to) operating activities
I.1. Net profit

Adjustments of non-cash items and other
corrections:
I.2. Depreciation and amortisation 45

I.3. Loss (gain) on property, plant and equipment,
doubtful trade accounts receivable and inventories
write-off and disposal

I.4.  Impairment losses for property, plant and
equipment, financial assets, allowance for doubtful
trade accounts receivable and inventories

I.5. Income tax expenses (benefit)

I.6. Interest (income)

I.7. Interest expenses

I.8. Loss on foreign currency exchange

1.9. (Amortisation) of the grants (deferred revenue)

1.10. Elimination of other investing activity results 20
I.11. Elimination of other non-cash items

Changes in working capital:

1.12. (Increase) in inventories 9

1 13. Decrease (increase) in trade accounts receivable

I.14. Decrease (increase) in other accounts receivable 24
and prepayments

1.15. Increase in trade accounts payable 24

1.16. Increase in other accounts payable and other
current liabilities
1.17. Income tax (paid)

Total changes in working capital
Net cash flows from operating activities

Il. Cash flows from (to) investing activities
1.1, (Acquisition) of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets 45,24
I.2. Proceeds from sales of property, plant and 5
equipment
I1.3.  Acquisition of investment in joint venture 7

Il.4. Sale of investment units held for sale
I1.5. Receipt of non-current receivables and loans

granted
I.L6. (Increase) in term deposits 11
1.7, Interest received
118 (Acquisition) of other short-term investments 11

Net cash flows (to) investing activities

Group
2012 2011
74,506 95,762
114,331 111,803
175 (116)
534 717
(3,8086) 8,511
(1,246) (1,310)
614 320
1 2
(5,665) (4,654)
50 19,199
©) (1,094)
179,485 229,940
(1,561) (31,176)
(23,169) 364
(317) 472
10,526 14,103
3,967 7,254
(13,598) (7.362)
(24,152) (16,345)
155,333 213,595
(142,499) (66,873)
3,871 673
(1,320)
307
7 7
(105,697) (259)
1,420 965
(27,736) (50,002)
(271,954) (115,182)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10

on .... April 2013
Company
2012 2011
75,964 95,686
114,144 111,535
(127) (116)
533 716
(4,427) 8,731
(1,181) (1,261)
614 320
1 2
(5,665) (4,654)
20,000
(9 (1,004)
179,847 229,865
(1,572) (31,177)
(23,167) 361
(301) 459
10,529 14,125
4,001 7,258
(13,598) (7,362)
(24,108) (16,336)
155,739 213,529
(142,491) (66,858)
364 659
(1,320)
7 7
(102,264)
1,355 916
(27.736) (50,002)

(272,085)  (115,278)

(cont'd on the next page)



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

APPROVED

by the General Meeting of Sharcholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows (cont’d)

lll. Cash flows from (to) financing activities
lll.1. Dividends (paid)
Ill.2. Loans received
II1.3. Loans (repaid)
Ill.4. Grants received
lIl.5. Interest (paid)
Net cash flows from (to) financing activities

IV. Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year

VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year

Notes

14
14

15, 24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

General Manager Viktoras Valentukevi€ius

Chief Accountant Zydriinas Augutis

11

Group
2012 2011

(72,093) (119,875)
180,000
2,144)  (2,144)
28,069 5,297
(638) (343)
133,194  (117,065)

16,573 (18,652)

95,884 114,536
112,457 95,884

ents.

on ... April 2013
Company
2012 2011

(72,093)  (119,875)
180,000

(2,144) (2,144)
28,069 5,297
(638) (343)

133,194 (117,065)

16,848 (18,814)

95,569 114,383

112,417 95,569

6 March 2013

6 March 2013



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements

General information

AB Lietuvos Dujos (hereinafter the Company) is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of Lithuania.
The address of its registered office is as follows:

Aguony Str. 24,

LT - 03212, Vilnius,

Lithuania.

The Company is engaged in transmission, distribution and supply of natural gas. The Company was registered on
23 November 1990. The Company'’s shares are traded on the NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange on the Main trade
list.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the shareholders of the Company were as follows:

Percentage of

Number of shares held ownership (%)
E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH 182,634,384 38.9
OAOQO Gazprom 173,847,696 37.1
Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania 83,030,367 17.7
Other shareholders 29,655,807 6.3
469,068,254 100.0

All the shares of the Company are ordinary registered shares with a par value of LTL 1 each and were fully paid as at
31 December 2012 and 2011. The Company did not hold its own shares

The Company consists of the centre of administration and gas transmission and 5 branches.
As at 31 December 2012 the Group comprised AB Lietuvos Dujos, its subsidiary UAB Palangos Perlas and UAB GET

Baltic, a jointly controlled entity established with Finish gas company Gasum Oy (hereinafter the Group). The information
of UAB Palangos Perlas and UAB GET Baltic as at 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Share of
current year
(loss)
Address of Part of shares directly
registered controlled by Share attributable
Company office the Group (%) capital to the Group  Equity Main activity
UAB Palangos Birutes Str. 8, 100 9,704 (1,409) 8,910 Accommodation and
Perlas Klaipeda restaurant facilities
UAB GET Aguony Str. 24, 66 2,000 (50) 1,924 Licensed natural gas
Baltic Vilnius market operator —

arranges trading on the
Natural Gas Exchange

As at 31 December 2011 the Group comprised AB Lietuvos Dujos and its subsidiary UAB Palangos Perlas.
The information of UAB Palangos Perlas as at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Address of Part of shares

registered controlled by Share Current year
Company office the Group (%) capital ({loss) Eauity Main activity
UAB Palangos Gintaro Str. 36, 100 9,704 (159) 10,319 Accommodation and
Perlas Palanga restaurant facilities

The average number of employees of the Group and the Company in 2012 was 1,700 and 1,685, respectively (1,719 and
1,696 in 2011, respectively).

12



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

General information (cont‘d)

Activities of AB Lietuvos Dujos are regulated by the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania, which currently
requires the unbundling of the accounts among each of the Company’s main activities: transmission, distribution and
supply. The Company keeps accounts based on the requirements of the law. The Company’s activity segments are
transmission, distribution, supply and other activity (Note 3)

The Company’s activities of transmission, distribution and supply of natural gas are subject to licensing. Licences are
granted and licensed activities observed by the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter —
NCCPE). The Company has licences for transmission, distribution and supply of natural gas.

The prices for transmission and distribution of natural gas are regulated The price caps are set by the NCCPE. Untill the
new law came into effect starting from 1 August 2011, the supply prices of natural gas were regulated, too. After this date
they became unregulated.

The management of the Company approved these financial statements on 6 March 2013. The shareholders of
the Company have a statutory right to either approve these financial statements or not approve them and require a new
set of financial statements to be prepared.

Unbundling of the Company's activities

In order to fulfil the Law on Natural Gas and the Law on the Implementation of the Law on Natural Gas transferring the
provisions of the Third Energy Package, in 2011 the Government of the Republic of Lithuania adopted the respective
resolutions that provide for the Company’s actions to be taken with regards to the transformation of the business
undertaking: on 28 October 2011 Resolution No. 1239 Concerning the Approval of the Plan for the Execution of
Unbundling Activities and Control of Natural Gas Companies That Do Not Comply with the Requirements of the Law on
Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania and on 7 December 2011 Resolution No. 1417 Concerning the Approval of the
Procedure for the Execution of Unbundling Activities and Control of Natural Gas Companies That Do Not Comply with
the Requirements of the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania.

In order to fulfil the requirements of these legal acts, until 31 October 2014 the Company must perform the unbundling of
transmission activity and control, perform the legal, functional and organisational unbundling of the natural gas
distribution activity in compliance with the requirements of section eight of the Law on Natural Gas.

Pursuant to the above legal acts, on 28 May 2012 the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos decided
the following:

1. To perform the unbundling of transmission activity of AB Lietuvos Dujos according to the methods provided for in
Article 4 of the Law on the Implementation of the Law Amending the Law on Natural Gas and Paragraph 8 of the plan
approved by the Resolution No. 1239 of 28 October 2011 Concerning the Approval of the Plan for the Execution of
Unbundling Activities and Control of Natural Gas Companies That Do Not Comply with the Requirements of the Law on
Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania by separating a part (i.e. the Company’s gas transmission activity) from the
Company that continues operations in accordance with the terms provided for in the legal acts and by establishing a new
company as provided for in Article 71 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania on the basis of the assets,
rights and obligations attributed to the Company’s natural gas transmission activity.

2. To perform unbundling of AB Lietuvos Dujos distribution activity by establishing a subsidiary of the Company and
transferring the Company's natural gas distribution activity (asset complex) to it together with the assets, rights and
obligations attributable thereto as non-monetary contribution for the subsidiary's shares in accordance with the terms set
forth by legal acts.

On 28 May 2012 the Board of AB Lietuvos Dujos approved the description of the methods for unbundling activity and
control of the Company’s gas transmission activity and the unbundling of the distribution activity with the unbundling
action plans (hereinafter, the Description). The Company’s Board members V. Golubev and K. Seleznev voted in favour
of the approval of the Description with a reservation. It is provided for in the Description that until 31 July 2013 the
Company's natural gas transmission activities will be unbundled in legal, functional and organisational respect by
establishing a new transmission system operator company and that until 31 October 2014 the transmission activity
control unbundling will be performed and the Company’s natural gas distribution will be unbundled in the legal, functional
and organisational respect by establishing a distribution system operator subsidiary. In accordance with the requirements
of the legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania, the Company submitted the Description to the NCCPE at the established
terms, i.e. on 31 May 2012.

By the Resolution No 03-145 of 15 June 2012 Concerning the Action Plans for the Unbundling of AB Lietuvos Dujos

Transmission and Distribution Activities and Controls NCCPE instructed the Company to perform the unbundling of
activities and controls following the methods and terms specified in the Company's action plans provided.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

General information (cont‘d)

In accordance with the decision of 28 May 2012 of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company and NCCPE
decision of 15 June 2012 and following Article 71 of the Law on Companies, the Board of the Company prepared and on
30 January 2013 approved AB Lietuvos Dujos unbundling terms (hereinafter, the Unbundling Terms). The Company’s
Board members V. Golubev and K. Seleznev voted in favour of the approval of the Unbundling Terms with a reservation.
On 30 January 2013 the Unbundling Terms were submitted to NCCPE for approval as required by the Law on the
Implementation of the Law Amending the Law on Natural Gas and subordinate legal acts. On 28 February 2013 the
NCCPE by Resolution No 03-64 Concerning AB Lietuvos Dujos Unbundling Terms and Composition of the Assets to be
Transferred to the Transmission System Operator stated that the Company’s Unbundling Terms provides conditions for
the proper implementation of the unbundling of the natural gas transmission activity.

Seeking to implement the requirements of the legal acts and perform the unbundling of the transmission activity, the
respective decision regarding unbundling of the part of the Company's activities has to be adopted by the General
Meeting of Shareholders’ of the Company. The unbundling of the transmission activity will be performed substantially in
line with the data of transmission segment. The implementation of the provisions of these laws will have a substantial
effect on the activities of the Company and the Group, because after the implementation of transmission activity
unbundling the volume of operational activities of the Company’'s/Group as well as assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses captions will change significantly.

Accounting principles

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements for the year
2012 are as follows:

2.1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as adopted by the European Union (hereinafter the EU).

interpretations

During the year the Group and the Company has adopted the following IFRS amendments:

e amendment to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements,

e amendment to IAS 12 Income tax - Deferred tax - Recovery of Underlying Assets.
The amendments did not impact the financial statements of the Group and the Company, because the Group and the
Company did not have items or transactions addressed by these changes.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group and the Company has not applied the following IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that have been issued as of
the date of authorisation of these financial statements for issue, but which are not yet effective:

Amendment to 1AS 1 Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income
(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2012)

The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCl Items that could be reclassified (or
‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented
separately from items that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation of the items in GCI only and
has no impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial position or performance.

Amendment to IAS 18 Employee Benefits (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

There are numerous amendments to IAS 19, they range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor
mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording. The Group and
the Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this amendment.

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2014)

As a result of the new standards IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 this standard was amended to contain accounting and
disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate
financial statements IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements requires an entity preparing separate financial statements to
account for those investments at cost or in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Since the requirements for
separate financial statements will not change, the amendment will have no impact to the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Accounting principles (cont'd)
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)

Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2014)

As a result of the new standards IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 this standard was renamed and addresses the
application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. Since the requirements for
application of equity method will not change and the Group already accounts for its investment into joint venture using
equity method, the amendment will have no impact to the Group’s and the Company's financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

This amendment clarifies the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’ and also clarifies the
application of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendment will have no impact to the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements as they have neither clearing systems nor they offset Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities.

Amendment to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

The amendment introduces common disclosure requirements. These disclosures would provide users with information
that is useful in evaluating the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The
amendments to IFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied. The Group and the Company is in the process of assessing
the impact of this amendment

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2015, once endorsed by the
EU)

IFRS 9 will eventually replace IAS 39 The IASB has issued the first two parts of the standard, establishing a new
classification and measurement framework for financial assets and requirements on the accounting for financial
liabilities The Group and the Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this standard.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities, including special purpose entities. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are
controlled and, therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent. Examples of areas of significant judgment
include evaluating de facto control, potential voting rights or whether a decision maker is acting as a principal or agent.
IFRS 10 replaces the part of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements related to consolidated financial
statements and replaces SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities The Group and the Company is in the
process of assessing the impact of this standard.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 11 eliminates proportionate consolidation of jointly controlled entities. Under IFRS 11, jointly controlled entities, if
classified as joint ventures (a newly defined term), must be accounted for using the equity method. Additionally, jointly
controlled assets and operations are joint operations under IFRS 11, and the accounting for those arrangements will
generally be consistent with today’s accounting. That is, the entity will continue to recognize its relative share of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. The Group and the Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this
standard

IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 12 combines the disclosure requirements for an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, investments in
associates and structured entities into one comprehensive disclosure standard. A number of new disclosures also will be
required such as disclosing the judgments made to determine control aver another entity. The Group and the Company
is in the process of assessing the impact of this standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Investment Entities (effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2014, once endorsed by the EU}

The amendments apply to entities that qualify as investment entities. The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements of IFRS 10 by requiring investment entities to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss, rather than consolidate them. The implementation of this amendment will not have any impact on the
financial statements of the Group, as the parent of the Group is not an investment entity.
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2 Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

The main reason of issuance of IFRS 13 is to reduce complexity and improve consistency in application when measuring
fair value. It does not change when an entity is required to use fair value but, rather, provides guidance on how to
measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted by IFRS. The Group and the Company is in the
process of assessing the impact of this standard.

Improvements to IFRSs (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013, once endorsed by the EU)

in May 2012 [ASB issued omnibus of necessary, but non-urgent amendments to its five standards;
» IFRS 1 First-time adoption of IFRS,
s |IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
¢ |AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,
¢ |AS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation;
¢ |AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The adoption of these amendments may result in changes to accounting policies but will not have any impact on the
financial position or results of the Group and the Company.

IFRIC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine (effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

This interpretation applies to stripping costs incurred in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine
(‘'production stripping costs'). Interpretation will have no impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements,
as the Group and the Company is not involved in mining activity.

The Group and the Company plans to adopt the above mentioned standards and interpretations on their effectiveness
date provided they are endorsed by the EU.

2.2. Measurement and presentation currency

The amounts shown in these financial statements are measured and presented in the local currency of the Republic of
Lithuania, Litas (LTL).

Starting from 2 February 2002, Lithuanian Litas is pegged to EUR at the rate of 3.4528 LTL for 1 EUR, and the exchange
rates in relation to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

2.3. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include AB Lietuvos Dujos and its subsidiary UAB Palangos Perlas.
The control is normally evidenced when the Group owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50 percent of the voting
rights of a company's share capital and/or is able to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to
benefit from its activities.

The acquisition method of accounting is used for acquired businesses. The Company accounts for the acquired
identifiable assets and liabilities of another company at their fair value at acquisition date. Difference between the
acquisition cost and the fair value of the net assets at the date of acquisition is considered to be goodwill (negative
goodwill). The goodwill is presented in the financial statements at cost, less impairment losses. Negative goodwill is
recognised as income in the income statement for the reporting period. In the consolidated financial statements goodwill
related to the consolidated subsidiaries is presented under intangible assets caption.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to those Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquirer are assigned to those units.

Companies acquired or sold during a year are included into the consolidated financial statements from the date of
acquisition or until the date of sale. Inter-company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits and losses, are
eliminated on consolidation.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of the same accounting principles applied to similar

transactions and other events under similar circumstances. In separate financial statements of the Company investments
into subsidiaries are accounted for applying the cost method

16



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.4. Investment in a joint venture

The Group has an interest in a joint venture UAB GET Baltic, which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venturers
have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. The Group
recognises its interest in the joint venture using the equity method. Applying the equity method an interest in a jointly
controlled entity is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group's share
of net assets of the jointly controlled entity. The profit or loss of the Group includes the Group's share of the profit or loss
of the jointly controlled entity. The Company’s share of unrealized gain or loss which originate due to transactions
between Group companies is eliminated.

In separate financial statements of the Company investment into joint venture is accounted for at cost, less impairment, if
any. The impairment test of the investment into joint venture is performed when there are indications of impairment or
indications that previously recognised impairment does not exist.

2.5. Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Group and the Company are measured initially at cost. Intangible assets are recognised if it is
probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the Company and the
cost of asset can be measured reliably.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the best estimate of their
useful lives (4 years). The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure they are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of non-current intangible assets. Intangible assets
mainly consist of software and licenses used in main activities of the Group and the Company

The Group and the Company do not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful live

2.6. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria
are met. Likewise, when a major repair is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and

equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised as profit or loss as incurred.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are eliminated from the
accounting, and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 25 - 80 years
Transmission networks and related installations 55 years
Distribution networks and related installations 55 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
Other buildings and structures 15 - 19 years
Vehicles 6 years
Other equipment, tools and devices 4 -9years
Other property, plant and equipment 4 - 9 years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, plant and equipment and other directly
attributable costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed and put into
operation.

The Group and the Company estimates the value of property, plant and equipment whenever there is an indication that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
whenever estimated.
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Accounting principles (cont'd)
2.7. Financial assets

According to 1AS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” the Group’s and the Company’s financial
assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus (except
for the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The category financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets classified as held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group and the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments that are intended
to be held-to-maturity are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Receivables are initially recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. Current receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Allowance for doubtful receivables is evaluated when the indications leading to the impairment of accounts receivables
are noticed and the carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts
and accounts receivable are derecognised (written-off) when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
which are not classified in any of these three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses (except impairment and gain or losses from foreign currencies
exchange) being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement.
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2 Accounting principles (cont’'d)
2.8. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
- the Group and the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
- the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s and the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.9. Inventories

Inventories of the Group and the Company, consisting of natural gas in pipelines and storage at the year-end and other
inventories, are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of natural gas is determined on the basis of
weighted average cost, and the cost of the remaining inventories is determined on the basis of the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventories that cannot be realised are written off.

2.10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash in banks and cash in transit. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.11. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received, less the costs of transaction. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised in
the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as non-current if the completion of a refinancing agreement before the date of statement of
financial position provides evidence that the substance of the liability at the date of statement of financial position was
long term.

2.12. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Based on the decision of the Group and the
Company specific borrowings do not become general borrowings after the construction/acquisition of the qualifying
assets financed from the specific borrowing is completed and therefore related borrowing costs are not capitalised
further.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.13. Grants (deferred revenue)

Grants received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase, construction or other acquisition of
non-current assets are considered as asset-related grants. Assets received free of charge are also allocated to this
group of grants. The amount of the grants related to assets is recognised as income in the financial statements over the
period of depreciation of the assets associated with this grant and is included under the caption of other income of the
income statement.

Payments received from customers for the connection to the Company’s gas systems are accounted for as deferred
revenue and recognised as income over the expected useful life of the related capitalised assets.

Grants received as a compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting period,
also, all the grants, which are not grants related to assets, are considered as grants related to income. The income-
related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of the expenses incurred during the reporting period or
unearned income to be compensated by that grant.

The balance of unutilised grants is shown under caption of “Grants (deferred revenue)” in the statement of financial
position.

2.14. Non-current employee benefits

Defined benefit plan — post employment benefits

According to the collective agreement, each employee leaving the Company at the retirement age is entitled to a one-
time payment. Employment benefits are recognised in the statement of financial position and reflect the present value of
future payments at the date of the statement of financial position. The above mentioned employment benefit obligation is
calculated based on actuarial assumptions, using the projected unit credit method. Present value of the non-current
obligation to employees is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using the discount rate which reflects
the interest rate of the Government bonds of the same currency and similar maturity as the employment benefits.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the income statement as incurred. Starting from 1 January 2013 after the
amendments to IAS 19 become effective, the actuarial gains and losses will have to be recognised in the statement of
other comprehensive income.

The past service costs are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. Any gains or losses appearing as a result of curtailment and/or settlement are recognised in the income
statement as incurred. Starting from 1 January 2013 after the amendments to IAS 19 become effective, the past service
costs will have to be recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company is paying benefits to its employees for the long work experience in the Company. Non-current obligation
for employment benefit is recognised in the statement of financial position as the present value of defined benefit
obligation at the date of the statement of financial position. Present value of defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting estimated future cash flows using the discount rate which reflects the interest rate of the Government bonds
of the same currency and the similar maturity as the employment benefits. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement as incurred.

2.15. Income tax

The Group companies are taxed individually, irrespective the overall results of the Group. Income tax charge is based on
profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. Income tax is calculated based on the Lithuanian tax legislation.

15 % income tax rate has been established starting from 1 January 2010 for companies operating in Republic of
Lithuania.

Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities
and/or derivative financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the Company changes its activities due to
which these losses were incurred except when the Company does not continue its activities due to reasons which do not
depend on the Company itself. Since 2010 tax losses can be transferred between the group companies if there is
compliance with the Republic of Lithuania Law on corporate income tax requirements. The losses from disposal of
securities and/or derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and only be used to
reduce the taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
215 Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax asset and liability is
measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to reverse based on tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax asset have been recoghised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management believes it
will be realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the deferred tax
asset is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial statements.

On transition to IFRSs, the Group and the Company treated revalued amounts of property, plant and equipment as a
deemed cost. As the tax base of the asset carried at deemed cost on transition to IFRSs remains at original cost (or an
amount based on original cost), the pre-transition revaluation gave rise to a temporary difference associated with the
deferred tax liability has been accounted for. If, after transition, the deferred tax is required to be remeasured (e.g.
because of a change in tax rate, or change in asset carrying value and tax base), the Group and the Company accounts
for this change in the statement of other comprehensive income. Results of remeasurement for deferred tax components
other than plant, property or equipment revalued as a deemed cost, are accounted for in the income statement.

2.16. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group and the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of VAT
and discounts.

Revenues from transmission, distribution and supply for non-household customers are recognised monthly - (except for
the income from non-domestic users consuming more than 1 million m3 of natural gas per year - revenue from these
customers are recognised twice a month), based on meter readings provided by the customers and checked by the
Company (accrual basis). Revenues from household customers are recognised monthly based on the meter readings
declared by the customers and by correcting them based on evaluated discrepancies between the quantities of declared
and consumed gas (accrual basis).

2.17. Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies on the balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement. Such balances are
translated at period-end exchange rates.

2.18. Impairment of assets
Financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each date of the statements of financial position.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Group and the Company will not collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in
the income statement The reversal of impairment losses previously recognised is recorded when the decrease in
impairment loss can be justified by an event occurring after the write-down. Such reversal is recorded in the income
statement in the same caption, where the impairment losses have been recognised. However, the increased carrying
amount is only recognised to the extent it does not exceed the amortised cost that would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Other assets

Other assets of the Group and the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for the asset no
longer exist or have decreased significantly. The reversal is accounted in the same caption of the income statement as
the impairment loss.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.19. Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
management of the Group and the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies. The significant areas of estimation used in the
preparation of these financial statements relate to depreciation (Note 2.6 and Note 5), deferred income tax asset (Note
2.15 and Note 21), non-current employee benefits (Note 2.14 and Note 16), accrued revenue from household customers
(Note 2.16) and impairment evaluation of property, plant and equipment (Note 2.6 and Note 5), investments into
subsidiaries — only the Company (Note 1 and Note 6), accounts receivable (Note 2.7, Note 8 and Note 10), inventories
(Note 2.9 and Note 9), financial assets (Note 2.7, Note 2.18 and Note 11). Future events may occur which may cause the
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimates will be recorded in the
financial statements, when determinable.

If indications for impairment of property, plant and equipment exist, evaluation of the non-current assets’ value based on
the discounted cash flow projections of an integrated Company is performed, while there is no reliable basis to separate
out individual cash generating units. During the shareholders’ meeting dated 28 May 2012, it was decided to execute the
unbundling of the transmission activity of the Company. The Board of the Company prepared the Unbundling terms and
approved them on 30 January 2013. Due to unstable regulatory environment and other uncertainties related to
unfinished unbundling of the Company's activity, the Company did not prepare cash flow at individual cash generating
unit level and prepared cash flows at an integrated Company level. The assumptions used in determination of the
discount rate for the evaluation of the discounted cash flows in principle correspond to the assumptions applied by the
NCCPE for the rate of return in the price regulation The changes in the discount rate and quantity of gas to be sold
mostly affect the recoverable value of the Company’s property, plant and equipment.

The Company performed an impairment test which did not result in any impairment charge. However when it becomes
possible to estimate the value in use at individual cash generating unit level, the value of the property plant and
equipment of the transmission activity could be significantly lower after the unbundling is performed, if no sufficiently
positive regulatory regime improvements are adopted in the future.

2.20. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed in financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits is
probable.

2.21. Subsequent events

Post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group’s and the Company’s position at the date
of the statement of financial position (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

2.22. Offsetting

When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set off, except
in those cases where certain IFRS specifically permit or require such set-off.
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3 Segment information

The Group's and the Company's business activities are organised based on the legal requirements for regulated
activities. The Group and the Company has split operating segments based on the legal requirements. The accounting
principles used for in the segment accounting are the same as for the financial accounting of the Group and the
Company.

The Group and the Company have three main operating segments: natural gas transmission, distribution and supply, as

well as a segment of other activity:

- Transmission of natural gas comprises the transportation of natural gas through the transmission pipelines. The
transmission activity also includes transit of natural gas to the district of Kaliningrad of the Russian Federation;

— Distribution of natural gas comprises the transportation of natural gas through the distribution gas pipelines;

—  Supply of natural gas comprises the natural gas sales to end users;

- Other activity comprises other activity not related to main business.

The Group’s operating segments are not aggregated, except for Supply of natural gas, which consists of supply to
households and non-households. The two segments were aggregated, as they have similar economic and other

characteristics.

The Group's segment information for the years ended 2012 and 2011 is presented below:

2012 Transmission Distribution Supply  Other activity Total
Sales 169,291 174,778 1,526,577 2,068 1,872,714
Interest income 62 22 1,096 66 1,246
Interest expense 614 614
Profit before tax 21,060 11,206 38,212 222 70,700
Income tax (7,898) (1,555) 5,835 12 (3,808)
Total assets 1,655,971 799,075 463,648 9,489 2,928,183
Total liabilities 440,748 196,466 233,023 100 870,337
Other segment information

Acquisition of non-current assets 110,741 45,958 274 8 156,982

Acquisition of investment into joint

venture UAB GET Baltic 640 680 1,320

Depreciation and amortisation 74,302 38,420 1,263 346 114,331
2011 Transmission  Distribution Other Total
Sales 175,530 171,069 1,490,822 2,591 1,840,012
Interest income 1 40 1,218 51 1,31C
Interest expense 320 320
Profit before tax 38,684 21,941 42,667 981 104,273
Income tax (1,985) 723 9,867 (94) 8,511
Total assets 1,603,312 762,586 322,304 10,429 2,698,631
Total liabilities 224,064 180,886 238,804 (473) 643,291
Other segment information

Acquisition of non-current assets 34,580 27,595 128 15 62,318

Depreciation and amortisation 72,365 37,643 1,341 454 111,802

All the assets of the Group and the Company are located in the territory of Lithuania where the Group and the Company
are operating, except for a part of natural gas accounted for in inventories (Note 9).

In 2012 and 2011 the Group and the Company earned over 98 % of its revenue from Lithuanian customers.
In 2012, the revenue of transmission, supply and other activity segments from one customer of the Group constituted
more than 10 % of total Group’s revenue — LTL 217,660 thousand. In 2011, the revenue of transmission and supply

segments from one customer of the Group constituted more than 10 % of total Group’s revenue — LTL 310,409
thousand.
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Intangible assets

Movement of intangible assets for the current and prior periods:

Group

Cost:

Balance as at 1 January 2011
Additions

Retirements

Balance as at 31 December 2011
Additions

Retirements

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 1 January 2011
Charge for the year

Retirements

Balance as at 31 December 2011
Charge for the year

Retirements

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Net book value as at 31 December 2012
Net book value as at 31 December 2011

24

Patents,
licenses

4,931
848
(530)
5,249
433

4,064

2,776

921
(530)
3.167
882

2,490

1,574
2,082

Other
intangible
Software assets
6,297 1,738
256
(1,399) (773)
5154 965
288
4,082 625
4,890 1,433
564 96
(1,399) (773)
4,055 756
506 96
41
3,145 512
937 113
1.099 209

Total

12,966
1,104
(2,702)
11,368
721

8,771

9,099
1,681
(2,702)
7,978
1,484

6,147

2,624
3,390
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Intangible assets (cont’d)

Other

Patents, intangible
Company licenses Software assets Total
Cost:
Balance as at 1 January 2011 4,931 6,264 1,738 12,933
Additions 848 256 1,104
Retirements
Balance as at 31 December 2011 5,249 5,127 965 11,341
Additions 433 288 721
Retirements (1,618) (1,340) (340) (3,298)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 625 8 764
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 1 January 2011 2,776 4,872 1,433 9,081
Charge for the year 921 5857 96 1,574
Retirements (530) (1,393) (773) (2,696)
Balance as at 31 December 2011 167 756 7 959
Charge for the year 882 502 96 1,480
Retirements (1,559) (1,399) (340) (3,298)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 2,490 3,139 512 6,141
Net book value as at 31 December 2012 1,574 936 113 2,623
Net book value as at 31 December 2011 2,082 1,091 209 3,382

Part of the non-current intangible assets of the Group and the Company with the acquisition value of LTL 2,948 thousand
as at 31 December 2012 (LTL 3,960 thousand as at 31 December 2011) was fully amortised, but still in use.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

Movement of property, plant and equipment for the current and prior periods:

Trans- Other Other
mission Distribution Other Machi- equip-  property,
networks networks and buildings nery and ment, tools plant and Construc-
and related related and equip- Vehic- and equip- tion in

Group Land Buildinas installations installations structures ment les devices ment proaress Total
Cost:
Balance as at 1 January 2011 183 113,604 1,513,220 817,634 29,460 316,367 37,395 107,608 10,978 17,236 2,963,685
Additions 40 1,584 12 716 4,576 2,858 1,326 50,102 61,214
Disposals and retirements (565) (85) (103) - (208) (1,601) (1,763) (241) (4,566)
Reclassifications 2701 8.724 14 242 358 11.640 3.659 161 {41.485)
Balance as at

31 December 2011 223 115,740 1,521,859 833.357 29,830 328,515 40,370 112,362 12,224 25,853 3,020,333
Additions 4 1,726 - 762 4,426 4,205 144,209 166,261
Disposals and retirements (10,438) (38) (12) (711) (2,215) (3,648) (585) (25) (17,672)
Reclassifications 165 4784 49, 27 833 827 13.977 5734 232 (102 748}
Balance as at

31 December 2012 388 110 090 1571055 862 878 30645 342543 42581 118 653 12.800 67,289 3,158,922
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 January 2011 19,041 273,410 137,562 3,942 56,103 21,833 74,546 7,459 593,896
Charge for the year 3,374 47,131 24,509 1,584 17,849 4,530 9,900 1,345 110,222
Disposals and retirements (132) (84) (18) (190) (1,598) (1,762) (239) (4,023)
Reclassifications (25) 1N (90) 132
Balance as at

31 December 2011 22,258 320,457 162.053 5,509 73,672 24,765 82,816 8,565 700,095
Charge for the year 3,449 48,124 24,840 1,597 18,680 4,593 10,247 1,317 112,847
Disposals and retirements (1,939) (15) (8) (662) (2,214) (3,531) (579) (8,948)
Reclassifications (69) 1 68 (8) 8
Balance as at

31 December 2012 23 699 368 581 RS 878 7099 91758 27144 89.524 9.311 803 994
Impairment losses:
Balance as at 1 January 2011 5,071 5,071
Balance as at

31 December 2011 5.071 5071
Disposals and retirements (4,678)* (4.678)
Balance as at

31 December 2012 393
Net book value as at

31 December 2012 388 85,998 1,202,474 676,000 23,646 250,785 15,437 29,129 3,489 87,289 2,354,535
Net book value as at

31 December 2011 223 88,411 1,201,402 671.304 24,321 254,843 15,605 29,546 3,659 25,853 2,315,167

*The decrease in impairment in 2012 is due to disposal of the assets owned by the subsidiary.
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5 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Company

Cost:

Balance as at 1 January 2011
Additions

Disposals and retirements

Reclassifications

Balance as at
31 December 2011

Additions
Disposals and retirements

Reclassifications
Balance as at
31 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals and retirements

Reclassifications
Balance as at

31 December 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals and retirements

Reclassifications
Balance as at
31 December 2012

Impairment losses:

Balance as at 1 January 2011
Balance as at

31 December 2011
Balance as at

31 December 2012

Net book value as at
31 December 2012
Net book value as at
31 December 2011

Land

183
40

223

165

3R8

388

223

Buildinas

99,215

(565)
2,701

101.351
4

(202)
4784

105 937

16,807
3,229

(132)

{25}

19.879

3,346
(70)
(69)

23.086

82.851

81,472

Trans-
mission
networks
and related
installations

1,513,220

(85)
8,724

1.521.859

49 196

1 571.055

273,410
47,131
(84)

320.457
48,124

368 581

1.202.474

1,201,402

Distribution

Other

Machi-

networks and buildings nery and

related
installations

817,634
1,584

(103)
14,242

833,357

1,726
(38)

27.833

862.878

137,562
24,509
(18)

162,053
24,840
(15)

186 878

676,000

671,304

and struc- equip-
tures ment les
29,460 316,367 37,178
12 716 4,576
(208) (1,534)
358 11.640 -
29,830 328,515 40,220
762 4,426
(12) (711) (2,157)
827 13 977 -
30.645 342543 42.489
3,942 56,103 21,711
1,584 17,849 4,512
(190) (1,531)
(17) (90) -
5,509 73,672 24,692
1,697 18,680 4,577
(8) (662) (2,156)
1 68 -
7.099 91,758 27.113
23,646 250,785 15,376
24,321 254,843 15,528
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Other
equip-
ment,

106,081
2,843
(1,584)
3.660

110,980
4,197
(2,488)
5734

118.423

73,335
9,802

(1,583)
132

81,686

10,183
(2,462)
(8)

89.399

29,024

29,294

Other
property,

Vehic- tools and plant and
devices eauioment proaress

10,978

1,326
(241)
16

a

12,224
929
(585)
232

12 800

7,459
1,345
(239)

8.565
1,317
(579)

9.311

3,489

3,659

Construc-
tion in
Total
17,171 2,947,467
50,102 61,199
(4,320)
(41.486)
25,787 3,004,346
144,209 156,253
(6,193)
(102.748\
67248 3154 406
590,329
109,961
(3.777)
696.513
112,664
(5,952)
803 225
67,248 2,351,181
25,787 2,307,833
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

A part of the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company with the acquisition cost of LTL 78,229
thousand and LTL 78,202 thousand, respectively, were fully depreciated as at 31 December 2012 (LTL 69,237 thousand
and LTL 68,415 thousand as at 31 December 2011, respectively), but were still in use.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Group and the Company had no property, plant and equipment, acquired under
financial lease agreements.

The Group and the Company did not have any borrowing costs in 2012 and 2011 related to qualifying assets.

Major objects of construction in progress of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

Group Company
Object 2012 2011 2012 2011
Construction of gas transmission pipeline Jurbarkas — Klaipéda: 55,768 8,308 55,758 8,308
Construction of gas transmission pipeline from Jurbarkas to
the branch to gas distribution station (hereinafter — GDS) in
Taurage 1,969 1,969
Construction of gas transmission pipeline from the branch to
GDS in Tauragé to the branch to GDS in Silute 33,340 3,209 33,340 3,209
Construction of gas transmission pipeline from the branch to
GDS in Silute to the branch to GDS-2 in Klaipeda, the branch to
GDS-2 in Klaipéda and GDS-2 in Klaipéda 22,418 3,130 22,418 3,130
Reconstruction of GDS in Girininkai village, Kaunas district 4,593 4,593
Acquisition of intelligent pig launcher and receiver chambers for
the Vilnius - Vievis gas transmission pipeline 2,012 2,012
Procurement of equipment and replacement works of line block
valves with bypasses No. 19, 41, 40 by new ones on the
Ivatsevichi-Vilnius-Riga gas transmission pipeline (DN 500) 1,524 1,524
Reconstruction of GDS in Alksnupiy village, Radvilidkio district 1,024 1,024
Acquisition of container-type GDS 3,780 3,780
Other (including UAB Palangos Perlas) 7,751 8,392 7,710 8 326
Net book value as at 31 December 2012 67,289 25,853 67,248 25,787

Investment in subsidiary

As at 31 December 2012 the Company's investment in subsidiary consisted of the investment into UAB Palangos Perlas
and amounted to LTL 9,181 thousand (LTL 9,181 thousand in 2011) (Note 1). On 30 January 2013 the Board of the
Company made a decision to liquidate UAB Palangos Perlas.

Investment into joint venture

On 13 September 2012 AB Lietuvos Dujos and Gasum Oy established a joint venture. On 9 November 2012 the NCCPE
issued a market operator license for UAB GET Baltic and on 21 December 2012 approved the trading regulations on the
natural gas exchange and the service tariffs thereof by resolutions No. 03-425 and No. 03-426 Trading on the natura!
gas exchange started in January 2013.

During the year 2012 the resdlts of the activity of the joint venture were immaterial (Note 1).

Non-current accounts receivable

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

AB Guartis (former AB Warta Glass Panevézys; earlier - AB
Paneveézio Stiklas) debt 6,356 6,373 6,356 6,373
Other non-current accounts receivable 9 16 9 16
6,365 6,389 6,365 6,389
Less: allowance for non-current accounts receivable (6,356) (6,373) (6,356) (6,373)
9 16 9 16

Receivable from AB Guartis (former AB Warta Glass PaneveZys; earlier - AB PanevéZzio Stiklas) debt is related to the
mentioned entity’s debt for the supply of natural gas for the period 2000 - 2002. Due to solvency problems a debt
restructuring agreement was signed with AB Guartis creditors on 30 August 2002, according to it the debt to the Group
and the Company in the amount of LTL 6.356 thousand should be repaid during the years 2014 — 2024.
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Inventories
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Raw materials, spare parts and other inventories 7,104 7,321 7,104 7,320
Goods for resale (including natural gas) 73,110 71,334 73,110 71,323
Inventories, gross 80,214 78,655 80,214 78,643
Less: allowance for inventories (106) (139) (106) (139)

80,108 78,516 80,108 78,504

The Group’s and the Company’s cost of inventories accounted for at net realisable value amounted to LTL 1,292
thousand as at 31 December 2012 (LTL 1,624 thousand as at 31 December 2011). Changes in the allowance for
inventories in 2012 and 2011 were included into other expenses.

Accounts receivable
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Receivables for natural gas, transmission and distribution of
natural gas from non-household customers 180,794 159,792 180,796 159,803
Receivables for natural gas, transmission and distribution of
natural gas from household customers 18,648 16,949 18,648 16,949
Other trade receivables 516 529 514 514
Total trade accounts receivable 199,958 177,270 199,958 177,266
Other accounts receivable 13,190 4,560 13,159 4 557
213,148 181,830 213,117 181,823
Less: allowance for accounts receivable (8,618) (8,437) (8,618) (8,432)
204,530 173,393 204,499 173,391

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due in 15 days for non-household customers and 30 days
for household customers.

As at 31 December 2012 receivables for natural gas, transmission and distribution of natural gas from non-household
customers increased due to increased level of receivables past due The main part of the consumers’ past due debt was
repaid at the beginning of January 2013.

As at 31 December 2012 trade and other receivables of the Group and the Company with the nominal value of LTL 6,847
thousand (as at 31 December 2011 — LTL 6,086 thousand) were fully provided for.

Movements in the allowance for impairment of the Group’s and the Company’s receivables were as follows:

Group Company
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively  Total

impaired impaired Total impaired impaired
Balance as of 1 January 2011 3,858 3,987 7,845 3,853 3,987 7,840
Charge for the year 4,043 1,902 5,945 4,043 1,902 5,945
Utilised (159) (159) - (159) (159)
Unused amounts reversed (4,223) (971) (5,194) (4,223) (971) (5,194)
Balance as at 31 December 2011 3,678 4,759 8,437 3,673 4,759 8,432
Charge for the year 1,743 1,930 3,673 1,743 1,930 3,673
Utilised (60) (342) (402) (60) (337) (397)
Unused amounts reversed (2,088) (1,002) (3,090) (2,088) (1,002) (3,090)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 3,273 5,345 8,618 3,268 5,350 8,618

Changes in the allowance for accounts receivable in 2012 and 2011 were included into other expenses.
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10 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

1"

12

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade and other accounts receivable which are not impaired as at 31 December 2012
and 2011 is as follows:

Trade and other receivables past due

Trade and other Less More
receivables whichis  than 30 31-90 91-180 181-360 than 360
not past due _days days days days days Total
2011 164,021 7917 967 252 198 173,355
2012 173,880 29,018 1,100 268 218 204,484

The ageing analysis of the Company’s trade and other accounts receivable which are not impaired as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Trade and other receivables past due

Trade and other Less More
receivables whichis than 30 31-90 91-180 181-360 than 360
not past due days days davs davs davs Total
2011 164,031 7917 965 246 197 173,356
2012 173,882 29,018 1,099 268 217 204,484

Other current assets

As at 31 December 2012 the Group’s and the Company’s other current assets — current investments — consisted of the
Group’s and the Company’s investments into debt securities amounting to LTL 57,736 thousand and the Group’s and the
Company’'s term deposits amounting to LTL 107,687 thousand and LTL 102,264 thousand, respectively (as at 31
December 2011 — LTL 30,000 thousand of debt securities and LTL 1,989 thousand of deposits). The term of current
investments is 3 — 12 months. The weighted average annual interest rate of the Group’s and the Company’s current
investments was 0.67 percent as at 31 December 2012 (2.24 % as at 31 December 2011).

Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Cash at bank, in transit and on hand 81,919 5,294 81,879 4,979
Deposits with the term of less than three months 30,538 90,590 30,538 90,590
112,457 95,884 112,417 95,569

The original term of all deposits is less than three months, the weighted average annual interest rate as at 31 December
2012 was 0.42 % (0.75 % as at 31 December 2011). Cash at banks is invested into short-term deposits, the interest rate
depending on the term may be fixed or floating Overnight deposits are with fixed or floating interest rate, which depends
on a published daily interbank interest rates. Other deposits with the term of less than three months are with fixed
interest rate. The fair value of cash and current deposits of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2012 was
LTL 112,457 thousand and LTL 112,417 thousand, respectively (LTL 85884 thousand and LTL 95,569 thousand,
respectively as at 31 December 2011).
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Reserves

Legal reserve

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under legislation of the Republic of Lithuania. Annual transfers of not less than
5 % of net profit are compulsory until the reserve reaches 10 % of the share capital. The amount of LTL 3,215 thousand
of the Company's net profit for 2012 must be allocated for a transfer to the legal reserve in 2013, in which case the legal
reserve would comprise 10% of the share capital. This amount may change depending on the final decision of the
shareholders of the Company to be made after the issue of these financial statements.

Other reserves

Other reserves are formed based on the decision of the General Shareholders’ Meeting on appropriation of distributable
profit. These reserves can be used only for the purposes approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting for the
corporate business development.

Borrowings

On 22 October 2012 AB Lietuvos Dujos and bank AB Swedbank signed a long term loan agreement for the amount up to
EUR 72 million. The purpose of the loan is to refinance the financial liabilities and finance the operations of the
transmission activity, which according to the prevailing law requirements will be unbundled by establishing a new entity -
transmission system operator (Note 1). As at 31 December 2012 the outstanding balance of the loan taken from AB
Swedbank amounted to LTL 180 million (EUR 52.1 million)

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Non-current borrowings
Borrowings from Lithuanian credit institutions 180,000 2,144 180,000 2,144
Current borrowings
Current portion of non-current borrowings 2,144 2,144 2,144 2,144
182,144 4,288 182,144 4,288
The terms of repayment of non-current borrowings are as follows:
2012 2011 2012 2011
Floating Floating
Fixed interest Fixed interest interest bearing interest bearing
bearing loans bearing loans loans loans
2012 2,144
2013 2,144 2,144
2014 45,000
2015 45,000
2016 45,000
2017 45,000
2,144 4,288 180,000
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Borrowings (cont’d)

Actual interest rates are close to effective interest rates. As at 31 December 2012 the weighted average annual interest
rate of the Group’s and the Company’'s borrowings outstanding was 1.54 % (5.65 % as at 31 December 2011).
Borrowings at the end of the year in national and foreign currencies expressed in LTL were as follows:

Group Company
Borrowings denominated in: 2012 2011 2012 2011
EUR 182,144 4,288 182,144 4,288
182,144 4,288 182,144 4,288

None of the Company’s loans are secured by pledging assets owned by the Company or by third parties guarantees.

In addition as at 31 December 2012 the Group and the Company had available LTL 2,900 thousand (LTL 2,900
thousand as at 31 December 2011) of unutilized credit limit facility in respect of which all conditions precedent have been
met.

Grants (deferred revenue)
Group and Company 2012 2011

Deferred Deferred

revenue Grants Total revenue Grants Total
Balance at the beginning of the period 120,747 70,306 191,053 115,066 62,776 177,842
Received during the year 7,175 29,418 36,593 7,966 9,478 17,444
Change in grants receivable 8,833 8,833 560 560
Amortisation during the year (2,439) (3,189) (5,628) (2,285) (2,291) (4,576)
Grants used for compensation of expenses (217) (217)
Balance at the end of the period 125,483 105,322 230,805 120,747 70,306 191,053

Increase in grants (deferred revenue) in 2012 was influenced by received capital grants, out of which LTL 33,860
thousand comprised construction of gas transmission pipeline Jurbarkas — Klaipéda, the project financed by EU
structural funds. Grants also include the corresponding fair value of property, plant and equipment received free of
charge and charged to the income statement in portions on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful life

The grants receivable are accounted under caption other receivables in the statements of financial position.

Non-current employee benefits

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Group’s and the Company's employee benefits resulting from one-time payments
to employees leaving the Company at the retirement age were equal to LTL 7,546 thousand, other non-current employee

benefits resulting from bonuses for long work experience in the Company were equal to LTL 1,551 thousand.

The major assumptions made when estimating the Group’s and the Company’s liabilities of non-current employee
benéefits are the following:

2012 2011
Discount rate 4.59 % 5.66 %
Annual employee turnover rate 2% 2%
Annual salary increase 2% 2%

The Group and the Company have no plan assets designated for settlement with employee benefit obligations.
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Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Suppliers of natural gas 189,851 192,122 189,851 192,122
Other 49,096 23.447 49,092 23,440
238,947 215,569 238,943 215,562

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: trade payables are non-interest bearing and majority of them are
normally settled on 20 days terms.

The Group’s and the Company's other trade payables increased comparing to 2011 mainly due to increased payables to
contractors for construction and reconstruction works.

Other payables and current liabilities

The Groups and the Company’s other payables and current liabilities mainly consist of VAT payable, which amounted to
LTL 36,853 thousand as at 31 December 2012 (LTL 39,362 thousand as at 31 December 2011).

Other income

In 2012 the major part of the Group’s and the Company’s other income consists of grants (including deferred revenues)
amortisation amounting to LTL 5,628 thousand (LTL 4,576 thousand in 2011).

Financial activities
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest income 1,246 1,310 1,181 1,261
Other income from financial activities 962 157 962 1156
Total income from financial activities 2,208 2,467 2,143 2,417
Interest expenses on borrowings (614) (320) (614) (320)
Share of losses of joint venture directly attributable to the
Company (50)
Impairment of financial assets (20,000) (20,000}
Other expenses from financial activities (1 (10) (N (10)
Total expenses from financial activities (665) (20,330) (615) (20,330}
Result from financial activities, net 1.543 (17.863) 1,528 (17,913)

As at 31 December 2011 the Group and the Company estimated 100% impairment for AB bankas SNORAS certificate of
deposit (LTL 20,000 thousand), which was accounted as the expenses from financial activities.
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Income tax
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Income tax:
Profit before tax 70,700 104,273 71,537 104,417
Changes in temporary differences 46,704 50,585 50,864 50,673
Permanent differences (2,962) 14,792 (7,959) 14,560
Taxable income for the year 114,442 169,850 114,442 169,650
Current year income tax 17,166 25,448 17,166 25,448
Current year income tax incentive (8.954) (9.638) (8.954) {9.638)
Current year income tax after applying income tax incentive 8,212 15,810 8,212 15,810
Prior year income tax incentive (2,316) (334) (2,316) (334)
Other prior years' income tax adjustments 284 856 284 856
Change in deferred income tax during the year (9,986) (7,821) (10,607) (7,601)
Income tax expense (income) charged to the income

statement (3,806) 8,511 (4,427) 8,731

According to the provisions of the Law on Corporate Income Tax (hereinafter — the Law), which came into effect starting
1 January 2009, the income tax incentive may be applied for investments into qualifying property, plant and equipment.
When calculating current income tax for the year 2012, the Group and the Company used the benefit of the above
mentioned incentive for the investments (including used income tax incentive of previous year) and reduced income tax
expenses for the year 2012 by a total amount of LTL 11,270 thousand (LTL 9,972 thousand in 2011).

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Deferred tax asset:
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and

vacation accrual 932 1,604 876 926
Accrual for non-current employee benefit 1,365 1,365 1,365 1,365
Unused income tax incentive 3,057 3,057
Deferred revenue from connection fees 1,985 2,028 985 2028
Deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 7,339 4,997 7,283 4,319
Less: valuation allowance (108) (108) (108) (108)
Less: deferred tax asset netted with deferred tax liability (7,231) (4,889) (7,175) (4.211)
Deferred tax asset, net
Deferred tax liability:
Difference in tax base of property, plant and equipment (154,386)  (162,030) (154,309) (161,952)
Deferred tax liability, net (147,155) (157,141) (147,134)  (157,741)

Valuation allowance was made for part of the deferred tax asset that, in the opinion of the management, is not likely to be
realised in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax asset and deferred income tax liability are netted off in the
statement of financial position of the Company, as they both are related to the same tax authority. In the Group's
statement of financial position the deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability of the Company and its subsidiary are
netted to the extent they are realised simultaneously.

While assessing deferred income tax asset and liability components in 2012 and 2011 the Group and the Company has
used income tax rate of 15 %.
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21 Income tax (cont’d)
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The reported amount of income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the amount of income tax expense that
would result from applying the statutory income tax rate of 15 %:

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Profit before tax 70,700 104,273 71,537 104,417
Tax (expense) at the applicable standard tax rate (10,605) (15,641) (10,731) (15,663)
Non-deductible items 444 (2,219) 1,194 (2,184)
Income tax incentive 11,270 9,972 11,270 9,972
Other 2,981 (9) 2,978 (242)
Effect of prior periods income tax adjustment (284) (614) (284) (614)
Income tax gain (expense) 3,806 (8,511) 4,427 (8,731)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share reflect the Group's and the Company'’s net income, divided by the weighted average number of
shares. There are no diluting instruments, therefore basic and diluted earnings per share are equal. Calculations of the
basic earnings per share are presented below:

Group
2012 2011
Net profit attributable to the shareholders (in LTL thousand) 74,506 95,762
Weighted average number of shares (in thousands) 469,068 469.068
Basic earnings per share (in LTL) 0.16 0.20

As there were no changes in the share capital of the Company during 2012 and 2011, therefore the weighted average
number of shares equals to the total number of shares at the end of the year.

Dividends declared

2012 2011
Dividends declared (in LTL thousand)* 72,000 120,000
Number of shares at the date when dividends were declared (in thousands) 469,068 469 068
Dividends per share (in LTL) 0.15 0.26

* In the year when the dividends are declared.
Cash flows from investing and financing activities

When calculating cash flows from investing activities in 2012, the change in accounts payable for non-current assets of
the Group and the Company of LTL 12,852 thousand and gas pipeline reallocation grant received in kind LTL 1,631
thousand (change in accounts payable for non-current assets LTL 4,555 thousand of the Group and the Company in
2011), was taken into account.

When determining the grants received in cash flows from financing activities of 2012 there were evaluated the annual
changes of prepayments received of LTL 282 thousand and gas pipeline reallocation grant received in kind of LTL 1,631
thousand (in 2011 the annual changes of prepayments received were equal to LTL 4,181 thousand).

Capital investment commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had the contracts for non-current assets acquisition, which are
not recognised in these financial statements and amount to LTL 71,160 thousand (LTL 21,446 thousand as at 31
December 2011). The contractual obligations of the construction of gas transmission pipeline Jurbarkas — Klaipéda
agreements amounted to LTL 63,560 thousand out of total capital investment commitments as at 31 December 2012.
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26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management
Liguidity risk
The Group's and the Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents or have available
funding through an adequate amount of committed overdraft and loans to meet their commitments at a given date.

Liquidity risk is managed by constantly forecasting the current and non-current cash flows of the Group and the
Company.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011
based on contractual undiscounted payments (scheduled payments including interest).

On Less than 3to12 1to5 More than
demand 3 months months 5 Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 672 4,289 185,612 190,573
Other current liabilities - 1,128 - - 1,128
Trade payables - 238,947 - - 238,947
Balance as at 31 December 2012 - 240,747 4,289 185,612 430,648
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 2,356 2,235 4,591
Other current liabilities 1,997 1,997
Trade payables 215,564 5 215,569
Balance as at 31 December 2011 217,561 2,361 2,235 222,157

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company'’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011
based on contractual undiscounted payments (scheduled payments including interests).

On Less than 3to12 1to5 More than
demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 672 4,289 185,612 190,573
Other current liabilities 1,128 1,128
Trade payables 238,943 238,943
Balance as at 31 December 2012 - 240,743 4,289 185,612 - 430,644
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 2,356 2,235 4. 591
Other current liabilities 1,994 1,994
Trade payables 215,557 5 215,562
Balance as at 31 December 2011 217,551 2,361 2,235 222,147

Credit risk

The Group‘s and the Company’s management believes that the maximum credit risk is equal to the trade receivables,
other receivables, cash and short term investments less impairment losses recognised at the date of the statement of
financial position. As the Group and the Company are working with big number of customers, they do not face a
significant credit concentration risk. Credit risk is managed through regular monitoring procedures (individual debtors’
supervision, especially monitoring and analysis of major customers, seeking to anticipate the potential solvency problems
in the future and other) and the use of appropriate credit conditions. Every month debts of the individual customers and
their groups are valued and in accordance with the procedures of the Company the decision about formation of
allowance for accounts receivable is accepted. Using installed debt management tools and by working with customers in
an effective way, the Company managed to sustain acceptable indebtedness level of the customers.

The Group and the Company face the risk when keeping the funds in bank accounts or investing it in short term
instruments. To manage this risk the Company has approved the cash investment regulations. These regulations set (1)
the reliability limits of the banks selected for cooperation (2) the limits of diversification for deposing or investing cash to
investment products of banks or their subsidiaries, other securities etc. The reliability level is assessed based on the
publicly available information.

The Group and the Company do not guarantee obligations of other parties.
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26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont’d)

Foreign currency risk

In order to manage foreign currency risk, the purchases and sales transactions of the Group and the Company are
mainly denominated in LTL and EUR, LTL is pegged to the euro, therefore, the foreign currency risk is not significant.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local and foreign currencies as at 31 December 2012 were as follows
(stated in LTL thousand):

Group Company Group Company
Assets Liabilities
LTL 350,755 345,672 110,512 110,499
EUR 131,617 131,238 372,095 372,095
usD 1 1 31 31
Total 482,373 476,911 482,638 482,625

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local and foreign currencies as at 31 December 2011 were as follows
(stated in LTL thousand):

Group Company Group Company
Assets Liabilities
LTL 270,186 268,251 89,037 88,986
EUR 31 30689 196,615 196,615
Total 301,244 298,940 285,652 285,601

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2012 the Group and the Company had one loan with fixed interest rate and one loan with floating
interest rate.

The Group's and the Company’s loan subject to floating interest rate is related to EURIBOR and creates interest rate
risk. This loan comprised 98.8 % of the total Group's and Company’s financial debt as at 31 Dec 2012 As at 31
December 2012 the Group and the Company did not have any financial instruments used for the management of interest
rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s and the Company's 2012 profit before tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings) to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant. There is no impact on the Group's equity, other than that on current year profit.

EURIBOR increase Effect on the profit before the income
in basis points tax
As at 31 December 2012 +100 (1,800)

Gas import price fluctuation risk

Natural gas import price depends on heavy fuel oil and gasoline prices in international market, the USD and EUR ratio
fixed by the European Central Bank and actual natural gas calorific value. Management of the Group and the Company
believes that this risk is managed effectively in the following way:

- for non-household customers — by setting the gas price depending on the same variable component values;

- for household customers — through the regulated price-setting mechanism, defined in the Natural Gas Law.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group's and the Company's principal financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value are trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, long-term and short-term borrowings.

37



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

26 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont’'d)

27

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm's length transaction, and these parties intend to purchase (sell) assets or net off the liabilities. Fair values of
financial assets and liabilities are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models as appropriate (Level 1 valuation technique).

The following methods and assumptions are used by the Group and the Company to estimate the fair value of each class
of financial instruments:
(a) The carrying amount of current trade and other accounts receivable, current trade and other accounts payable
and short-term borrowings approximates fair value;
(b) The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues or on
the current rates available for borrowings with the same maturity profile. The fair value of non-current borrowings
with interest rates approximates their carrying amounts.

Commitments and contingencies

Leqal disputes

(i) On 25 March 2011 the Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania, which holds 17.7 % of the Company's shares
by the right of trust, applied to Vilnius Regional Court with an action for an investigation of activities of a legal person and
indicated AB Lietuvos Dujos, the Company’s board members delegated by OAO Gazprom and the general manager as
defendants. This action requests initiation of an investigation of AB Lietuvos Dujos activities and satisfaction of the
respective claims specified in the action, provided that the activities of the company AB Lietuvos Dujos and/or the above
board members and/or the general manager are found inadequate. Having considered the request of the plaintiff the
Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania to initiate an investigation of AB Lietuvos Dujos activities, by the ruling of 3
September 2012 Vilnius Regional Court satisfied the plaintiff's request and decided to initiate an investigation of AB
Lietuvos Dujos activities. The Company did not agree with the decision of the court of first instance and appealed against
it to the Court of Appeal of Lithuania The Court of Appeal of Lithuania kept the decision of Vilnius Regional Court
unchanged. The Company is now considering the possibility to lodge an appeal against the ruling of 21 February 2013 of
the Lithuanian Court of Appeal to the Supreme Court of Lithuania in a cassation procedure. The outcome of this legal
case is uncertain and cannct be reliably estimated.

(i) On 28 October 2011 AB Lietuvos Dujos applied to Vilnius Regional Administrative Court with a request to partially
annul the Resolution of the NCCPE No. 03-283 of 30 September 2011 Regarding a Planned Target Inspection of AB
Lietuvos Dujos, where violations of AB Lietuvos Dujos licensed activities’ regulations were identified and requirements
applicable for providing the data for adjusting the upper price margin of transmission and distribution for 2012, for
determination of the property, plant and equipment depreciation expenses as well as for the other obligations were
imposed for the Company On 20 February 2012 Vilnius Regional Administrative Court rejected the Company's claim.
The Company did not agree with the decision of the first instance court and appealed against it to the Supreme
Administrative Court By the ruling of 10 September 2012 the Supreme Administrative Court rejected the Company's
appeal and kept the decision of 20 February 2012 of Vilnius Regional Administrative Court unchanged. The ruling of the
court is final and not subject to appeal.

Taking into account that the procedure of imposing a fine on the Company was initiated based on the above NCCPE
Resolution No 03-283 of 30 September 2011, though the Company, within the limits established by legal acts, had
rectified all the violations specified in the aforementioned Resolution of the NCCPE and had fulfilled its obligations. On 28
November 2011 AB Lietuvos Dujos applied to Vilnius Regional Administrative Court with a complaint and requested
annulment of the Resolution of the NCCPE No. 03-347 of 27 October 2011 Regarding Violation of Regulated Activities
of AB Lietuvos Dujos, based on which AB Lietuvos Dujos was imposed a fine of LTL 350 thousand. By the decision of 17
December 2012, taking into account the fact that the Company had timely rectified the violations and therefore no harm
was caused, Vilnius Regional Administrative Court satisfied the appeal of AB Lietuvos Dujos and decided to annul the
Resolution No. 03-347 of 27 October 2011 Regarding Violation of Regulated Activities of AB Lietuvos Dujos. The
NCCPE did not agree with the decision passed by Vilnius Regional Administrative Court and submitted an appeal to the
Supreme Administrative Court on 31 December 2012. Currently, the case is undergoing hearings at the appeal instance.
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28 Related party transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

The related parties of the Group and the Company, transaction amounts and debts as at 31 December 2012 and 2011
were as follows:

— E ONRuhrgas International GmbH (one of the major shareholders of the Company},

—  OAO Gazprom (one of the major shareholders of the Company);

— Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania (one of the major shareholders of the Company);
— UAB Palangos Perlas (subsidiary of the Company);

— UAB GET Baltic (joint venture);

— A8 Latvijas Gaze (the same shareholders);

— E.ON IS GmbH (same ultimate shareholder);

— OAO Beltransgaz (same ultimate shareholder),
— UAB Kauno termofikacijos elektrineé (same ultimate shareholder);
—  Open Grid Europe GmbH, related party until 23 July 2012 (same ultimate shareholder).

The tables below represent the Company's transactions and outstanding balances with related parties in 2012 and 2011.
The Group’s transactions and outstanding balances with related parties in 2012 and 2011 are the same as the
Company’s, except the transactions and outstanding balances with UAB Palangos perlas which are not included.

Accounts Accounts
2012 Purchases Sales receivable payable
OAO Gazprom 1,519,603 40,967 9,388 189,851
OAOQO Beltransgaz 16
UAB Palangos Perlas 69 41 2
AS Latvijas Gaze 1,518 11
UAB Kauno termofikacijos elektriné 14,353 388
UAB GET Baltic 4 2
1,521,208 55,365 9,780 189,862
Accounts Accounts
2011 Purchases Sales receivable payable
OAO Gazprom 1,465,335 38,135 10,676 192 122
OAO Beltransgaz 30
UAB Palangos Perlas 33 57 11
AS Latvijas Gaze 1,615 8
UAB Kauno termofikacijos elektriné 15,918 862
Open Grid Europe GmbH 239
1,467,252 54,110 11,549 192,130

On 16 December 1999 there was concluded an Agreement No. 1 Jlu-2000 between Open Joint Stock Company
Gazprom and Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Dujos for the natural gas supply into Republic of Lithuania
quantities and terms in 2000-2015. The object of the agreement is import of part of natural gas into Republic of Lithuania
and natural gas transit service through the Republic of Lithuania to the Russian Federation Kaliningrad Region. Natural
gas import price depend on heavy fuel oil and gasoline prices in the international market, US dollar and EUR exchange
rate set by the European Central Bank and actual natural gas caloric value The agreement defines the natural gas
quantities provided to the Company until 2015. The agreement is valid until 31 December 2015.

AB Lietuvos Dujos does not treat the Government controlled companies as one client because there is no significant
economic integration between these companies. AB Lietuvos Dujos supply gas to the Government controlled companies;

the transactions with them are concluded on the arms length principle.

Dividends to the shareholders have been paid in 2012 and 2011.

39



28

29

30

AB LIETUVOS DUJOS

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions (cont'd)

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash in 15 - 30 days term.
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable and no allowance has
been made for the receivables from related parties by the Group and the Company.

Management remuneration

In 2012 payments to the administration management of the Group and the Company amounted to LTL 2,676 thousand
and LTL 2,611 thousand, respectively (in 2011 respectively LTL 2,437 thousand and LTL 2,381 thousand). The annual
payments (tantieme) paid for the Company's Board members amounted to LTL 524 thousand in 2012 (LTL 540 thousand
in 2011). In 2012 and 2011 the management of the Group and the Company did not receive any loans, guarantees, no
other payments or property transfers were made or accrued.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s and the Company's capital management are to ensure that the Group and the
Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Group and the Company maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholders’ value. For capital management purposes,
capital includes share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group and the Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and
the Company may issue new shares, adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes of capital management during the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011.

The Group and the Company is obliged to upkeep its equity ratio not less than 50 % of its share capital, as imposed by
the Law on Companies of Republic of Lithuania. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Group and the Company were in
compliance with this requirement. There were no other internally or externally imposed capital requirements on
the Group and the Company.

Subsequent events
On 30 January 2013 the Board of the Company made a decision to liquidate UAB Palangos Perlas (Note 6).

On 30 January 2013 the Board of the Company prepared and approved the Unbundling Terms of AB Lietuvos Dujos. On
28 February 2013 NCCPE by Resolution No 03-84 Concerning AB Lietuvos dujos Unbundling Terms and Composition
of the Assets to be Released to the Transmission System Operator stated that the Company’s Unbundling terms
provides conditions for the proper implementation of the unbundling of the natural gas transmission activity (Note 1).

In accordance with the law of Liquid natural gas (hereinafter — LNG) terminal of the Republic of Lithuania and the
secondary acts approved by NCCPE, starting from 1 January 2013 the Company started collecting funds, which will be
used to finance the implementation of the LNG terminal project. Since 2013 the LNG terminal related additional tariff
component, approved by NCCPE, amounting to LTL 37.53/1000 m3 has to be paid by all users of the gas transmission
system. The Company will be in charge of the administration of the LNG terminal funds.
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REPORTING PERIOD FOR WHICH THE REPORT WAS PREPARED

The Year 2012.

MAIN DATA ABOUT THE ISSUER

Name of the Issuer AB Lietuvos Dujos (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company” or “LD")

Legal form public company

Date and place of registration 23 November 1990, State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Company code 120059523

Administrator of Register of Legal

Persons State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Authorized capital LTL 469,068,254

Registered office Aguony g. 24, LT-03212 Vilnius, Lithuania

Telephone number +370 5 236 0210

Fax number +370 5 236 0200

E-mail address l[d@lietuvosdujos.It

Website www.dujos.It

The vision of the Company is to become the best com pany in the energy sector.

The mission of the Company is to supply natural gas in a safe and reliable way, so that
everybody would enjoy a more comfortable life.

We are going to achieve it by:

being a transparent, reliable, attractive to consumers, and socially responsible company;
increasing the value of the Company;

attracting, retaining and training the best employees;

optimizing costs, ensuring an appropriate return on investments;

expanding our activities into new segments;

expanding our infrastructure (gas systems);

ensuring a high IT, technical and technological level.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

- On 1 January 2012, new natural gas transmission and distribution service tariffs (set by the
Company’s Board of Directors decision of 18 November 2011) came into effect. The natural gas
tariffs applicable to household customers remained unchanged, i.e. it was decided from 1 January
2012 to apply the same tariffs that were applied in Half 2 of 2011. On 30 November 2011, the
National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter referred to as “the NCCPE”)
approved the natural gas transmission and distribution service tariffs and natural gas tariffs
applicable to household customers as set by the LD Board of Directors.

- 10 February 2012 marked a public presentation of the findings of the Business Case Analysis
Study conducted in preparation for the Poland-Lithuania Gas Interconnector Project. The Gas
Interconnector is aimed at putting an end to the isolation of the Baltic Region, which will be
achieved through the integration of the Baltic States into the gas markets of the European Union
and by creating access to the global LNG market via the Swinoujuscie Liquefied Natural Gas
(hereinafter referred to as “the LNG”) Terminal Facility.
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- On 15 February 2012, the Company was awarded the Environmental Protection Management
System ISO 14001 certificate. It proves that the environmental protection management system,
which constitutes an integral part of in the Company’s activities, meets the applicable standards.
The certificate was issued by an accredited institution UAB Bureau Veritas Lit.

- On 20 March 2012, a public tender was announced for the preparation of the Polish and
Lithuanian Natural Gas Systems Integration Feasibility Study.

- On 29 March 2012, in cooperation with other BEMIP region’s transmission system operators, LD
produced the first regional Gas Investment Plan for 2012—-2021. The aim of the Plan is to present
the prospects for the development of the regional gas market and infrastructure, including an
analysis of the challenges and obstacles that hinder the development of gas infrastructure in the
Baltic Sea region.

- On 23 April 2012, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of LD approved the Company’s
activity results for 2011 and decided for the Year 2011 to pay out dividends totalling
LTL 72.0 million, or 15.3 Lithuanian cents per share.

- On 24 May 2012, the NCCPE approved the LD Board of Directors’ decision regarding natural
gas tariffs for household customers effective from 1 July 2012.

- On 28 May 2012, at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of LD, the Company’s
shareholders decided to implement the unbundling of the transmission activity of LD in
accordance with the terms provided for by the legal acts by spinning off a part (i.e. the activity of
natural gas transmission) from the Company, which continues its activity, and establishing a new
company on the basis of the assets, rights and obligations attributed to the activity of natural gas
transmission as provided for by Article 71 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.
The Company’s General Meeting of Shareholders also decided to implement the unbundling of
the gas distribution activity by establishing a subsidiary of LD and by transferring the natural gas
distribution activity (complex of assets) to such subsidiary together with the assets, rights and
obligations attributed to such activity as contribution in kind for the newly issued shares of the
subsidiary in accordance with the terms provided for by the legal acts. One of the Company’s
shareholders, OAO Gazprom, voted on the adoption of this decision “for” with reservation.

- In implementation of the decisions adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders of LD as
well as the applicable provisions of legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania, on 28 May 2012, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved the Description of the Methods for the Unbundling of the
Company’s Gas Transmission Activity and Control and for the Unbundling of the Company’s Gas
Distribution Activity, including the unbundling action plans. The Board Members Valery Golubev
and Kirill Seleznev voted on the approval of the Description “for” with reservation.

- On 31 May 2012, pursuant to applicable provisions of legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania and
in implementation of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders of LD and the Board of
Directors of LD, the Company submitted to the NCCPE for approval the Description of the
Methods for the Unbundling of the Company’s Gas Transmission Activity and Control and for the
Unbundling of the Company’s Gas Distribution Activity, including the unbundling action plans,
providing for the legal, functional and organizational unbundling of the natural gas transmission
activities by 31 July 2013 and for the unbundling of control of the Company’s natural gas
transmission activities and for the legal, functional and organizational unbundling of the
Company’s natural gas distribution activities by 31 October 2014.

- On 15 June 2012, the NCCPE adopted Resolution No. O3-145 “On AB Lietuvos Dujos
Transmission and Distribution Activities and Control Unbundling Action Plans” and instructed the
Company to unbundle the natural gas transmission and distribution activities and control in
accordance with the methods and deadlines as specified in the unbundling action plans.
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- On 29 June 2012, a contract was concluded with ILF Consulting Engineers Polska Sp. z. 0. 0
regarding the preparation of the Poland-Lithuania Gas Interconnector Feasibility Study. The
Feasibility Study is expected to be completed in Quarter 1 of 2013.

- With effect from 30 June 2012 Dr Peter Frankenberg resigned from his office as Member and
Chairman of the Board of Directors of LD. Dr Achim Saul was elected new Member of the Board
of Directors of LD.

- On 4 July 2012, at the Meeting of the Board of Directors, Dr Achim Saul was unanimously
elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of LD for the current term of office of the Board.

- On 7 September 2012, in Vilnius, a statutory meeting was held of the joint venture established
by the Finnish gas company Gasum Oy and AB Lietuvos Dujos to operate a gas exchange, at
which the articles of association of the new company UAB GET Baltic were approved and the
governing bodies were elected. New company is owned by LD (66%) and by Gasum Oy (34%).

- On 22 October 2012, the Company and the bank Swedbank, AB concluded a long-term credit
facility agreement for the amount of up to EUR 72 million. The credit facility is intended to
refinance the financial liabilities and finance the operations of the Company natural gas
transmission activity of LD, which pursuant to legal provisions will be unbundled from the
Company through the establishment of a new Transmission System Operator company.

- On 21 November 2012, the NCCPE approved new natural gas transmission and distribution
service tariffs as well as natural gas tariffs for household customers (as set by the Company’s
Board of Directors decision of 9 November 2012) with effect from 1 January 2013. Pursuant to the
applicable provisions of the Law on the Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) Terminal of the Republic of
Lithuania as well as secondary legislation approved by the NCCPE, from 1 January 2013, all the
gas transmission system users will be charged and required to pay the so-called Liquefied Natural
Gas Terminal funds (hereinafter referred to as the “LNGT") to finance the Liquefied Natural Gas
Terminal Project. From 2013 the LNGT surcharge in the amount as set by the NCCPE -
LTL 37.53/1000 m? (excl. VAT) — will be required to be paid by all gas transmission system users.
LD will be responsible for the administration of LNGT funds.

All public notices that in accordance with law are subject to publication are posted in the electronic
publication of the Administrator of Register of Legal Persons. Notifications on convening a general
meeting of shareholders of the Company as well as other material events are posted in
accordance with procedure established by the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania on
the Central Database of Regulated Information www.crib.lt and the Company website
www.dujos.lt. Where shareholders’ holdings entitle them to at least 10% of the total voting rights,
notices to such shareholders on convening a general meeting of shareholders are dispatched in
accordance with procedure established by the Bylaws of the Company.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

- On 30 January 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Terms and Conditions of
the Spin-off of the Company. The Members of the Board of Directors of the Company Valery
Golubev and Kirill Seleznev voted on the approval of the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off
“for” with reservation. The Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off were prepared pursuant to the
decision of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company of 28 May 2012
and the NCCPE Resolution No. 03-145 of 15 June 2012. The Terms and Conditions of the Spin-
off provide for the terms and conditions for spinning-off a part of the Company (which will continue
its activity), and for establishing the New Company of the same legal form on the basis of the
assets, rights and obligations attributed to such spin-off part. Pursuant to the applicable provisions
of the Law on Implementation of the Law Amending the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of
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Lithuania and secondary legislation, on 30 January 2013, the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-
off were submitted to the NCCPE for coordination.

- Since following the sale of the main asset item of the LD subsidiary UAB Palangos Perlas — the
hotel in Palanga — the scope of business activities of UAB Palangos Perlas became considerably
narrower, therefore, on 30 January 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company decided to
subject the aforesaid subsidiary to liquidation.

- On 28 February 2013, having reviewed the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off of AB Lietuvos
Dujos (as approved by the Board of Directors of AB Lietuvos Dujos on 30 January 2013) the
NCCPE concluded that the aforesaid document provides conditions for the proper implementation
of the unbundling of the natural gas transmission activity.

NATURAL GAS BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Legal basis

Pursuant to the Law on Natural Gas and the Law on Implementation of the Law on Natural Gas
transposing into the national law provisions of the Third Energy Package of the EU, in Quarter 4
of 2011, the Government of the Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter referred to as the “GoRL”")
passed respective resolutions providing for the Company’s actions to be taken with regard to the
transformation of the Company: the Resolution No. 1239 “On Approval of the Plan on Performing
the Unbundling of Activities and Control of Natural Gas Companies that do not Conform to the
Requirements of the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania” as adopted by the GoRL on
28 October 2011 and the Resolution No. 1417 “On approval of the description of the procedure for
unbundling of the activities and control of natural gas undertakings that do not conform to the
requirements of the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania” as adopted by the GoRL on
7 December 2011.

Pursuant to the provisions of the aforesaid legal acts, the Company must by 31 October 2014
implement the unbundling of the transmission activity and control and to complete the legal,
functional and organizational unbundling of the natural gas distribution activity thus achieving
compliance with the requirements of Article 8 of the Law on Natural Gas. In compliance with the
provisions of the applicable legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania, the Company submitted to the
NCCPE the Company’s spin-off action plan (Transmission Plan) and the Company’s activity's
transformation action plan (Distribution Plan) as approved by the LD Board of Directors on 28 May
2012. On 15 June 2012, the NCCPE adopted the corresponding Resolution No. O3-145 “On AB
Lietuvos Dujos Action Plans for the Unbundling of Transmission and Distribution Activities and
Control”.

In accordance with applicable provisions of the Law on Natural Gas, from 1 August 2011, natural
gas supply activity became unregulated. The Law also created preconditions for the
establishment of a natural gas exchange in Lithuania. On 4 July 2012, the Company’s Board of
Directors decided in cooperation with the Finnish natural gas company Gasum Oy to set up a joint
venture, UAB GET Baltic, to perform the functions of a natural gas market operator. On 7
September 2012, the newly established joint venture was presented to the public and to potential
customers.

On 12 June 2012, the Seimas (Parliament) passed the Law on Liquefied Natural Gas Terminal
regulating the principles for the installation, operation and maintenance of the LNG Terminal.
Even though the LNG Terminal is being developed as a commercial project of a state-controlled
company, the provisions of the Law create a possibility of covering the costs of the installation and
operation of the LNG Terminal with the funds of all system users irrespective of the fact whether
or not such system user will actually use the services of the LNG Terminal. Moreover, this Law
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imposes a mandatory obligation for gas companies importing gas to Lithuania through gas
pipelines to procure 25% of their gas supplies from the LNG Terminal Facility.

Following the adoption of the Law on LNG Terminal, the NCCPE amended the Natural Gas
Transmission and Distribution Price Cap Calculation Methodology, introducing into the
Methodology principles for the calculation of the so-called LNGT funds, i.e. the LNGT surcharge
on the natural gas transmission price caps and adopted the Procedure for the Administration of
the Funds to Cover the Costs or Part Thereof Related to Installation and Operations of the LNG
Terminal, its Infrastructure and Connector, whereby the NCCPE obligated LD (as a licensed
natural gas transmission system operator) to collect, administrate and transfer the LNGT funds to
the LNGT funds beneficiary. By resolution as of 19 October 2012 the NCCPE set the total LNGT
funds amount for the year 2013 — LTL 114.1 million.

Licensing

The Law on Natural Gas stipulates that the activities of natural gas transmission, distribution and
supply carried out by the Company are subject to licensing. Licences are issued and the
supervision of the licensed activities is executed by the NCCPE. LD has been granted a licence to
engage in the natural gas transmission activities in all the administrative units of Lithuania. By the
natural gas distribution licence the Company is granted the right to engage in the gas distribution
activities in the territory of 41 municipalities (out of 60). The natural gas supply licence grants the
Company the right to engage in the natural gas supply business in the territory of the Republic of
Lithuania.

Pricing system and natural gas tariffs

Natural gas transmission and distribution service tariffs applicable to all customers are subject to
regulation. Price caps of the regulated service tariffs are set for a five-year regulation period and
by the NCCPE decision may be adjusted, however not more often than once a year and in cases
provided for by the Law on Natural Gas. The activity of natural gas supply is not subject to
regulation.

Specific natural gas transmission and distribution services tariffs are set by the Company on an
annual basis. Natural gas tariffs for household customers are set once in every six months. The
tariffs for households are submitted to the NCCPE for approval.

On 1 January 2012, new natural gas transmission and distribution service tariffs (set by the Board
of Directors of the Company and verified by the NCCPE) came into effect. As regards natural gas
tariffs to household customers, in Half 1 of 2012 they did not change, i.e. from 1 January 2012,
regardless of the gas imports price increase, the same tariffs as the ones that were in effect in
Half 2 of 2011 were further applied. Based on the experts’ forecasts, that the energy resource
prices would start decreasing, the Company’s Board of Directors decided not to raise tariffs for
household customers applicable in Half 1 of 2012.

As the forecast failed to come true, in Half 1 of 2012 alone, from the natural gas sale to household
customers the Company incurred a loss of approx. LTL 20 million, which accrued due to the
negative difference between the factual gas import price and the gas import price included into the
household customer tariff calculation.

In view of the fact that in 2012 gas import prices were further increasing, on 23 April 2012, the
Company’s Board of Directors adopted a decision on new natural gas tariffs for household
customers effective from 1 July 2012. In order to mitigate the price increase impact on household
customers, compensation of the losses through household tariffs for Half 2 of 2012 was not
included into the calculation of the tariffs. Compared to the tariffs that were in effect in Half 1 of
2012, the variable tariff component for all household customers was raised by on average 42-46
ct/m*. The constant tariff component remained unchanged. On 24 May 2012 these tariffs were
approved by the NCCPE.
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As regards natural gas prices for the non-household customers, these prices are subject to
monthly recalculations and depend on the changes in the gas imports prices. Natural gas import
price, in turn, depends on oil and gasoil prices in international market, the USD and EUR ratio set
by the European Central Bank and the actual calorific value of natural gas. Due to the very
significant increase in the energy resources prices, and also due to the decline in the value of
EUR against USD, in Half 1 of 2012, natural gas prices for the non-household customers have
been gradually rising, but since August of 2012, they started gradually decreasing.

The NCCPE by its Resolution No O3-330 as of 26 October 2012 set adjusted natural gas
transmission and distribution price caps of the Company effective from 1 January 2013. By the
same resolution the NCCPE also set the so-called LNG Terminal surcharge intended to finance
the costs of the LNG Terminal, its infrastructure and construction of connector in 2013, which will
have to be collected by the Company from the users of the gas transmission system.

On 9 November 2012, the Board of Directors of the Company set the concrete natural gas
transmission and distribution service tariffs as well as new natural gas tariffs for household
customers with effect from 1 January 2013. Depending on the market situation, the Company
plans to recover part of the revenue (that has not been received from the household customers in
2012) in 2013. On 22 November 2012, the prices and tariffs for the new period were approved by
the NCCPE.

For more detailed information on the LD natural gas service tariffs and gas tariffs for household
customers see the Company website www.dujos.lt.

Market

In 2012, there were five companies importing natural gas into Lithuania: LD, AB Achema, UAB
Dujotekana, UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné and UAB Haupas. In 2012, the total volume of
natural gas imported into Lithuania via system operated by LD amounted to 3.3 billion m®. UAB
Haupas did not use the Company’s Natural Gas System for its imports of natural gas.

Breakdown of natural gas imports to Lithuania, 2012

6.6% 0I4%

14.3%
: I 43.6%

35.1%

mAB Achema

LD

UAB Dujotekana

UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektring
mJAB Haupas®

* Data supplied by UAB Haupas.

In 2012, natural gas to household and non-household customers of Lithuania was supplied by the
following companies: LD, UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva, UAB Druskininky Dujos, AB agro firm
Josvainiai and UAB Intergas. UAB Dujotekana and UAB Haupas were supplying gas only to non-
household customers.

AB Achema and UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné were importing natural gas for their own
needs.
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LD market share, 2008-2012
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has implemented a Risk Management System which is a constituent part of LD
activities. The Risk Management Process is carried out according to a Methodology that has been
prepared by the Company. The Risk Management working group has been set up by the
Company to coordinate, monitor and supervise the risk management process. The risk
management activities are aimed at maintaining an adequate business process control level, at
minimizing the probability of occurrence of events that may cause risks and minimizing their
possible negative effects, at ensuring that risks would not exceed the levels acceptable to LD and
at implementing the Company’s objectives.

The Risk Management Process comprises the following steps: risk identification, analysis,
assessment and establishing the risk control measures, developing the Risk Management Action
Plan and implementation of measures of the Risk Management Action Plan, monitoring and
supervision of the Risk Management Process.

The main risks faced by the Company as it pursues its business are as follows: organizational
structure-related risk, regulation-related risk, competition-related risk, natural gas import price
fluctuation risk, credit risk, technology-related risk, macroeconomic factors-related risk.

The information on the gas import price fluctuation risk, the credit risk and other financial risks is
presented in the Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The organizational structure risk

The Company is currently implementing the legislative provisions regarding the unbundling of
natural gas activities (see Chapter “Natural gas business environment. Legal basis” presented
above), which are implemented by the Company according to the Description of the Method of the
Unbundling of the Natural Gas Activities and Control (including Action Plans) as approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company and coordinated with the NCCPE.

For this purpose, the Company has adopted an organizational structure, which ensures
coordination of the necessary actions and their timely execution. With a view to a proper
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preparation and submission of all the required documentation, the Company’s actions are
coordinated with the external controlling bodies well in advance.

Alongside with other factors, the Company timely restructuring will also depend on whether or not
all the authorities involved it this process will actually execute their duties related to the
unbundling of the Company's activities sticking to statutory deadlines.

The regulation-related risk

The regulation-related risk is linked to unfavourable changes in the legal environment and
decisions taken by the regulatory authorities.

The core activities of the Company are natural gas transmission, distribution and supply. These
activities are subject to licensing. The natural gas transmission and distribution prices and
investments in natural gas transmission and distribution systems are subject to state regulation.
The frequent changing of the applicable legal provisions and regulatory regime create uncertainty
of the business environment, thus aggravating the Company’s relations with its customers and
impeding its ability to plan for long-term.

The Company spares no effort to maintain constructive relations with the regulatory authorities
and to take an active part in the legal act drafting process.

The competition-related risk

In its activities the Company faces competition both in the Natural Gas Sector, and in the Fuel
(Energy) Sector.

In the Natural Gas Supply Sector, LD competes with other companies supplying natural gas. The
National Energy Strategy (Energy Independence Strategy) (hereinafter referred to as the “NES”)
provides for the construction by the end of the year 2014 a LNG Terminal Facility, which will
provide opportunities for the diversification of natural gas imports.

On 12 June 2012, the Seimas (Parliament) of the Republic of Lithuania adopted the Law on the
Liguefied Natural Gas Terminal, the provisions of which could adversely affect the Company's
results in the future.

LD competes with suppliers of alternative fuels: heavy fuel oil and bio fuel. The NES provides for
the increase of the share of renewable fuels in the primary energy balance at the expense of the
fossil fuels (mainly at the expense of natural gas). Also LD competes with heat, power, and other
energy companies operating in this sector (the end consumers of heating except the ones using
the district heating service may choose among a variety of ways of heating and energy suppliers).
The vast majority of the largest heat and power producing natural gas customers have dual-fuel
systems and may use these alternative fuels replacing natural gas without any additional
investments.

Energy produced by using renewable resources is bought up in the priority order, its production is
subsidized though the Public Service Obligations (PSO) mechanism.

In order to retain and expand its market share, to secure safe natural gas supplies to consumers,
to meet the customer service quality standard requirements that have been set, the Company
continuously implements gas system development projects, continuously carries out gas system
maintenance, repair and modernization works, improves its sales and marketing strategies,
carries out market research, upgrades its customer service and implements a consistent
programme for business process optimization and cost-cutting. LD consistently follows the
principles of transparency and fair competition in its business activities.
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The technology-related risk

The technical condition of gas systems owned by the Company is passable, but quite a few of the
Company's pipelines are 30-40 years old. One of the main objectives of the Company consists in
ensuring the safety and reliability of its gas systems. The Company implements this objective by:
e acting in strict compliance with the provisions of applicable legal acts, the applicable
construction, operation and maintenance rules, work execution procedures;
e ensuring a high technical and technological level of the gas systems;
e ensuring an adequate level of preparedness for accidents, emergencies and extreme
situations;
e improving the management of the operation and maintenance processes, improving the
organization of the maintenance and engineering supervision;
e using state-of-the-art information technologies;
e monitoring the technical condition of the gas systems and eliminating any defects that are
established;
e investigating, analyzing malfunctions, assessing any possible risks of accidents or
malfunctions and planning and implementing respective preventive measures;
e informing the public about the rules of safe behavior in the vicinity of gas pipelines and
measures for ensuring safety of gas consumption;
e attracting, training and retaining the necessary staff, ensuring their adequate competence
levels.

The macroeconomic factors-related risk

Lithuania’s general economic situation is having a respective impact on gas transportation and
sales volumes, on the natural gas system development and, accordingly, on the Company’s
activities results. The natural gas consumption downward trend still prevails, especially in the
electricity generation sector, and demand for investments in projects for the connection of new
gas consumers to the natural gas system is rather low.

It is difficult to predict with any certainty as to how exactly the Company’s financial situation will be
effectively impacted by the future developments of Lithuania’s macroeconomic situation. In the
opinion of the management, in the present circumstances, all the necessary measures to secure
the stability and development of the Company’s operations are being applied.

By employing respective debt-management measures that have been implemented at the
Company and due to active work with LD’s customers, the customer debt level is kept at the level
that is acceptable to the Company.

MAIN FEATURES OF THE GROUP’S INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK M ANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS RELATED TO DRAWING UP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA L STATEMENTS

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union. To ensure that
consolidated financial statements are prepared correctly and timely, LD has adopted the
Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual which regulates the principles, methods, and rules of
accounting and preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Group’s key performance indicators

12

2012 2011 2010
Performance indicators
Volume of transmitted natural gas, M m® 3,266.9 3,360.9 3,068.8
Volume of natural gas transit, M m* 2,167.4 2,043.6 1,387.2
Volume of distributed natural gas, M m° 982.1 1,066.1 1,167.9
Volume of natural gas sales, M m® 1,125.6 1,317.8 1,546.0
Number of customers that have concluded natural gas supply agreements as of the end of the
year, thousand
Household customers 550.3 548.2 546.2
Non-household customers 6.2 5.9 5.8
Length of gas pipelines operated, thousand km
Transmission pipelines 1.9 1.9 1.9
Distribution pipelines 8.2 8.1 8.1
Employees
Average number of employees 1,700 1,719 1,750
Group’s key financial indicators

2012 2011 2010
Financial results
Sales, M LTL 1,872.7 1,840.0 1,746.8
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA), M LTL LES0 213.9 245.2
Profit from operations, M LTL 69.2 122.1 146.2
Profit before tax, M LTL 70.7 104.3 148.9
Net profit, M LTL 74.5 95.8 159.5
Net cash flows from operating activities, M LTL 155.3 213.6 265.6
Investments, M LTL 158.3 62.3 178.5
Assets at the end of the year, M LTL 2,928.2 2,698.6 2,709.6
Equity at the end of the year, M LTL 2,057.8 2,055.3 2,079.6
Net financial debt -95.7 -123.6 -110.1
Profitability ratios
EBITDA margin, % 9.8 11.6 14.0
Profit from operations margin, % 3.7 6.6 8.4
Profit before tax margin, % 3.8 5.7 8.5
Net profit margin, % 4.0 5.2 9.1
Average return-on-assets ratio (ROA), % 2.7 35 6.1
Average return-on-equity ratio (ROE), % 3.6 4.6 7.8
Return on capital employed (ROCE), % 3.1 5.0 7.0
Liquidity
Overall liquidity 1.9 1.3 1.3
Quick ratio 1.6 1.1 1.1
Leverage
Equity to asset ratio, % 70.3 76.2 76.8
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Financial debt to equity ratio, % 8.9 0.2 0.3
Net financial debt to equity ratio, % -4.7 -6.2 -5.3

Market value ratios

Price-earnings ratio (P/E) 12.06 10.34 7.41
Basic earnings per share, LTL 0.16 0.20 0.34
Dividend payment ratio, % 291.3* 75.2 75.2
Dividends per share for the current year, LTL 0.46* 0.15 0.26

* Proposed for the approval at the General Meeting of Shareholders, assessing redistribution of the reserves formed in
previous years.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 prepared by the
Company also include the financial results of its subsidiary UAB Palangos Perlas and the UAB
GET Baltic, a joint-venture controlled jointly with the Finnish gas company Gasum Oy. The
overview of the financial results of AB Lietuvos Dujos Group (hereinafter referred to as “the
Group”) is presented below.

Revenues

In 2012, the revenues of the Group, compared with 2011, increased by 1.8% (by LTL 33.3 million)
and amounted to LTL 1,879.2 million. The sales accounted for the largest part of the revenues
(99.7%).

The increase of the sales (by LTL 32.7 million or 1.8%) was caused by the increase in the
revenues in the supply activity (from LTL 1,490.8 million to LTL 1,526.6 million or by 2.4%), the
increase of which, just as it was the case last year, was determined by the increase in the gas
sales price. The gas sales price increase, in turn, came as a result of the increase in the natural
gas imports price due to the oil and oil product price rise on the global markets. The gas sales
volumes declined further. The gas transmission revenues (including transit) decreased by 3.6%,
from LTL 175.5 million to LTL 169.3 million due to the lower gas volumes transmitted to
customers of Lithuania. The revenues from gas transit increased by 7.4%. The distribution
volumes also declined, but the revenues increased by 2.2%, from LTL 171.1 million to LTL 174.8
million, when from 1 January 2012, the adjusted distribution price cap went up by 5.0% and the
concrete distribution service prices by customer groups were also raised.

Sales structure, 2012

Transmission
Other (incl. transit)
0.1% 9.1% Distribution
9.3%

Supply
81.5%

Expenses

The Group’s expenses, compared to 2011, increased by 5.0% (LTL 86.3 million) and amounted to
LTL 1,810.0 million. Increase of expenses was determined by the increase in the natural gas cost
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by 5.7% (LTL 81.9 million) due to the higher natural gas import price. In the total expenses
breakdown, cost of natural gas accounted for 83.9%.

In 2012, the remaining relatively fixed costs totalled LTL 292.2 million and accounted for 16.1% of
total expenses, which represents an increase of LTL 4.4 million (1.5%). The largest rise was in the
depreciation expenses in connection with the investments in individual infrastructure facilities (LTL
2.5 million or 2.3%). In 2012, the Company continued with the implementation of efficiency raising
policies — improvement of the organizational structure, consistent implementation of cost
optimization policies.

Structure of expenses, 2012

Taxes (other than

Repairs and income tax)

maintenance Depreciation and 0.6%  Other expenses
2.6% amortization 1.1%

6.3%

Payroll and related
social security taxes
5.5%

Cost of natural gas
83.9%

Activity results

The decrease of the profit before tax from LTL 104.3 million (in 2011) to LTL 70.7 million (in
2012), or by 32.2%, was mainly determined by the worse results of the regulated transportation
activity. The supply activity result also decreased. The earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of 2012 also decreased accordingly — by LTL 30.5 million
(14.3%) — and amounted to LTL 183.4 million (in 2011 it amounted to LTL 213.9 million).

In 2012, the net profit decreased by LTL 21.3 million and amounted to LTL 74.5 million. The net
profit reflects the income tax exemption for investments as provided for by the Law on Income Tax
— LTL 14.3 million, including the deferred income tax assets formed on the unused income tax
exemption balance (in the net profit of 2011 the income tax exemption amounted to LTL 10.0
million).

The Company is one of the biggest tax payers in Lithuania. According to the State Tax
Inspectorate data of 2012, for a third consecutive year LD was the fourth-biggest tax payer in
Lithuania. Over the past 5 years, the tax amount paid by the Company to the state and the
municipality budgets and the state social security fund totalled LTL 1.9 billion. Out of it, dividends
paid to the state, which controls 17.7% of the Company’s shares, amounted to LTL 63.4 million.
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Investments

Since the privatization back in 2002, the Company has invested in the construction of new gas
systems, reconstruction of gas systems and modernization a total amount of LTL 1.3 billion.

In 2012, the Group’s investments totalled LTL 158.3 million, i.e. by LTL 96.0 million (or 2.5 times)
more than compared to 2011. In 2012, 65.1% of the total investment amount was invested in the
construction of new gas system facilities, whereas 34.1% were invested in the reconstruction of
gas systems and modernization and 0.8% was the Company's financial investment in the
incorporation of UAB GET Baltic (which was set up together with a Finnish gas company). UAB
GET Baltic is intended to operate as a natural gas exchange.

In 2012, the largest share of investments (LTL 81.7 million, of which LTL 33.9 million were
covered by the EU Structural Funds assistance funds) was investments in the construction of the
Sakiai—Klaipéda Gas Transmission Pipeline. The year 2012 marked the completion of the
construction of the section of this pipeline from Jurbarkas to the gas pipeline branch to Taurage.

Compared to 2011, the Company'’s investments in the development of its gas distribution system
increased by more than 74% — to LTL 21.3 million, of which LTL 9.2 million were directed to the
enhancement of the distribution system safety and supply reliability. In 2012, the Company’s
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investments in the connection of new customers to the natural gas grid remained at the level of
2011.

Investments, M LTL
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Assets

Over the year 2012, the value of assets increased by 8.5% (by LTL 229.6 million) and at the end
of the year amounted to LTL 2,928.2 million. As of end of the year 2012, the non-current assets
accounted for 80.5%, and the current assets accounted for 19.5% of the total assets of the Group.

Over the year 2012, the value of the non-current assets increased by 1.7% (by LTL 39.9 million),
which came as a result of significant investments. The value of the current assets increased by
49.9% (LTL 189.7 million) mainly due to the higher short-term investments, which increased by
LTL 133.4 million, i.e. from LTL 32.0 million to LTL 165.4 million. Short-term investments are liquid
3 months—1 year investments in money market instruments, such as term deposits or securities
(bonds).

Equity and liabilities

The Group’s equity increased by 0.1% (by LTL 2.5 million) and at the end of the year amounted to
LTL 2,057.8 million. The equity at the end of the reporting period accounted for 70.3% of the total
assets of the Group.

The liabilities increased by 35.3% (by LTL 227.0 million) and at the end of the year amounted to
LTL 870.3 million. Over 2012, the financial debt of the Group increased by LTL 177.8 million: from
LTL 4.3 million (end 2011) to LTL 182.1 million (end 2012). The Company received a loan for
refinancing of financial liabilities and financing of the activity of the Company’s transmission
activity, which, in accordance with the requirements of legal acts, will be unbundled from AB
Lietuvos Dujos by establishing a new transmission system operator company.
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Financial debt, M LTL
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Cash flows

The Group’s cash flows from its operating activities decreased by LTL 58.3 million (27.3%) and
amounted to LTL 155.3 million.

Cash flows from operating activities, M LTL
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For detailed information on the financial results of the Group, see the Consolidated and Parent
Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Company’s research and development activities are aimed at securing adequate capacities
of the natural gas systems, at economic and safe operation and maintenance of the natural gas
systems, meeting the customers’ demand, securing an adequate level of services provided to the
Company’s customers and environmental protection.

With these aims in mind, we are engaged in the research into internal diagnostics (intelligent
pigging) of natural gas pipelines as well as research into technical condition of infrastructure
facilities, environmental protection, market development and other fields of LD activities.

A pilot project has been implemented for a remote metering of natural gas consumption by LD
household gas customers: installation of the necessary software enabled continuous monitoring of
data on gas consumption by 125 household gas consumers. The analysis of the results of the
pilot project will serve as a basis for a decision regarding further development prospects.
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The internal condition of 227 km of gas transmission pipelines was checked by using the
intelligent pigging procedures. Individual sections of the gas distribution pipelines were subjected
to check the condition of the metal of these pipes.

Drawing on the research findings and the gas system condition assessment results, the Company
carries out respective works for the reconstruction and modernization of its gas systems, prepares
and implements market development investment projects.

In co-operation with the Polish Gas Transmission System Operator GAZ-SYSTEM S.A. LD
participates in the preparation of a Feasibility Study of the Gas Interconnection, the aim of which
is to establish the demand for gas transmission capacities in this direction, the infrastructure
facilities that are necessary, the routing of the gas pipeline, to carry out an exhaustive
environmental, economic, financial and legal analysis (due diligence). For the preparation of the
Feasibility Study the European Union financial assistance according to the EU TEN-E programme
has been granted. The EU financial assistance covers 50% of the costs related to the preparation
of the Feasibility Study, whereas the balancing amount is financed in equal parts by LD and the
GAZ-SYSTEM S.A.

BUSINESS PLANS AND FORECASTS

Special attention is paid to a proper and timely implementation of the provisions related to the
restructuring of the Company laid down in the Law on Natural Gas, the Law on the
Implementation of the Law on Natural Gas as well as other legislation. Stage 1 of the
restructuring — establishment of a TSO company — is scheduled for completion on 1 August 2013.
For details see other chapters of the present Consolidated Annual Report.

It is planned that in 2013 natural gas volume transportation to customers of Lithuania via the gas
transmission system of LD will amount to approx. 2.9 BCM.

In 2013 there are plans to connect approx. 2.1 thousand new customers to the natural gas grid,
but this number may be corrected by future developments in the economic situation of Lithuania.
It is planned that the Company’s investments in the construction of new gas systems in 2013 will
be of a level comparable to the one of 2012. More detailed information on the prospective
development of the gas transmission system is presented in the Natural Gas Transmission
System Operator’'s Ten Year (2013-2022) Network Development Plan, which has been submitted
for public consultation.

In 2013 there are plans to complete the implementation of a project that is part of the National
Energy Strategy — the construction of the Sakiai-Klaipéda Gas Transmission Pipeline section
from Tauragé to Klaipéda. In is estimated that the total value of the gas transmission pipeline from
Jurbarkas to Klaipéda will amount to approx. LTL 165.0 million. The project implementation is co-
financed with the European Union Structural Fund grant (up to LTL 77.06 million). The first section
of this gas transmission pipeline of national importance, i.e. pipeline the section to the town of
Jurbarkas, was constructed back in 2007 and is already fully operational — supplies gas to gas
consumers of this town. 2012 saw the completion of the construction of the gas pipeline branch
from Jurbarkas to Tauragé. This gas transmission pipeline will connect to the grid the LNG
terminal facility, which is currently being constructed by AB Klaipédos Nafta.

In 2011, in co-operation with the Polish Gas Transmission System Operator GAZ-SYSTEM S.A.
the Poland-Lithuania Gas Interconnector Business Case Analysis Study was prepared, which
presented comprehensive information about gas markets of Poland and the Baltic States. In
continuation of the works that were started earlier, in Quarter 1 of 2013, there are plans to prepare
a Feasibility Study of the Poland-Lithuania Gas Interconnector. The results of the Feasibility Study
will constitute a basis for further steps with regard to the implementation of this Project.
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In 2013, the Company also intends to continue with the implementation of projects aimed at
raising the operational efficiency and cost optimization.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Information on the observance of the Code of Govern  ance

The Company has disclosed the information regarding the observance of the provisions of the
Code of Governance. All the information is available at the Company website www.dujos.It and
the Central Database of Regulated Information www.crib.lt.

Shareholders and shares

The authorized capital of the Company consists of 469,068,254 ordinary registered shares with
par value of LTL 1 each. In 2012, the par value of a share did not change. All the shares are fully
paid.

AB Lietuvos Dujos shares entitle to equal property and non-property rights. In accordance with the
Bylaws of LD, decisions on issuing new shares and on acquisition of own shares shall be adopted
exclusively by a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders of LD.

In 2012, the value of the authorized capital and the structure of shareholders did not change.

Structure of LD shareholders as of 31 Dec 2012

6.3%

37.1%

B E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH (Germany)
B OAO Gazprom (Russia)
Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania
Small shareholders

Number of shares held, pcs / share in the

SITEED EEr authorized capital, LTL

E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH (Germany) 182,534,384
OAO Gazprom (Russia) 173,847,696
Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania 83,030,367
Small shareholders 29,655,807

Total: 469,068,254

E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH is a holding company which is a part of concern E.ON AG.
E.ON AG is one of the world’s largest electricity, gas, utility and renewable energy companies.

OAO Gazprom is a global energy company engaged in geological exploration, production,
transmission, storage, processing and marketing of gas and other hydrocarbons, as well as
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production and supply of electricity and heat power. OAO Gazprom possesses the world’s largest
confirmed natural gas reserves.

The Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania is a state institution in charge of the energy
sector public administration functions (delegated to it by laws and other legislation) and the
implementation of state policies in the energy sector.

In 2012, LD did not acquire its own shares and it did not make any transactions related either to
the acquisition or disposal of its own shares.

As of 31 December 2012, LD was controlled by 2,803 shareholders holding LD shares by the right
of ownership; the majority of them were small shareholders.

The shareholders of the Company E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH, OAO Gazprom and the
Republic of Lithuania, whose shares are held in trust by the Ministry of Energy of the Republic of
Lithuania, together control 93.7% of the stock of LD, have the controlling interest and have a
casting vote when taking decisions at the General Meeting of Shareholders. The aforesaid major
shareholders have concluded a shareholders’ agreement setting out the shareholders’ common
aims related to LD activities. The agreement is confidential.

The Company’s shareholders, E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH, OAO Gazprom and the
Republic of Lithuania, whose shares are held in trust by the Ministry of Energy of the Republic of
Lithuania, are not subject to any securities disposal restrictions except the ones provided for in the
shares purchase-sale (privatization) agreements.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there exist no shareholders arrangements that might
serve as grounds for the securities disposal restrictions and/or voting right restrictions except the
arrangements provided for by the shares purchase-sale (privatization) agreements and the
shareholders’ agreement.

There exists one important agreement in which the Company is involved as a party and that
would be changed or discontinued should there occur a change in the Company’s control. The
agreement is confidential.

Data about trading in the Issuer’s securities on th e regulated markets

The Company’s shares are traded on the regulated market; they are quoted on the Main List of
the stock exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

Main data about LD shares

ISIN code LT0000116220
Abbreviation LDJ1L
Number of shares (pcs) 469,068,254

In 2012, the turnover of the trading in LD shares amounted to LTL 8.6 million (2011:
LTL 11.7 million). Through the transactions that were concluded 4,194,387 shares were disposed
of (2011: 5,014,082).

In 2012, after the slump of 2011, the stock markets of all the three Baltic States recorded a
growth. In 2012, the OMX Baltic Benchmark Pl and OMXV indices of the stock exchange
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius (reflecting stock price developments of securities of all companies listed on
the Baltic States and Vilnius stock exchanges) showed respective rises by 20.6% and 18.8% (in
2011, there was a drop of 21.8% and 27.1%). Meawhile, the value of LD shares was still
decreasing, and in 2012 it showed a decrease of 6.7% (in 2011: a drop of 18.0%).



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT 2012 21

Share price dynamics at NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, 2010-20 12

Period

2012 2011 2010
Highest price per share, LTL 2.244 2.828 2.555
Lowest price per share, LTL 1.830 1.730 1.970
Weighted average price per share, LTL 2.040 2.336 2.232
Price per share as of end of the period, LTL 1.930 2.068 2.521
II\_/I_?[ket capitalization as of end of the period, M 905.4 970 1 1,182.3
Market capitalization of minority shareholders as of
end of the period, M LTL L Hat [t
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The OMX Baltic Benchmark Pl and OMXV indices are total return indices that include all the
shares listed on the Main and Secondary lists of the stock exchange. The indices do not include
the share prices of companies where one shareholder controls 90% or more of the shares. The
aim of the indices is to reflect the current situation and developments on the Baltic States and
Vilnius stock exchanges.
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Dividends

In recent years, the Company has been pursuing a consistent dividend payout policy and every
year it appropriates part of the profit to the payout of dividends. Assessing redistribution of the
reserves formed in previous years, it is proposed to the payout of dividends a total amount of LTL
217.0 million, or 46.3 Lithuanian cents per share (for the year 2011: LTL 72.0 million, or 15.3
cents per share).

LD announceddividends, net profit and dividends per share
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Dividends, M LTL —ae— Dividends per share, LTL —ae— Net profit per share, LTL

* Proposed for the approval at the General Meeting of Shareholders, assessing redistribution of the reserves formed in
previous years.

Agreements with intermediaries of public trading in securities

At the beginning of the year 2012, the Company’s securities accounting as well as the accounting
of securities-related services were provided by AB FM] Finasta. The contract with the aforesaid
company (originally concluded on 26 November 2003) was terminated on 31 March 2012.

On 16 March 2012, LD concluded an agreement with AB SEB Bankas regarding the accounting of
securities issued by the Company and the provision of services related to securities accounts,
with effect from 1 April 2012.

Company Particulars of AB FM|] Finasta

Company code 122570630
Licence category B
B087 (on 28 March 2003 issued by the Securities
Brokerage company’s license number Commission of the Republic of Lithuania, as subsequently
amended)
Registered office Maironio g. 11, Vilnius, Lithuania

+370 5 278 6833, +370 5 278 6844, short telephone
number 1813

E-mail address info@finasta.lt

Website www.finasta.lt

Telephone number

Company Particulars of AB SEB B ankas

Company code 112021238

Banking licence No 2 (on 29 November 1990 issued by the Bank of Lithuania,
as subsequently amended)

Registered office Gedimino pr. 12, Vilnius, Lithuania
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Telephone number +370 5 268 2800, short telephone number 1518
E-mail address info@seb.It
Website www.seb. |t

Management structure

The Company is a vertically integrated enterprise. The activities of the Company are governed by
the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania, the Law on Securities of the Republic of
Lithuania, the Bylaws of the Company as well as other applicable legal acts of the Republic of
Lithuania. The competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company, the
shareholders rights and their implementation procedure are as prescribed by the Law on
Companies and the Bylaws of the Company.

The Company has implemented a functional unbundling of its gas transportation and supply
activities: the technical functions in the gas transmission, distribution and supply activities and the
commercial functions in the transportation and supply activities were unbundled; nevertheless, the
Company’s general administrative and supporting functions as well as the planning and pricing
functions in the transmission and distribution activities still remain integrated. In implementation of
provisions of the Law on Natural Gas and other legal acts, since 2002 the Company has been
keeping separate accounts for natural gas transmission, distribution, supply and other activities.

The Company has five natural gas distribution branches in regions of Lithuania: Vilnius, Kaunas,
Klaipéda, Siauliai and Panevézys.

The Bylaws of the Company provide for a possibility of amending the Bylaws by a decision of the
general meeting of shareholders taken by a majority vote that has to be no less than 2/3 of all the
votes carried by the shares held by the shareholders attending the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

The Bylaws provide for the following governing bodies:
- The Board of Directors,
- The Chief Executive Officer — General Manager.

According to the Bylaws, the Company’s Board of Directors consists of 5 (five) members elected
for a period of three years in accordance with procedure provided for in the Law on Companies.
Members of the Board of Directors elect the Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of
the Board of Directors and his Deputy are elected for a period of two years by rotation. Members
of the Board of Directors may be re-elected for another term. The powers of the Members of the
Board of Directors and the fields of activity of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are as
prescribed by the Law on Companies and the Bylaws of the Company, there are no exceptions
with regard to any powers of the Members of the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Office
subject to additional notification.

In accordance with the Law on Audit, since 2009, the Company has an Audit Committee in place.
The authority, powers and duties of the Audit Committee are as provided for by the regulations of
the formation and activities of this supervisory body of the Company and are in compliance with
legal provisions. The term of office of the Audit Committee coincides with the term of office of the
Board of Directors by which the members of the Audit Committee were nominated. The main
functions of the Audit Committee consist in the analysis of the correctness of the accounting
methods applied by the Company, in monitoring the independence of the external audit company
and the audit process, in the analysis of the efficiency of the internal control, the internal audit and
the risk management systems.
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Organization Chart

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

AUDIT COMMITTEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL MANAGER

CENTRE OF ADMINISTRATION AND
GAS TRANSMISSION

BRANCHES .
(VILNIUS, KAUNAS, KLAIP EDA,

SIAULIAIL, PANEV EZYS)

Functions: Functions: Functions:
transmission system supply (gas imports, distribution system operator
operator, gas transit gas sales to

household and non-

household

customers)

Composition of the Board of Directors from 20 April 2011 until 23 April 2012

No Full name Position title Start and end of term

Members of the Board of Directors:

1 Dr Peter Frankenberg Chairman of the Board of Directors* April 2010-June 2012

2 Dr Valery Golubev DLy Crafme @ iie ) o April 2010-April 2013
Directors

3. Uwe Fip Member of the Board of Directors April 2010-April 2013

4 Kirill Seleznev Member of the Board of Directors April 2010-April 2013

5, Kestutis Zilénas Member of the Board of Directors December 2011—-April 2013

* Chairman of the Board of Directors and his Deputy are elected by rotation for a two-year term.

Composition of the Board of Directors from 23 April 2012

No Full name Position title Start and end of term

Members of the Board of Directors:

1. Dr Peter Frankenberg* Chairman of the Board of Directors*** : April 2010-June 2012

2. Dr Achim Saul** Chairman of the Board of Directors*** | July 2012—April 2013
Deputy Chairman of the Board of . .

3 Dr Valery Golubev Directors*** April 2010-April 2013

4 Uwe Fip Member of the Board of Directors April 2010-April 2013

5, Kirill Seleznev Member of the Board of Directors April 2010-April 2013

6. Kestutis Zilénas Member of the Board of Directors December 2011—April 2013

* Resigned with effect from 30 June 2012.

** Elected member of the Board of Directors with effect from 1 July 2012, elected Chairman with effect from 4 July
2012.

*** Chairman of the Board of Directors and his Deputy are elected by rotation for a two-year term.

In 2012, tantiemes paid to the members of the Board of Directors totalled LTL 524 thousand,
averaging LTL 104.8 thousand per member of the Board of Directors.
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Information on the start and end of the term of the Audit Committee

No Full name Position title Place of Start and end of term
employment

Audit Committee:

UAB JK GERIMUY

NAMAI,
1. Juozas Kabaginskas Independent UAB JKP Namai, April 2010-April 2013
member ..
J. Kabasinskas
Consultancy
2. Agne Zigitte Member AB Lietuvos Dujos April 2010-April 2013

Information on the start and end of the term of the top executives

No Full name Position title Start and end of term

Top executives:

From 28 June 2002;

1. Viktoras Valentukevicius General Manager April 2010-April 2013*

Deputy General Manager — Director

2. Dr Joachim Hockertz
of Commerce

From 1 July 2002

Deputy General Manager — Technical

3. Jonas Janiulionis )
Director

From 13 September 2002

Deputy General Manager — Director

4, Vladimir Obukhov for Gas Purchase

From 3 May 2004

(1 January 2004-1 January
2008: Chief Financial Officer)
From 1 January 2008

Deputy General Manager — Chief

5 Giedré Glinskiené Financial Officer

* For the term in office of the Board of Directors by which he was appointed.

In 2012, payouts to the top executives of the Company totalled LTL 2,611 thousand, averaging
LTL 522.2 thousand per top executive.

Participation of members of the governing bodies in the authorized share capital
Participation in the capital of the Issuer

Full name Position title Share of the Share of the
authorized capital voting rights held,
held, % %

Board of Directors (as of 31 December 2012)

Chairman of the Board of
* —_— —
Dr Peter Frankenberg Directors

. Chairman of the Board of
A m Kk — —
Dr Achim Saul Directors

Deputy Chairman of the
DI VElleR; ey Board of Directors B B

. Member of the Board of
Uwe Fip . — —
Directors

. Member of the Board of
Kirill Seleznev . — _
Directors

s Member of the Board of
Kestutis Zilénas . - _
Directors
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Audit Committee (as of 31 December 2012)

Juozas Kabasinskas Independent member - -

Agné Zigiaté Member 0.000 0.000

Top executives (as of 31 December 2012)

Viktoras Valentukeviius CEO - General Manager 0.013 0.013

Dr Joachim Hockertz Dgputy General Manager — = =
Director of Commerce

Jonas Janiulionis DEMUE7 (EERERE [ EEEET = 0.001 0.001

Technical Director

Vladimir Obukhov

Deputy General Manager —
Director for Gas Purchase

Giedré Glinskiené

Deputy General Manager —
Chief Financial Officer

* Resigned with effect from 30 June 2012.

** Elected member of the Board of Directors with effect from 1 July 2012, elected Chairman with effect from 4 July

2012.

The subsidiary and the joint venture

26

AB Lietuvos Dujos is a shareholder of two other companies. LD 100% controls UAB Palangos
Perlas and jointly with the Finnish company Gasum Oy controls UAB GET Baltic.

Companies

Company Particulars

UAB Palangos Perlas

UAB GET Baltic

Legal form

Private limited company

Date and place of registration

19 January 1998
State Enterprise Centre of

13 September 2012
State Enterprise Centre of

Registers Registers
Company code 152681177 302861178
Registered office Birutés g. 8, Klalpeda, Aguonq.g. 24,. Vilnius,

Lithuania Lithuania

Telephone number

+370 46 48 45 69

+370 5 236 0000

Fax number

+370 46 48 45 56

+370 5 236 0001

E-mail address

info@getbaltic.It

Website

www.getbaltic.It

Authorised capital

LTL 9,703,763

LTL 2,000,000

Share of the authorised capital
controlled by LD

100%

66%

Average number of employees in 2012

15

UAB Palangos Perlas

In 2012, the authorized capital of UAB Palangos Perlas did not change, it is divided into 9,703,763
ordinary registered shares with par value of LTL 1 (one) each. The main areas of the subsidiary’s
activities: hotel and other board and lodging services, organization of seminars and conferences.
In June of 2012 UAB Palangos Perlas sold its main asset item the Zydroji Liepsna hotel in
Palanga. Since following the sale of the main asset item of the LD subsidiary UAB Palangos
Perlas — the hotel in Palanga — the scope of business activities of UAB Palangos Perlas became
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considerably narrower, therefore, on 30 January 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company
decided to subject the aforesaid subsidiary to liquidation.

UAB GET Baltic

End 2011 the Finnish gas company Gasum Oy and LD engaged in a cooperation aimed at the
incorporation of a joint venture to carry out functions of a natural gas market operator and to
organize trade at a gas exchange set up thereby. The long-term goal of the cooperation consists
in the formation of a regional natural gas exchange covering Lithuania, Latvia, Estonia and
Finland, and the integration of the regional gas market. On 13 September 2012, the joint venture
was registered with the Register of Legal Entities. The authorized capital of UAB GET Baltic
consists of 2,000,000 ordinary shares (par value of each share is LTL 1). The ownership structure
of the joint venture UAB GET Baltic is as follows: LD owns 66% and Gasum Oy owns 34%. On 9
November 2012 the NCCPE issued a natural gas market operator’s license to UAB GET Baltic.
20 December 2012 marked the adoption of the Regulation of the Natural Gas Exchange of UAB
GET Baltic, which is a document laying down the principles and rules of the trade on the Natural
Gas Exchange and it was the last formal element that is necessary for the Exchange to become
operational. In January of 2013 the trading at the gas exchange took off.

Transactions of associated parties

The information is presented in the Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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The Company’s Natural Gas Transmission and Distribu  tion System

Vil Ty £, a0
,.-.«'"~:'-f'/ : o LT L
Mazeikiai  d Naujoji o I S
; Akmené  / joniskis ) Birgai T e
- | Telsiai ~ [Kursenai - ~
Palanga  Plunge © o Pakruojis Pasvalys b
Q¢ S o " ‘.’\ ; ‘\‘*-\
Klaipéda ¢ Siauliai ; C g “\.{\
\ o0 : Rietavas Raduviliskis -”;, D~
\G\argzdal ° Seduva” Panevézys Visaginaso\"""i
< ]
NS¢ 5 Utena 4
s «Silale : . : . o
N Ramygala {
L &ilute Sel Kedainiai AP
. , . o
; Ukmergé S
; _\‘.‘Iaul‘age‘ erarkas ] Jonava \ . - P o
e S > Sirvintos ?
& 1 Sakiai o T y
o o = & \[9_Jauniunai -
NP ——g 0> < -
3 3 Q emenciné
K Kazly Ruda 3
& Prienai Elektrén s BELARUS
7\,\;, NGR w ‘ ON J o " Trak II.IS""
- RU N FEDERATION b bs! O J
{ o a O /
} Marijampolé
x".\ = fe)
S 'Z?w Alytus
LANL \ 5 Druskininkai
‘\"*w.»“% 5“*’\“1._.--" "'A‘-'\“,\"_J/ 4
e OAas transmission pipelines o Gas distribution station (projected)
Maior gas distribution pivelines i? Major towns connected to the natural gas
| J g p p System
m ; ; 0] Towns connected to the natural gas
Gas metering stations
system
E . D) Towns not connected to the natural gas
Gas compressor stations
system
O Gas distribution stations == m=m Cas pipelines (projected)
— O3S system controlled by other
companies

Core business activity of the Company:

- Transmission: transportation of natural gas via gas transmission system mostly comprised of
high-pressure pipelines, except for the production process pipeline network and part of the high-
pressure gas pipelines mainly used for the local distribution of natural gas, designed for the
delivery of natural gas to consumers, except for gas supply.

- Distribution: transportation of natural gas via gas distribution pipelines, designed for the
delivery of natural gas to consumers, except for the supply.

- Supply: gas selling and/or reselling to customers and gas delivery to the natural gas system.

Gas transmission  Gas distribution ~ Gas distribution Gas metering Gas compressor
pipelines pipelines stations stations stations

1.9 thou km 8.2 thou km 65 3 2
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TRANSMISSION OF NATURAL GAS

In 2012, the volumes of natural gas transmitted to the customers of Lithuania via the transmission
system totalled 3,266.9 million m®. Compared to 2011, the natural gas transmission volumes
decreased by 2.8%. The decrease in the natural gas transmission volumes was determined by
the lower gas volumes consumed by energy companies.

The natural gas transmission and, accordingly, the distribution and supply volumes of 2012
decreased mainly due to the lower gas consumption by the heat and power generation plants,
which came as a result of the increase in the use of alternative fuels, the electricity production
quota reductions and a more economical consumption of gas. The Company has fully complied
with its obligations to consumers under the gas purchase and transportation service contracts that
were concluded with customers. LD imported 35.1% of total natural gas volumes imported to
Lithuania. In implementation of the EU legislation on Third Party Access to natural gas networks,
LD transported to third parties 2,141.3 million m® of natural gas or 64.9% of the total natural gas
volumes consumed in Lithuania.

Natural gas transmission volumes, MCM
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Transit

In 2012, the natural gas transit volumes to the Kaliningrad Region of Russian Federation totalled
2,167.4 million m®, which represents an increase of 6.1% yly.

Pursuant to legal acts, the assets and expenses of the transit activity have been unbundled from
the ones of the regulated gas transmission activity since 2005. The transit activity has no effect
whatsoever on the prices of the natural gas transmission service applicable to gas consumers of
Lithuania.

Transit of natural gas to Kaliningrad Region of RF, MCM
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Investments in the transmission system

In 2012, investments in the construction of new gas transmission systems and pipeline system
development totalled LTL 81.7 million (2011: LTL 0.2 million).

In 2012, the Company continued with the implementation of a major investment project included
into in the National Energy Strategy — the construction of the Sakiai—Klaipéda Gas Transmission
Pipeline. In 2012 a 35 km gas pipeline section from Jurbarkas to Tauragé was constructed. Since
the start of the implementation of the project, the investments in this gas pipeline section totaled
LTL 34.1 million, of which LTL 32.1 million were the investments made in 2012. Another
LTL 49.6 million in 2012 have already been invested in the construction of the gas pipeline section
from Tauragé to Klaipéda and the Klaipéda Gas Distribution Station No 2. Since the inception of
the Sakiai—Klaipéda project LD has already invested in this project a total amount of
LTL 119.5 million.

Investments in the reconstruction of the gas transmission system totalled LTL 25.9 million (2011.:
LTL 29.4 million).

With a view to promoting the development of the internal market of the Baltic States and with a
view to enhancing the throughput capacity of the Lithuania—Latvia Interconnector, In Quarter 4 of
2009 a joint Lithuanian—Latvian project was launched, for the implementation of which a 50% EU
co-financing was approved. The project is scheduled for completion in Quarter 1 of 2013. With a
view to enhancing the safety and reliability of the gas transmission system with the financial
assistance of the EU the following main works were carried out:
e As part of the reconstruction of the cathodic protection system, 2 couplings and 3 cathodic
protection stations were installed:;
e At the Panevézys Gas Compressor Station works for the modernization of the gas
compressors air supply systems, modernization of the operational parameters control
systems and modernization of the valve units at the line block valve sites were continued.
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The Company also carried out other main works:

Works for the reconstruction of GDSs were continued according to the plan. In 2012, the
Girininkai GDS, Alksnupiai GDS and Raguva GDS were fully reconstructed and the
MaiSiagala GDS, Geguziné GDS and Taujénai GDS were started to be reconstructed. At
present, out of the total 65 GDSs, 58 ones are either new or have been subjected to major
overhauls;

Installation of 3 line block valve remote control systems (SCADA) and modernization of 2
line block valve units has been completed;

Installation of an intelligent pig launcher and receiver on the Minsk—Vilnius—Vievis Gas
Transmission Pipeline and an intelligent pig launcher on the Vilnius—Kaliningrad Gas
Transmission Pipeline and works for the preparation of the gas pipeline for the intelligent
pigging procedures;

Works (in accordance with the schedule) for the reconstruction of the gas pipeline cathodic
protection system equipment;

Works for the modernization of the telemetry, SCADA and telecommunication systems
and the gas metering equipment.

Procurement of equipment for the Dispatch Centre and the new Server Room, which will
be used by the new Transmission System Operator company.

Maintenance of the transmission system

With a view to ensuring the reliability, efficiency and safety of the transmission pipelines,
operations the gas repair and maintenance works that had been scheduled for the period were
duly executed.

In 2012, the intelligent pigging procedures of Minsk—Vilnius Gas Transmission Pipeline (67 km
section) and the Vilnius—Kaliningrad Gas Transmission Pipeline (two lines: 84 km and 81 km long)
were carried out. The defects that were established as a result of these procedures are being
eliminated.

DISTRIBUTION OF NATURAL GAS

In 2012, the Company’s gas volume distribution via its natural gas distribution system totalled
982.1 million m*, which represents a drop of 7.9% yly.
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Natural gas distribution volumes, MCM
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Natural gas distribution to the customers structure , MCM
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Investments in the distribution system

In 2012, the investments in the construction of new gas distribution systems totalled LTL 21.3
million (2011: LTL 12.2 million); 84.4 km of new distribution pipelines were constructed. In 2012,
2.2 thousand new customers were connected to the natural gas system (2011: 1.9 thousand). The
year 2012 marked the implementation of a major investment project aimed at securing safety and
reliability of the natural gas distribution systems as well as supply of natural gas to customers in
the town and district of Kaunas — the construction of the Girininkai GDS—Rokai—-Garliava Gas
Distribution Pipeline, total investments amounted to LTL 8.6 million (of which in 2012:
LTL 8.5 million). The implementation of the project kicked off in 2011.

In 2012, investments in the reconstruction of the distribution system totalled LTL 11.3 million
(2011: LTL 7.7 million). Of this total, the largest amount (LTL 6.2 million) was invested in the
reconstruction of the distribution pipelines: 14.8 km of gas distribution lines were reconstructed, of
which 5.8 km were reconstructed using the method of insertion of new polyethylene pipes into the
old steel ones.

The investments in the gas pressure regulating stations totaled LTL 2.0 million. The technological
equipment was modernized at 4 stationary gas pressure regulating stations, 5 container-type gas
pressure regulating stations; and in 27 instances the stationary gas pressure regulating stations
were replaced by container-type gas pressure regulating stations.

Works for the modernization of the cathodic protection, telemetry, telecommunications systems
and gas metering devices were performed, on which the Company spent a total amount of
LTL 3.1 million.

In accordance with the procedure that back in 2011 was approved by Order of the Minister of
Energy of the Republic of Lithuania, the Company continued with the buyback of local natural gas
systems of common use belonging to other legal and natural entities. In all, 65 local natural gas
systems of common use (total length 54.8 km) were bought back. Since 2001, in all, 418 km of
gas pipelines have been already bought back.

Maintenance of the distribution system

The Company operates a gas distribution system consisting of 8.2 thousand km of gas distribution
lines. The Company, acting in accordance with applicable legal act provisions and performing the
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distribution system operator’s functions, is in charge of securing adequate maintenance of gas
systems and adequate quality of gas distribution services provided to customers.

In 2012, the Company devoted a lot of attention to the procurement of state-of-the-art equipment,
instruments and tools used in the gas distribution system maintenance procedures and to the
training/instructing LD staff how to use them. To facilitate the systematic upgrading of LD
workforce skills and qualifications, at its Panevezys branch, the Company equipped an open-air
real-world process simulation facility for hands-on training in natural gas.

Gas system maintenance works are carried out according to the repair works programme drawn
up by the Company. Any defects established during the regular maintenance procedures are
either eliminated forthwith, or, alternatively, included into the yearly distribution system repairs
programme that is drawn up by the Company. On the basis of the equipment condition evaluation
criteria and the economic feasibility calculations, the Company draws up programmes for the
reconstruction of its natural gas systems. According the maintenance schedules and
programmes, works for the maintenance of gas distribution systems are carried out in a
systematic manner.

SUPPLY OF NATURAL GAS

In 2012, LD purchased natural gas from OAO Gazprom according to a long-term (until 2015 incl.)
natural gas supply agreement.

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 28 March 2012 No
325 “On amending Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 26 February
2008 No 163 “On approval of the list of measures to guarantee security of natural gas supplies™,
the Company stores contingency gas reserve volumes specified in the legal acts in the Incukalns
(the Republic of Latvia) Underground Gas Storage Facility. From 1 September 2012, in the event
of incidents and/or extreme situations the accumulated gas volumes would ensure uninterrupted
gas supplies to the so-called vulnerable consumers (all the household and non-household
customers with annual gas consumption of up to 20,000 m®) for at least 30 days.

Customers

All natural gas consumers are divided into the household consumers (natural persons buying gas
for their private needs, for their family or household needs) and the non-household consumers
(legal persons). In 2012, on the non-household customers’ market, the share of LD was 30.9%,
and on the household customers’ market, the share of LD was almost 100%.

In 2012, LD supplied to gas consumers 1,125.6 million m® of natural gas, or by 14.6% less than in
2011, when the respective indicator stood at 1,317.8 million m®. In 2012, the volume of natural
gas supplied to the non-household consumers amounted to 956.4 million m® and the volume of
natural gas supplied to the household consumers amounted to 169.2 million m®.

According to data as of 31 December 2012, the Company was selling natural gas to 556.5
thousand non-household and household consumers (energy companies, industrial and other
enterprises, organizations and households).
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LD sales, MCM
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Lithuanian non-household customer market, 2012
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Customer service
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In 2012, ensuring top quality and professional customer service has been and continues to be the
field of utmost priority and one of the most important objectives of the Company. In 2012, natural
gas customers located in various corners of Lithuania either called the Company's employees or
were serviced by the Company's employees at their own premises more than 560 thousand

times.

With a view to ensuring quality of services rendered by the Company to its customers, in 2012, LD
continued with the customer service-related projects launched in previous years and it also

launched new projects:

e In implementation of a continuous staff training programme in the field of rendering
customer services, in 2012, further training was provided to over 200 LD employees. This

stage of LD staff training programme is scheduled for completion in 2013.

e The Company has been continuing work for the improvement of processes of collection
of payments from customers for natural gas supplies. LD uses services of 23 different

partners rendering payment collection and data administration services.
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For the third consecutive year, in autumn of 2012, the customer service quality survey
action “Please Assess Our Services” was launched. The main aim of the action was to
assess the quality of the customer services rendered by the Company’s staff to the non-
household customers and the level of customers’ satisfaction. The results of the survey
did not disappoint us — just as it was the case with our previous surveys covering the LD
household customer segment, this time, too, LD non-household customers’ approvement
ratings of the Company’s customers services rendered to them were high in case of the
vast majority of respondents (94% of the total);

In 2012, over 82.6% of the Company’s non-household customers used the possibility of
receiving gas bills by e-mail via the E-Pay system.

In 2012, a total of 2.2 thousand new customers were connected to the natural gas
system.

In 2012, the Central Calibration and Testing Laboratory expanded the range of activities
to which it is accredited in the field of gas volume metering, and increased the accuracy
and reliability of with which it establishes natural gas quality parameters.

Customer service at the Call Centre

In 2012, the Call Centre answered almost 124 thousand calls.

During the first contact, all the necessary information was supplied to as many as 97% of
all the callers to the Hotline 1894. Other customers were supplied with the necessary
information either during the course of the same day or next working day by forwarding
the customer inquiry to the Company’s specialists in charge of respective field of activity.

The Automatic Voice System that has been implemented by LD enables the Company’s
customers to access respective data on their balance of payments and on gas tariffs by
Hotline 1894 a 24 hour/7day a week basis. In 2012, the Automatic Voice System was
resorted to 19 thousand times.

In 2012, 107 thousand SMS messages were dispatched to the Company’s customers
notifying them on their payment irregularities (by 5% more than in 2011), and during the
gas tariff change period in July the number of SMS messages to LD customers’ amounted
to 362 thousand containing information on new tariffs (by 8% more than in July of 2011).

The number of inquiries received by the Company by e-mail has also seen a consistent
rise. In 2012, the number of inquiries received and answered by e-mail was by 70%
higher, compared with 2011. A surge in the number of LD customer e-mails is especially
sharp twice a year when customers using the direct debit payment method declare their
factual natural gas meter readings.

In 2012, in order to improve the quality of LD customer service, an information system for
customer inquiry management was installed at the Company, which facilitates faster
dealing with customer queries and providing customer services.

In 2012, on Hotline 1894, the average waiting time before the call was answered by a call
manager was 12 seconds.

In 2012, the vast majority of the customers who called to the Company’s Call Centre via
Hotline 1894 asked for information on payments and natural gas tariffs. For details see the
figure below.
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Breakdown of calls via Hotline 1894 in 2012
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Customer service at the branches

e In 2012, the number of household customers’ visits paid to the Company branches on
various settlement and gas contract issues amounted to 95.8 thousand.

e In 2012, the number of applications requests for the connection to the LD natural gas
grid amounted to 3,731 (i.e. by 11.6% more than in 2011).

Services rendered by LD staff at customers’ premise s

e In 2012, LD staff visited gas customers at their premises more than 327 thousand
times. The overwhelming majority of such visits (274 thousand) were routine
inspections of customers’ natural gas meters, whereas the balancing share of LD staff
visits (more than 53 thousand) were either related to rendering technical services to
LD gas consumers or, alternatively, were related to the elimination of any natural gas
system problems in response to natural gas consumers’ calls.

e In 2012, over 140 gas customers were visited by LD staff in order to give advice on
issues of efficient gas consumption, during which thermal images of premises were
taken (to identify the areas with the highest loss of thermal energy).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In the light of LD environmental policy and consistently working on the reduction of environmental
impact, LD has implemented an environmental management system, which on 15 February 2012,
was assessed by an accredited institution, UAB Bureau Veritas, and LD was issued with a
certificate of compliance with the Environmental Management System Standard ISO 14001. The
audit also confirmed that the environmental protection system of the Company operates beyond
reproach.

One of the main objectives of the Company in the field of control the minimization of atmospheric
pollution consists in the control of any possible gas leaks in the process of natural gas
transmission. In order to ensure the reliability of the gas systems, the Company has implemented
a number of technical measures the most significant of which are as follows:
e reconstruction of the Girininkai, Alksnupiai, Raguva and Pakruojis DSSs;
e modernization of the line block valve functional assemblies (including bypass lines) on the
Ivatsevichi—Vilnius—Riga Gas Transmission Pipeline;
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e installation of intelligent pig launchers and receivers on the Minsk—Vilnius—Vievis Gas
Transmission Pipeline section;

e installation of intelligent pig launchers on the Vilnius—Kaliningrad Gas Transmission
Pipeline (for launching devices of internal gas pipeline purging and intelligent pigging).

In 2012, LD implemented systems for e-accounting of chemicals and for management of
environmental indicators.

In 2012, there were no accidents in the natural gas systems resulting in high emissions of gas into
the atmosphere or major environmental damage.

In 2012, due to the fact that demand for natural gas during the heating season was higher that it
was the case in 2011, as well as due to the increase in the natural gas transit volumes, the
Jaunitnai and Panevezys Gas Compressor Stations were in operation longer hours, compared
with the previous year, which resulted in higher gas emissions into the atmosphere, nevertheless
the emissions were within the permissible value limits specified in the Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control permits. Pollution levels depend on the actual operation times of the gas
systems, the load factor, number of start-ups and on other factors.

Pollutant (tons) 2012 2011 2010
CcoO 30.04 17.6 26.7
NOy 16.98 8.9 12.0

The Company monitors pollution emissions from its stationary sources — measures and records
smoke emissions. The Jauniinai Gas Compressor Station monitors (takes measurements and
records) the quality of the ambient air.

Due to the very nature of the natural gas operation maintenance system and because to the
occupational safety system requirements, a small proportion of gas volumes is emitted from the
gas pipeline system into the atmosphere. The Company implements measures to minimize the
emissions.

Recorded emissions of natural gas (MCM)

2012 2011 2010
14.2 10.8 14.0
STAFF
Average number of Group employees
Year Average number of : Change compared
employees to previous year
2011 1,719 -1.8%*
2012 1,700 -1.1%**

* Compared to 2010.
** Compared to 2011.

The average age of the Group employees was 46.0 years (2011: 45.0 years) and the average

work experience was 15.0 years (2011: 16.0 years).
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As of 31 December 2012, the average number of employees on the roll of LD was 1,700. Of this
total, 139 were in management positions, 1,001 were specialists and 560 were workers. 49% of
the Company’s employees have high education. The majority of the Company’s employees are
male (70%). Female employees account for 30%. Such male predominance results from the
specifics of gas business: there is a long-standing tradition that engineering and technical jobs
and jobs involving work outdoors (requiring physical strength and endurance) are mostly chosen

by men. Most female employees work in customer service and administration departments.
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Group’s average monthly salary by employee categori

es, inLTL

Employees

Average number of
employees in 2011

Average monthly salary,
LTL

Managing staff 136 8,326
Specialists 982 3,367
Workers 601 2,606
Total: 1,719 3,493
Employees Average number of Average monthly salary,

employees in 2012

LTL

40

Managing staff 139 8,405
Specialists 1,001 3,410
Workers 560 2,682
Total: 1,700 3,578
Employees

The key asset of the Company is its human capital — people with their experience and ability to
meet top professional standards in discharging their job responsibilities, because it is their skills,
knowledge, abilities that create all the products and services that determine the Company’s future.

LD pays special attention to the creation of adequate working conditions for its employees, to
securing employees’ salaries and social guarantees in line with the market conditions. To ensure
an adequate business efficiency level, a good work climate at the Company and successful team-
work, we stick to the following values: competence and responsibility, mutual trust, fair
assessment of both efforts and performance and continuous personal improvement.

Performance Appraisal Interviews (hereinafter referred to as the “PAl”) is the most important part
of the performance management system aimed at ensuring that employee performance targets
are set according to the Company’s strategic goals and the objectives of the units of the
Company. The main objective of the PAI system is to achieve improved performance through the
management of employee activities in line with the Company’s objectives and standards, provide
employees with feedback on their performance, improve employee motivation, to find out their
expectations vis-a-vis the Company and its executives, to set employee training and career
guidelines. Performance Appraisal Interviews cover managerial staff of all the levels and the
specialists (white collars).

Collective Bargaining Agreement

LD branches have their trade union subunits that are united into a Lithuanian Gas Sector
Employees Trade Union Association. The version of the Collective Bargaining Agreement of the
Company (with subsequent amendments) signed on 23 May 2011 will be in effect until 31
December 2014. Neither the labor contracts, nor the Collective Bargaining Agreement provide for
any extraordinary rights or duties for the Company’s employees. The rights and duties that are
provided by these documents are the ones usually applied in general practice.

Training, student placement and apprenticeship oppo rtunities

In ensuring smooth and consistent operations of the Company, the crucial factor is the
competencies of the staff. Therefore, a fair share of attention is paid to the formation of a
motivating work environment at the Company.

The Company arranged for its employees trainings of several types, which were carried out in
various forms, including the employment of state-of-the art technological innovations. In 2012,
1,562 LD employees participated in mandatory training programmes. Professional training
courses, upon successful completion of which the participants are issued with a certificate, were
provided to 798 employees.
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To facilitate the LD staff training process and create the best possible conditions for the
acquisition of professional expertise and skills, at its PanevezZys branch, the Company equipped
an open-air real-world process simulation facility for hands-on training in natural gas system
operation and maintenance tasks. At the facility, LD staff can practice in 56 activities: various
operation and maintenance tasks involving gas pipelines and gas appliances, elimination of gas
leaks without an interruption of gas supply, hot-tapping (steel pipeline connection to the existing
steel pipeline without an interruption of gas supply) and others. The quality of tasks performed by
trainees is checked with modern devices.

In 2012, quite a few employees upgraded their managerial competencies. In all, conferences and
seminars were attended by 421 employees. The Company's employees upgraded their
knowledge in such fields as law, tax issues, public procurements, accounting, customer service,
etc.

The Company is engaged in an active cooperation with educational institutions and invites
university students to its student placement programmes, so that they can practice in the
application of their theoretical knowledge and gain practical skills. In 2012, the Company admitted
18 students to such student placement programmes. For the seventh consecutive year, LD
participated in the Career Days events held by Vilnius Gediminas Technical University, Kaunas
University of Technology and other universities. As part of LD collaboration with the ISM
(University of Management and Economics), the Company granted support to their program “100
Talents of ISM”. LD established the grant for the most talented student of the ISM.

MEMBERSHIP IN ASSOCIATED STRUCTURES AND INTERNATION AL COOPERATION
The Company is a member of the following organizations:

e The Lithuanian Gas Association (www.dua.lt), is a voluntary alliance of legal entities of the
Republic of Lithuania interested in economic and technical development of Lithuanian gas
sector and comprising the largest companies engaged in natural gas supply, transmission,
and distribution, UAB SG Dujos (engaged in the liquefaction of natural gas), and various
associated members engaged in natural gas activities: the Association Lietuvos Dujotiekio
Statyba (comprising 16 companies engaged in gas pipeline construction works) and
educational and scientific research institutions. The General Manager of LD Viktoras
ValentukeviCius is the President of this Association since 16 June 2008.

e The Association “Eurogas” (www.eurogas.com). It is a non governmental non profit
organization uniting European gas companies and promoting their cooperation, taking stance
on issues of interest to the European countries’ natural gas industries and the European
Institutions of the EU with respect to natural gas business as well as participating in the public
opinion formation process. LD is its full member from 1 January 2009.

e The association of gas transmission pipeline compan ies of the Baltic Sea Region
“Baltic Gas” (www.balticgas.org). “Baltic Gas” is an association of the Baltic Sea Region
promoting use of natural gas in the Baltic Sea Region, development of an integrated natural
gas consumer market, seeking to reduce the non-commercial obstacles in the way of natural
gas business. Membership of LD in this association dates back to 1999. From 2006, LD has a
representative in the Board of this association.

e The European Network of Transmission System Operato rs for Gas (ENTSOG)
(www.entsog.eu) was established pursuant to the Regulation of the European Parliament and
of the Council No 715/2009 as an organization promoting co-operation of gas transmission
system operators at the level of the European Union. ENTSOG is also engaged in the
elaboration of the European gas network codes, development of non-binding Community-wide
ten-year network development plans, delivering common network operation tools, performing
other functions. LD is an Associated Partner of ENTSOG since 22 June 2011.

e The Chamber of Commerce of Germany and the Baltic ¢ ountries in Estonia, Latvia and
Lithuania (www.ahk-balt.org).
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e The association of the largest and most active inve  stors in the economy of Lithuania
“Investors’ Forum”  (www.investorsforum.lt).

The Company does not participate in the capital of any of the aforesaid associated structures.

The member of the association “Eurogas”, the association “Baltic Gas” and The Chamber of
Commerce of Germany and the Baltic countries (“AHK”) E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH and
the member of the association “Baltic Gas” OAO Gazprom each hold over 5% of shares of the
Company.

In 2012, LD and Latvijas Gaze A/S were implementing a joint project “The Enhancement of the
Capacity of the Lithuania—Latvia Gas Interconnector”, which was initiated back in 2009. The
Project is aimed at upgrading integration of the gas systems of the Baltic States and creating
preconditions for the creation of the natural gas market of the Baltic States as well as preparation
for the integration into the common natural gas market of the EU.

Since 2009, LD has been engaged in an intensive co-operation with the Polish natural gas system
operator GAZ-SYSTEM S.A. LD and the Polish companies have been engaged in the analytical
activities related to the construction of the Poland-Lithuania Gas Interconnector. Moreover, in
2012, LD specialists together with representatives of gas transmission systems operators of the
EU member states belonging to the Baltic Region prepared the first Regional Investment Plan,
which must be prepared by the transmission systems operators every two years in accordance
with Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council No 715/2009.

SPONSORSHIP PROGRAMS

In 2012, just as in previous years, LD, in line with its well-articulated priorities, continued its
participation in various sponsorship programmes, took part in social-impact projects, thereby
creating new life or business opportunities for the needy segment of the community:

Projects to improve the living environment of vulnerable social groups;
Projects aimed at the preservation of Lithuanian national heritage;

Projects that are part of a long-term cultural programme;

Projects aimed at the improvement of public health;

Project aimed at the popularization of the name of Lithuania all over the world.

In 2012, LD rendered support to more than 100 institutions, organizations or supported their
individual projects and thus significantly contributed to the promotion of various communal
initiatives:

e Support to festivals of town communities: to the Public Entity “Pazaislis Music Festival” (in
organizing the 17" Pazaislis Music Festival), to the Administration of the Municipality of
the Sirvintos District (support for the main events organized by the cultural institutions of
the Municipality); to the Public Entity “The Sea Festival’ (support in organizing the Sea
Festival 2012 in the town of Klaipéda); to the Administration of Municipality of Anyk3c&iai
District (support in organizing the horse festival “Run, Horse, Run” in the village of
Nidronys, Anyks¢iai District), etc.;

e Support to creative and active children and young people: to Siauliai Dagilélis Singing
School (participation of the boys’ choir in international projects); to Klaipéda University (in
organizing a scientific research conference of Lithuanian universities and colleges); to
Public Entity ISM Foundation (merit-based scholarships to students who show high
academic achievements, to cover in part the tuition fees thereof); to Public Entity “Enduro
Club” (young bikers’ participation in a European championship); to the Association for
International Student Exchange (participation of academically gifted students in an
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international student exchange program); Association “Cambridge University Lithuanian
Society” (in organizing the LINK interactive conference, aiming to promote the networking
and cooperation of Lithuanian students in the UK), etc.;

e Support to improve public health: to the Vilnius University Hospital SantariS8kés Clinic
(support aimed at improving the activities of the Family Medicine Centre as well as other
units of the Hospital), to the Vilnius Maternity Hospital (for the partial refurbishment of the
premises), to the Lithuanian Heart Specialists Association (support for the preparation of
the doctors professional development programmes); Klaipéda St Francis of Assisi Convent
(support to the construction of a spiritual support center for cancer patients), etc.;

e Support to sports societies: to the Lithuanian National Olympic Committee (support for the
Lithuania’s sportsmen’s preparation for the Winter Olympic Games 2014); to the
Lithuanian Olympic Sports Centre (support for the preparation of Lithuania’s national
tennis team for the FED-CUP 2013 (international tennis federation world ranking
tournament); support to the Public Entity “Sariinas Margiulionis Basketball Academy”
(programme for the development of young basketball players), to the Lithuanian Sports
Society “Zalgiris” (support to society sports events programme 2012), to the Baseball Club
“Vilnius” (support to the club’s sportsmen — children of various age groups and adults — for
the participation in major baseball and softball tournaments abroad and in Lithuania for the
improvement of their baseball skills and popularization of the name of Lithuania abroad);
to the Ballooning Club “Audenis” (support in organizing the International Aeronautical
Federation Congress 2014 to be held Lithuania); to the Lithuanian Biathlon Federation
(support to Lithuania's biathlon teams' participation in various world and European
championships and World and European Cup events), etc.;

e Support to representatives of socially vulnerable communities and children’s foster homes:
support to the Public Entity “Mazoji Guboja” (support for the disabled young people
education and training programme), support to the Vilnius Youth School “Gija” (support to
students of this school who because of various social, psychological or other reasons were
the odd ones out at other schools), to the Public Entity St Joseph’s Foster Home (support
to homeless children, the disabled and the elderly); to the Public Entity Vilnius Jonas
Lauzikas Consultative Centre (support to sick children who are both educated and treated
for tuberculosis at the Centre); to the Alma Adamkus Charity and Support Fund (to the
Fund-supported charity action for the acquisition of new books for rural schools and rural
libraries and for the organization of a children’s drawing contest); to the Charity
Foundation “Mothers Union” (support to children — cancer patients and to their family
members); to the Vilnius “Feniksas” Sports Club for the Disabled (support to the
participation of the team in an international volleyball tournament in Latvia), etc.;

e Support to representatives of art and culture: the Kernavé State Culture Reservation
(support to a photo exhibition to present the history of the experimental archeology festival
“Days of Live Archaeology in Kernave”); to the Lithuanian Press Photo Club (support for
annual exhibition “Lithuanian Press Photo 2012"), to the Lithuanian Artists Union (support
for an educational painting plain air event in Pervalka); the Lithuanian Glass Blowers
Association (support to the glass artist Remigijus Kriukas, for his participation in
international exhibitions in Estonia, Belgium, Russia, the Czech Republic, and Germany),
etc.;

e Support to the preservation of the Lithuanian national heritage: the Public Entity the
Cultural Heritage Conservation Force (support in publishing the book by Vilius
Kavaliauskas “The Lithuanian Warriors”, Volume 4); to the National Museum Palace of the
Grand Dukes of Lithuania (support in organizing the exhibition “Portraits of the Grand
Dukes and Noblemen of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania from Museums of Ukraine”); to the
Public Entity Thomas Mann Culture Centre (support for the organization of the 16"
International Thomas Mann Festival “The Enslaved Mind"); to the Public Entity “TV
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Europa” (support for creating a documentary film about one of the most prominent
Lithuanian theater and cinema actors Vytautas Pauksté); to the Association "The
Steponas Kairys Foundation” (support for the release of the memoir book about the
President Algirdas Brazauskas “Selected by his Epoque for the Great Mission”), etc.;

e Support to religious communities: to the Ariogala St Michael the Archangel Parish
(contribution to the construction of the parish house); to the Seduva Discovery of the St
Cross Parish (support for the maintenance and preservation of the cultural heritage — the
buildings of the church); to the Vilnius All Saints Parish (support to social activities carried
out by the Church).

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In pursuing socially responsible business practices, the Company lays a stress on the
environmental protection, human rights and the Company’s employees’ rights, promotion of
economic development and active participation in social life. LD already participates in the
Lithuania’s National Network of Socially Responsible Corporations in promoting the Corporate
Social Responsibility and intends to join the United Nations Global Compact.

In pursuit of responsible business activities, at present, the Company is focused on the review of
its routine processes and procedures, on the internal audit of certain specific areas of its activity.
On an ongoing basis, the Company implements various projects related to environmental
protection, employee motivation improvement, customer service upgrading, and participation in
communal activities which were disclosed in greater detail in other chapters of the present
Consolidated Annual Report.

In order to get an objective and representative assessment of LD performance by its customers
and various social groups, on an annual basis, the Company conducts a representative public
opinion survey. The survey includes questions on the Company’s activities, limits of responsibility,
social influence, on the efficient or inefficient support of the community. The responses of the
various social groups and their analysis help the Company in the formation of tasks for the
improvement of its activities.




Disclosure form concerning the compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code for the Companies Listed on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

Pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Article 21 of the LawSarurities of the Republic of Lithuania and Iteh520f the Listing Rules of NASDAQ

OMX Vilnius, the public company AB Lietuvos Dujos disclosesditenpliance with the Corporate Governance Code HerG@ompanies

Listed onNASDAQ OMX Vilnius and with the specific provisions thereof. In caéénstances of non-compliance with the Code ahwi

certain specific provisions thereof it is indiahtehich specific provisions are not complied witidalue to what reasons.

PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS

YES/NO
INOT

APPLICABLE

COMMENTARY

Principle I: Basic Provisions

The overriding objective of a company should be t@perate in common interests of all the shareholderby optimizing over time

shareholder value.

1.1. A company should adopt and make public
company’s development strategy and objectives bgpry
declaring how the company intends to meet the éstsrof
its shareholders and optimize shareholder value.

thées

The strategy of development and objectives of
Lietuvos Dujos are set forth in the intern

documentation by individual business activities.eT

Company updates its development plans dependin
the market situation and the regulatory environm
developments.

AB
al
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1.2. All management bodies of a company shouldirag
furtherance of the declared strategic objectivesiaw of
the need to optimize shareholder value.

tYes

The activities of the governing bodies of the Comp
are focused on the implementation of the strats
objectives as provided for by the Company Bylaws,
Shareholders Agreement of 24 March 2004 concly
amongst the State Property Fund, the Russian (

1
2gic
t
ded
DAO

Gazprom and the German Company Ruhrgas AG (from

1 July 2004 renamed into E.ON Ruhrgas Internatic
AG and from 28 January 2010 renamed into E.
Ruhrgas International GmbH) (hereinafter referedd
the ‘Shareholders’ Agreement’) and other legal &
regulating the activities of the Company.

nal
ON

ACtS

1.3. A company’'s supervisory and management bo
should act in close co-operation in order to attaaximum
benefit for the company and its shareholders.

diées

This recommendation is implemented by the Boarg
Directors and the General Manager of the Compan
Supervisory Board is not formed to make |
cooperation between the Board of Directors and
General Manager closer, to make the managemeheg
Company more efficient and to facilitate speed
implementation of decisions adopted.

of
y. A
he
the
ft
ier

1.4. A company's supervisory and management bo
should ensure that the rights and interests ofopersther
than the company’s shareholders (e.g. employeeditors,
suppliers, clients, local community), participatirig or
connected with the company’s operation, are didpeeted.

diées

The Company seeks to secure the interests of al
persons connected with the Company's activity. ]
publicity of the Company's activity forms for th
interest holders conditions to participate in

governance of the Company in the manner preschiye
laws and in accordance with the Company's bylawbs




internal regulations.

Principle Il: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure thstrategic guidance of the company, the effectiversight of the company’s
management bodies, an appropriate balance and diglution of functions between the company’s bodiesprotection of the

shareholders’ interests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in tizav on | Y€S

Companies of the Republic of Lithuania — a general
shareholders’ meeting and the chief executive effidt is
recommended that a company should set up bothegizdl
supervisory body and a collegial management bode [T
setting up of collegial bodies for supervision and
management facilitates clear separation of managearel
supervisory functions in the company, accountabitind
control on the part of the chief executive officetich, in
its turn, facilitate a more efficient and transmer
management process.

W

The governing bodies of the Company are the Boérd o
Directors and the General Manager. A Supervisory

Board is not formed at the Company. In the opirn

the shareholders of the Company, this is a sufficaad
effective means for the supervision of the fundi

DN

performed by the General Manager. The division| of

competencies and responsibilities among the governi

bodies of the Company is set forth by the Comp
Bylaws, the regulations of the governing bodieghsf

any

Company and in the General Manager's employment
contract and in the Law on Companies of the Republi

of Lithuania (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Law
Companies’).

2.2. A collegial management body is responsible tfar | Yes

—

strategic management of the company and perforimsr ¢
key functions of corporate governance. A collegial
supervisory body is responsible for the effectiupesvision
of the company’s management bodies.

Please refer to comment under ltem 2.1.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one gialle NO

body, it is recommended that it should be a superyi
body, i.e. the supervisory board. In such a cake,|t
supervisory board is responsible for the effecthanitoring
of the functions performed by the company’'s chief
executive officer.

Please refer to comment under ltem 2.1.

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be electedtie | Yes

general shareholders’ meeting should be set upshodld
act in the manner defined in Principles Il and Where a
company should decide not to set up a collegiaksugory
body but rather a collegial management body, he.hoard,
Principles Ill and IV should apply to the boardlasg as
that does not contradict the essence and purpogbi®
body*

Please refer to comment under ltem 2.1.

! Provisions of Principles Il and IV are more applite to those instances when the general sharebbloeeting elects the
supervisory board, i.e. a body that is essentfaligned to ensure oversight of the company’s boatithe chief executive officer and
to represent the company’s shareholders. Howevease the company does not form the supervisayddaut rather the board, most
of the recommendations set out in Principles 1 & become important and applicable to the boardell. Furthermore, it should be
noted that certain recommendations, which are @irtassence and nature applicable exclusively & stpervisory boarde.g.
formation of the committees) should not be applied to the board, as the cognpetand functions of these bodies according to the
Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuar@ficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For instantemi3.1 of the Code
concerning oversight of the management bodies eppti the extent it concerns the oversight of thiefoexecutive officer of the
company, but not of the board itself; item 4.1k Code concerning recommendations to the managdroéies applies to the extent

2



2.5. Company’s management and supervisory bodmddh Yes

comprise such number of board (executive directars)
supervisory (non-executive directors) board memlibeas
no individual or small group of individuals can doate
decision-making on the part of these bodies.

Please refer to comment under ltem 2.1.

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the sipary
board should be appointed for specified terms stbje
individual re-election, at maximum intervals prostitifor in
the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensurinecessary
development of professional experience and suffityie
frequent reconfirmation of their status. A possipilto

remove them should also be stipulated however

procedure should not be easier than the removalefwoe
for an executive director or a member of the maree
board.

No

this

Please refer to comment under ltem 2.1.

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by geaeral

past office constitutes no obstacle to conduct peddent
and impartial supervision. Where a company shoeltd®
not to set up a supervisory board but rather treedyat is

Yes
shareholders’ meeting may be a person whose cuarent

recommended that the chairman of the board andf chie

executive officer of the company should be a déifer
person. Former company’'s chief executive officeoust

not be immediately nominated as the chairman of |the

collegial body elected by the general shareholdeegting.

When a company chooses to departure from these

recommendations, it should furnish information dre

measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of |the

supervision.

The chairman of the Company’s Board of Directord
the chief executive officer of the Company (General kiger)

is not the same person, the chairman of the Boé&r
Directors did not hold the position of tlekief executive

officer of the Company (General Manageprior to
appointing him on the position of the chairman.

AN

Principle IlI: The order of the formation of a coll egial body to be elected by a general shareholdersieeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be lected by a general shareholders’ meeting should sare representation of
minority shareholders, accountability of this bodyto the shareholders and objective monitoring of theeompany’s operation and its

management bodies.

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegiadly to
be elected by a general shareholders’ meetingi(tadter in
this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial bodyghould
ensure objective and fair monitoring of the compsan
management bodies as well as representation ofrityin
shareholders.

o <

Yes

In compliance with the Company Bylaws, the collég

governing body of the Company - the Board
Directors - is elected by the General Meeting
Shareholders. The Board of Directors simultaneo

performs the function of the objective and impér

monitoring of the General
through the periodic hearings of the

Manager's performa

informati

a
of
of
usly
a
nce

it relates to the provision of recommendationshim¢ompany’s chief executive officer; item 4.4 lné Code concerning independence
of the collegial body elected by the general megefiom the company’s management bodies is appbethé extent it concerns

independence from the chief executive officer.

2 Definitions‘executive directorand‘non-executive directorare used in cases when a company has only ongjiebl®dy.

% Attention should be drawn to the fact that in $itaation where the collegial body elected by teaagal shareholders’ meeting is the
board, it is natural that being a management bbdlgduld ensure oversight not of all managementdsoaf the company, but only of
the single-person body of management, i.e. the eowip chief executive officer. This note shall apiol respect of item 3.1 as well.



presented by the General Manager on key issudsed
business activities of the Company. In compliand V
the provisions of the Shareholders’ Agreement, O
Gazprom and E.ON Ruhrgas International Gm
nominate two candidates to the membership of
Board of Directors each and the Ministry of Enedjy
the Republic of Lithuania by decision of t
Government of the Republic of Lithuania nominates

candidate to the membership of the Board of Dimscto

This Shareholders’ Agreement was approved by
Government of the Republic of Lithuania (by Resiolut
No 22 of 9 January 2004).

ft

AO
bH
the

ne
o]

the

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to be

members of a collegial body, information about tthei

education, qualification, professional backgroupasitions
taken and potential conflicts of interest shoulddizelosed
early enough before the general shareholders’ ngpetd
that the shareholders would have sufficient timeneke an

informed voting decision. All factors affecting the

candidate’s independence, the sample list of wisicet out
in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosede
collegial body should also be informed on any sgbeat
changes in the provided information. The colledialdy
should, on yearly basis, collect data providechia item on
its members and disclose this in the company's aln
report.

CONES

Th

The Company discloses the information in accordg
with provisions of the Law on Companies.

3.3. Should a person be nominated for members
collegial body, such nomination should be followsdthe
disclosure of information on candidate’s particu
competences relevant to his/her service on theegiall
body. In order shareholders and investors are &bl
ascertain whether member’'s competence is furthevast,
the collegial body should, in its annual reporsctbse the
information on its composition and particular cotgpees
of individual members which are relevant to theirvice on
the collegial body.

nfYes

lar

4%

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.2.

3.4 In order to maintain a proper balance in termshef
current qualifications possessed by its membeesd#sired
composition of the collegial body shall be deteradirwith
regard to the company’s structure and activities] have
this periodically evaluated. The collegial body wsldo
ensure that it is composed of members who, as dew
have the required diversity of knowledge, judgmeant
experience to complete their tasks properly. Thenbers of
the audit committee, collectively, should have aers
knowledge and relevant experience in the fieldfirgfnce,
accounting and/or audit for the stock exchangeedis
companies. At least one of the members of the renation
committee should have knowledge of and experiendbe
field of remuneation policy

tYes

no

—

Please refer to comments to under Items 3.1 and 4.6

nce




3.5. All new members of the collegial body should

offered a tailored program focused on introducimgeanber
with his/her duties, corporate organization andvais.

The collegial body should conduct an annual review
identify fields where its members need to updaéir thkills

and knowledge.

bYes

3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicfsnterest
related with a member of the collegial body areoihe=d
properly, the collegial body should comprise a isight"
number of independe?]members.

Not
applicable

In compliance with the provisions of the Sharehmte

Agreement, OAO Gazprom and E.ON Ruhrgas Internati
AG nominate two candidates to the membership ofBibard
of Directors each and the State Property Fund natesnone
candidate to the membership of the Board of Dimsctdhe
formation of the Board of Directors of the Compaslongs
to the competence of the General Meeting of Shédeh®and
an independent member can be elected only in ashégets
a sufficient number of votes of shareholders irhaisfavour
at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

All members of the Board of Directors of the Compamneet
one or two independence criteria set forth in tbeeC

N

4 The Code does not provide for a concrete numbéndependent members to comprise a collegial bdtiny codes in foreign

countries fix a concrete number of independent nemfe.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members ottftlegial body) to comprise the

collegial body. However, having regard to the ntywef the institution of independent members irhuénia and potential problems in
finding and electing a concrete number of indepehdeembers, the Code provides for a more flexibedimg and allows the

companies themselves to decide what number of erdignt members is sufficient. Of course, a largenber of independent
members in a collegial body is encouraged andosifistitute an example of more suitable corporategmnce.

5 It is notable that in some companies all membegtsecollegial body may, due to a very small numifeminority shareholders, be
elected by the votes of the majority shareholdex faw major shareholders. But even a member ofdhegial body elected by the

majority shareholders may be considered indeperifieatshe meets the independence criteria sahdhe Code.

5



3.7. A member of the collegial body should be coed to
be independent only if he is free of any busin&asily or

other relationship with the company, its contrali
shareholder or the management of either, that eseat
conflict of interest such as to impair his judgmesince all
cases when member of the collegial body is likely

Not

s applicable

become dependant are impossible to list, moreqver,

relationships and circumstances associated with
determination of independence may vary amor
companies and the best practices of solving trablpm are
yet to evolve in the course of time, assessment
independence of a member of the collegial body Ishba
based on the contents of the relationship and mistances
rather than their form. The key criteria for idéyitig
whether a member of the collegial body can be censd
to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or member ef
board (if a collegial body elected by the gene
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board
the company or any associated company and
not been such during the last five years;

the
gst

of

ral
of
has

2) He/she is not an employee of the company or spme

any company and has not been such during

the

last three years, except for cases when a member

of the collegial body does not belong to the sern

ior

management and was elected to the collegial Hody

as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been not recei
significant additional remuneration from th

ing

company or associated company other than

remuneration for the office in the collegial bod

y.

Such additional remuneration includes
participation in share options or some other

performance based pay systems; it does

not

include compensation payments for the previpus

office in the company (provided that such

payment is no way related with later position)

per pension plans (inclusive of deferred

compensations);

4)He/she is not a controlling shareholder
representative of such shareholder (control
defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EH
Article 1 Part 1);

or
as
C

5) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated

company within the past year directly or as
partner, shareholder, director or super

employee of the subject having such relationsh

A subject is considered to have business relat
when it is a major supplier or service provid

(inclusive of financial, legal, counseling and

a
ior
p.
ons
er

consulting services), major client or organization

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.6.




receiving significant payments from the company

or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the lasethr

years, partner or employee of the current

former external audit company of the company| or

associated company;

7) Hel/she is not an executive director or member ef
board in some other company where execu
director of the company or member of the bo
(if a collegial body elected by the gene

ive
ard

shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) is

non-executive director or member of
supervisory board, he/she may not also have
other material relationships with executi
directors of the company that arise from th
participation in activities of other companies
bodies;

he

any
e

leir

8) He/she has not been in the position of a member of

the collegial body for over than 12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an executivectbre
or member of the board (if a collegial bo

dy

elected by the general shareholders’ meeting ig the

supervisory board) or to any person listed
above items 1 to 8. Close relative is considere
be a spouse (common-law spouse), children
parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes indepecé is
fundamentally an issue for the collegial body ftsed
determine. The collegial body may decide that, desp
particular member meets all the criteria of indefmrte
laid down in this Code, he cannot be conside
independent due to special personal or companterk
circumstances.

n
d to
and

No

red

[

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.6.

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the gale|
body has come to in its determination of whethe
particular member of the body should be considéoete
independent should be disclosed. When a persol
nominated to become a member of the collegial btiy,
company should disclose whether it considers thsopeto
be independent. When a particular member of thiegial

body does not meet one or more criteria of indepeoe set
out in this Code, the company should disclosecigsons for|
nevertheless considering the member to be indepénbre
addition, the company should annually disclose twh
members of the collegial body it considers to

No

nois

ic
be

independent.

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.6.




3.10. When one or more criteria of independencesetn | No Please refer to comment under Item 3.6.
this Code has not been met throughout the year,| the
company should disclose its reasons for considedng
particular member of the collegial body to be inelegent.
To ensure accuracy of the information disclosedelation
with the independence of the members of the calldzpdy,
the company should require independent memberse h
their independence periodically re-confirmed.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a colldmdly for | Yes
their work and participation in the meetings of ttadlegial
body, they may be remunerated from the companyidgfi
The general shareholders’ meeting should approwe| th
amount of such remunerati

Principle 1V: The duties and liabilities of a collggial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeg

The corporate governance framework should ensure mper and effective functioning of the collegial bog elected by the genera
shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to h collegial body should ensure effective monitorifgof the company’s
management bodies and protection of interests oflahe company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the generalefhaiders’ | Yes The Company’s annual report is subject to apprdyalthe
meeting (hereinafter in this Principle referred de the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company’auah
‘collegial body’) should ensure integrity and trpasency of financial statements, the draft profit (loss) ajgpiation are
the company’s financial statements and the corslystem. subject to analysis and assessment by the Bodddreftors of
The collegial body should issue recommendationsh® the Company. After the aforesaid procedures, thanfiial
company’s management bodies and monitor and cotfieq| statements, the draft profit (loss) appropriatiomogether with
company’s management performafice. the approved annual report are submitted for agbroo
theGeneral Meeting of shareholders. Quarterly itspon the
results of the economic activity of the Companye§ented by
the Company's CEO) are subject to analysis andsissat by
the Board of Directors of the Company.

61t is notable that currently it is not yet complgtelear, in what form members of the supervisopatd or the board may be
remunerated for their work in these bodies. The bawCompanies of the Republic of Lithuan@fficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574)
provides that members of the supervisory boardhehbard may be remunerated for their work in thgesvisory board or the board
by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the eraprescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. fraime company’s profit. The

current wording, contrary to the wording effectivefore 1 January 2004, eliminates the exclusiveirement that annual bonuses
(tantiems) should be thanly form of the company’s compensation to members efsthpervisory board or the board. So it seems that

the Law contains no prohibition to remunerate memloé the supervisory board or the board for theirk in other forms, besides
bonuses, although this possibility is not exprestiyed either.

" See Footnote 3.

8 See Footnote 3. In the event the collegial bodycted by the general shareholders’ meeting is tardy it should provide
recommendations to the company’s single-person bbdyanagement, i.e. the company’s chief execuffieer.
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4.2. Members of the collegial body should act iodjfaith, | Yes According to the information available to the Compgaall the

with care and responsibility for the benefit and the members of the Board of Directors act in good fddththe
interests of the company and its shareholders ik benefit and in the interests of the Company andjarded by
regard to the interests of employees and publidanel the interests of the Company and not by their peivaterests
Independent members of the collegial body shouldiaer or by interests of any third parties, and are sepkd maintain
all circumstances maintain independence of thedlyais, independence in decision-making.

decision-making and actions (b) do not seek andgcany
unjustified privileges that might compromise thei
independence, and (c) clearly express their olojestj
should a member consider that decision of the gialle
body is against the interests of the company. $hau
collegial body have passed decisions independentbae
has serious doubts about, the member should madiate
conclusions. Should an independent member resagn ffris
office, he should explain the reasons in a lettlehr@ssed tq
the collegial body or audit committee and, if nscey,
respective company-not-pertaining body (institution

=

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time antes
attention to perform his duties as a member ofctiikegial
body. Each member of the collegial body shouldtliother
professional obligations of his (in particular any
directorships held in other companies) in such anea
they do not interfere with proper performance dfiekiof a
member of the collegial body. In the event a mentdf¢he
collegial body should be present in less than & hdlthe
meetings of the collegial body throughout the ficiahyear
of the company, shareholders of the company shoeld
notified.

4.4, Where decisions of a collegial body may have Yes
different effect on the company’s shareholders,cihitegial
body should treat all shareholders impartially &aidy. It

should ensure that shareholders are properly irddrion
the company’s affairs, strategies, risk managensamd
resolution of conflicts of interest. The companysid have
a clearly established role of members of the caldgody
when communicating with and committing to sharebko$d

® It is notable that companies can make this reqmerg more stringent and provide that shareholdessld be informed about failure
to participate at the meetings of the collegialypidfor instance, a member of the collegial bgahrticipated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of
the meetings. Such measures, which ensure actitieipation in the meetings of the collegial bodye encouraged and will constitute
an example of more suitable corporate governance.



45. It is recommended that transactions (exq
insignificant ones due to their low value or comigd when
carrying out routine operations in the company undwial
conditions), concluded between the company and
shareholders, members of the supervisory or maga
bodies or other natural or legal persons that exemay
exert influence on the company’s management shbal
subject to approval of the collegial body. The dieri
concerning approval of such transactions shoulddmmed
adopted only provided the majority of the indepenrtd
members of the collegial body voted for such asleni

epes

its
n

o

[¢)

4.6. The collegial body should be independent iasjray
decisions that are significant for the company'sragions
and strategy. Taken separately, the collegial &bthuld be
independent of the company’s management bdti
Members of the collegial body should act and passstbns
without an outside influence from the persons wilawveh
elected it. Companies should ensure that the callbgdy
and its committees are provided with sufficig
administrative and financial resources to dischattygr
duties, including the right to obtain, in particulfrom
employees of the company, all the necessary infiomar
to seek independent legal, accounting or any Gttieice on
issues pertaining to the competence of the colldyiay
and its committees. When using the services ofnawdtant
with a view to obtaining information on market sfands
for remuneration systems, the remuneration comen
should ensure that the consultant concerned ddeat ibe
same time advice the human resources departn
executive directors or collegial management orgainthe

Yes

nt

tte

nent,

company concerned.

Pursuant to the Law on Audit and Resolution No1Kef@1
August 2008 of the Securities Commission of the URdip of
Lithuania ‘On Requirements for Audit Committeesh, the
reporting year, an Audit Committee has been forraedhe

Company. A Nomination Committee and a Remunera
Committee were not established at the Company,r

functions were performed by the Board of Directors.

The rights and duties of the Audit Committee amvjated for
by the Audit Committee Formation and Work Regulasias
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

tion
hei

% In the event the collegial body elected by theegehshareholders’ meeting is the board, the recemdation concerning its
independence from the company’s management bogies to the extent it relates to the independdrara the company’s chief

executive officer.
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4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be anjgzed in a| Yes Please refer to comment under Item 4.6.
manner that independent members of the collegialy ho
could have major influence in relevant areas with@nces|
of occurrence of conflicts of interest are veryhiguch
areas to be considered as highly relevant are dsstfie
nomination of company’s directors, determination |of
directors’ remuneration and control and assessnuént
company'’s audit. Therefore when the mentioned ssuwe
attributable to the competence of the collegial ypad is
recommended that the collegial body should estal
nomination, remuneration, and audit committées
Companies should ensure that the functions ataietto
the nomination, remuneration, and audit committaes
carried out. However they may decide to merge these
functions and set up less than three committeesudh case
a company should explain in detail reasons behhmzl
selection of alternative approach and how the tedec
approach complies with the objectives set forthtlier three
different committees. Should the collegial body thie
company comprise small number of members, the imet
assigned to the three committees may be performeitieo
collegial body itself, provided that it meets corsjion
requirements advocated for the committees and |that
adequate information is provided in this respest.stich
case provisions of this Code relating to the coreeg of
the collegial body (in particular with respect teeir role,
operation, and transparency) should apply, wheevaat,
to the collegial body as a whole.

S

—

4.8. The key objective of the committees is to éase| Yes Please refer to comment under Item 4.6.
efficiency of the activities of the collegial botly ensuring
that decisions are based on due consideration taielp
organize its work with a view to ensuring that trezisions
it takes are free of material conflicts of inter&sbmmittees
should exercise independent judgement and integityn
exercising its functions as well as present théegal body
with  recommendations concerning the decisions & |th
collegial body. Nevertheless the final decision lishee
adopted by the collegial body. The recommendation| o
creation of committees is not intended, in pringipto
constrict the competence of the collegial bodycoremove
the matters considered from the purview of the egpdl
body itself, which remains fully responsible foreth
decisions taken in its field of competence.

4.9. Committees established by the collegial bdayukd Yes In accordance with Resolution No1K-18 of 21 Aug2@8 of
normally be composed of at least three members. In the Securities Commission of the Republic of LithiagOn
companies with small number of members of the gale Requirements for Audit Committees’, the Audit Cortiee is
body, they could exceptionally be composed of two composed of two members.

members. Majority of the members of each committee
should be constituted from independent memberse

YThe Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Auddfficial Gazette 2008, No 82-53233) determines that an Audit
Committee shall be formed in each public interasity (including, but not limited to public compasi whose securities
are traded in the regulated market of the Repufllgthuania and/or any other member state ).
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collegial body. In cases when the company choosetn
set up a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of non-etiee
directors. Chairmanship and membership of the cdtees
should be decided with due regard to the needdorerthat
committee membership is refreshed and that undiamce
is not placed on particular individuals. Chairmapsind
membership of the committees should be decided duith
regard to the need to ensure that committee meimipess
refreshed and that undue reliance is not placgohaticular
individuals

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should
determined by the collegial body. Committees sha
perform their duties in line with authority delegdtto them
and inform the collegial body on their activitiesidal
performance on regular basis. Authority of evergnouttee
stipulating the role and rights and duties of tlenmittee
should be made public at least once a year (asopdtte

information disclosed by the company annually os |i

corporate governance structures and practices).p@oies
should also make public annually a statement bgtiexj
committees on their composition, number of meetiagd
attendance over the year, and their main activittasdit
committee should confirm that it is satisfied withe
independence of the audit process and describ8ybtie
actions it has taken to reach this conclusion.

bées
uld

=3

Please refer to comment under ltem 4.6.

4.11. In order to ensure independence and imp#ytaflthe
committees, members of the collegial body thanate
members of the committee should commonly havetd tag
participate in the meetings of the committee ohigvited
by the committee. A committee may invite or demand
participation in the meeting of particular officensexperts.
Chairman of each of the committees should have a
possibility to maintain direct communication withet
shareholders. Events when such are to be perfoshmadd
be specified in the regulations for committee atiés.

Yes

Please refer to comment under ltem 4.6.
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4.12. Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committéewdd
be the following:

« Identify and recommend, for the approval of tlolegial
body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The nautiom
committee should evaluate the balance of skillewkadge
and experience on the management body, prepa

description of the roles and capabilities requidssume g

particular office, and assess the time commitmepeeted.

No

Nomination committee can also consider candidates t

members of the collegial body delegated by theediwders
of the company;

e Assess on regular basis the structure, size, asitign
and performance of the supervisory and manage

bodies, and make recommendations to the collegidl k

regarding the means of achieving necessary changes;

e Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge

experience of individual directors and report ois tio the
collegial body;

« Properly consider issues related to successampig;

« Review the policy of the management bodies ftection
and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider prafsoby
other parties, including management and sharetsl
When dealing with issues related to executive trscor
members of the board (if a collegial body electgdtle
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisosyd)oand
senior management, chief executive officer of thmpgany
should be consulted by, and entitled to submit psafs to
the nomination committee.

nent

and

ler

e a

Please refer to comment under ltem 4.6.

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration commigkeuld
be the following:

« Make proposals, for the approval of the collediadly, on
the remuneration policy for members of managemedids

and executive directors. Such policy should addrbs

forms of compensation, including the fixed remutiera
performance-based remuneration schemes, pe

No

sion

arrangements, and termination payments. Propagsals
considering performance-based remuneration schemes

should be accompanied with recommendations on
related objectives and evaluation criteria, withview to
properly aligning the pay of executive director anémbers
of the management bodies with the long-term intere$
the shareholders and the objectives set by thegiallbody;
« Make proposals to the collegial body on the irdlial
remuneration for executive directors and member
management bodies in order their remunerations
consistent with company’s remuneration policy ate
evaluation of the performance of these personseroed.
In doing so, the committee should be properly imfed on
the total compensation obtained by executive direcand

the

of
are

—

members of the management bodies from the affiliate

companies;

« Ensure that remuneration of individual executi@ctors
or members of management body is proportionatehéo
remuneration of other executive directors or membar
management body and other staff members of the @oynp
« Periodically review the remuneration policy foreeutive
directors or members of management body, includirey
policy regarding share-based remuneration, and
implementation;

* Make proposals the collegial body on suitable forms

—

its

Please refer to comment under ltem 4.6.
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contracts for executive directors and members of
management bodies;

« Assist the collegial body in overseeing how tlhenpany
complies with applicable provisions regarding
remuneration-related information disclosure (in tisatar
the remuneration policy applied and individy
remuneration of directors);

« Make general recommendations to the executivecttirs
and members of the management bodies on the lexe
structure of remuneration for senior managemend¢fised
by the collegial body) with regard to the respeet]
information provided by the executive directors 4
members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and othereshased
incentives which may be granted to directors orenot
employees, the committee should:

« Consider general policy regarding the grantingttoé
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock optiand
make any related proposals to the collegial body;

¢ Examine the related information that is given the
company’s annual report and documents intendedtHer
use during the shareholders meeting;

« Make proposals to the collegial body regardirg ¢hoice
between granting options to subscribe shares antiga
options to purchase shares, specifying the reafangs
choice as well as the consequences that this chage

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributatdethe

competence of the remuneration committee, the cdt@eni

should at least address the chairman of the calldgidy
and/or chief executive officer of the company fbreit
opinion on the remuneration of other executive daes or

members of the management bodies.

4.13.4. The remuneration committee should reporthen
exercise of its functions to the shareholders amgiesent
at the annual general meeting for this purpose.

al
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4.14. Audit Committee. Yes

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee shooédthe
following:

« Observe the integrity of the financial informattiprovided
by the company, in particular by reviewing the velece

and consistency of the accounting methods usedhby t

company and its group (including the criteria fdre {
consolidation of the accounts of companies in tloeig);

« At least once a year review the systems of imecontrol
and risk management to ensure that the key riskdugive
of the risks in relation with compliance with exisf laws
and regulations) are properly identified, managed @
reflected in the information provided;

« Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit fuant among
other things, by making recommendations on thectete
appointment, reappointment and removal of the lofatie

internal audit department and on the budget of |the

department, and by monitoring the responsivenesthef
management to its findings and recommendationsul8h
there be no internal audit authority in the compahg need
for one should be reviewed at least annually;

« Make recommendations to the collegial body relatéth
selection, appointment, reappointment and remof¥ahe
external auditor (to be done by the general shidehs

o

meeting) and with the terms and conditions of his

engagement. The committee should investigate mns
that lead to a resignation of the audit companyawditor

and make recommendations on required actions if suc

situations;

¢ Monitor independence and impartiality of the entd
auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit comps
compliance with applicable guidance relating to thi@tion
of audit partners, the level of fees paid by thepany, and
similar issues. In order to prevent occurrence atemal
conflicts of interest, the committee, based on ahditor’s
disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations pajdthe
company to the auditor and network, should at iatles
monitor nature and extent of the non-audit servieis/ing
regard to the principals and guidelines establishetie 16

May 2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/590/EC,| the
committee should determine and apply a formal polic

establishing types of non-audit services that aa | (

excluded, (b) permissible only after review by the

committee, and (c) permissible without referral ttoe
committee;

* Review efficiency of the external audit processd a
responsiveness of management to recommendations imad
the external auditor's management letter.

4.14.2. All members of the committee should be ifirad
with complete information on particulars of accangt
financial and other operations of the company. Camyjs

management should inform the audit committee of |the
methods used to account for significant and unugual

transactions where the accounting treatment magplea to
different approaches. In such case a special ceraidn
should be given to company’s operations in offsluameters
and/or activities carried out through special psmweehicles|
(organizations) and justification of such operagion

4.14.3. The audit committee should decide whether

participation of the chairman of the collegial bodief
executive officer of the company, chief financifficer (or
superior employees in charge of finances, treasang
accounting), or internal and external auditors ime t
meetings of the committee is required (if requiredhen).

Pursuant to the Law on Audit and Resolution No1Kef@1
August 2008 of the Securities Commission of theUuRdép of
Lithuania ‘On Requirements for Audit Committeesi, 2009,
an Audit Committee has been formed at the CompKey.
functions of the Audit Committee: analysis of tleéevance of
the accounting methods used by the Company, asatyshe
internal control, internal audit and risk managetrgrstems,
monitoring the execution of its functions by extrmaudit,
monitoring the independence of the audit companwels as
other audit committee functions prescribed by aglie legal
acts of the Republic of Lithuania.
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The committee should be entitied, when needed, ¢etm

with any relevant person without executive direstand
members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should loeirsel with
not only effective working relationship with managent,
but also with free access to the collegial bodyr Hos
purpose the audit committee should act as the ipah
contact person for the internal and external auslito

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed lué
internal auditor's work program, and should be fsined
with internal audit's reports or periodic summaridhe
audit committee should also be informed of the w
program of the external auditor and should be fived
with report disclosing all relationships betweene
independent auditor and the company and its grdine.
committee should be timely furnished information aih
issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whether
company is following applicable provisions regaglithe
possibility for employees to report alleged sigrafit
irregularities in the company, by way of complairds
through anonymous submissions (normally to

independent member of the collegial body), and kh
ensure that there is a procedure established émoptionate
and independent investigation of these issues anmd
appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its/éies to
the collegial body at least once in every six mentit the
time the yearly and half-yearly statements are @pgt.

ork

an

4.15. Every year the collegial body should condtiet
assessment of its activities. The assessment sliazllede
evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work angaation
and ability to act as a group, evaluation of ea€hhe
collegial body member’'s and committee’s competezioe
work efficiency and assessment whether the colldmdy
has achieved its objectives. The collegial bodyushoat
least once a year, make public (as part of thenimdtion the
company annually discloses on its management gtes
and practices) respective information on its irdén
organization and working procedures, and specifyaty
material changes were made as a result of thesassat of
the collegial body of its own activities.

No

>

The assessment of the Company’s activities and fipso of
the Board of Directors’ activities is performed ke
shareholders of the Company in accordance witiptbeedure
prescribed by Law.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’scollegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and managementodies established in the company should ensurefiefent operation of these
bodies and decision-making and encourage active operation between the company’s bodies.
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5.1. The company’s supervisory and management bqdiées

(hereinafter in this Principle the concept ‘collEgbodies’
covers both the collegial bodies of supervision dhd
collegial bodies of management) should be chairgd
chairpersons of these bodies. The chairpersoncoflagial
body is responsible for proper convocation of tb#egial
body meetings. The chairperson should ensure

information about the meeting being convened arxd
agenda are communicated to all members of the bbuy.
chairperson of a collegial body should ensure gmyate

conducting of the meetings of the collegial bodyeT
chairperson should ensure order and working atneregh

during the meetin

that

The activities of the board of directors are retpdaby
the Regulations of operation of the board of doext
The meetings of the board of directors are cardet
under the guidance of the chairman of the boarg
directors. The CEO of the company and his assis
help to organize the activities of the board oédiors.

1 of
tant

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the comiga
collegial bodies should be carried out accordingthe
schedule approved in advance at certain intervalsme.

ny’es

Each company is free to decide how often to convene

meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recomded that
these meetings should be convened at such intewhish
would guarantee an interrupted resolution of theewesal

corporate governance issues. Meetings of the coyipan

supervisory board should be convened at least amae
quarter, and the company’s board should meet at teece
a month?

To secure the uninterrupted resolution of the disle
Company's governance issues, the meetings of
Board of Directors are convened at least once
quarter. Every year at the last meeting of the Badr
Directors, the Board of Directors adopts the tiralel¢
of meetings of the Board of Directors for the ngadr.

the
per

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notifadzbut
the meeting being convened in advance in orderltova]
sufficient time for proper preparation for the ieswon the|
agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful disicensand
adoption of appropriate decisions. Alongside witd hotice
about the meeting being convened, all the docum
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the meshiogld be
submitted to the members of the collegial body. @agendal

Yes

ents

of the meeting should not be changed or supplerdente

during the meeting, unless all members of the gi@lebody
are present or certain issues of great importancéhé
company require immediate resolution.

Regulations of operation of the Board of Direct
provide for that the members of the Board of Divext
receive information about the meeting being conder
the agenda of the meeting and all material reletar
the issues on the agenda no later than 10 workayg
prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors.

5.4. In order to co-ordinate operation of the comym
collegial bodies and ensure effective decision-mgk
process, chairpersons of the company’s collegididsoof
supervision and management should closely co-opdrat
co-coordinating dates of the meetings, their agenalad
resolving other issues of corporate governance. héssnof
the company’s board should be free to attend mg=tof
the company’s supervisory board, especially wheseigs
concerning removal of the board members, theiilitgtor

remuneration are discussed.

Not
i applicable

At the Company, there is no Supervisory Board

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholdes and shareholder rights

pIs

ne

g =

12 The frequency of meetings of the collegial bodgvined for in the recommendation must be appliethivee cases when both
additional collegial bodies are formed at the comypahe board and the supervisory board. In thetesely one additional collegial
body is formed in the company, the frequency ofriesetings may be as established for the supervisoayd, i.e. at least once in a

quarter.
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The corporate governance framework should ensure thequitable treatment of all shareholders, includig minority and foreign
shareholders. The corporate governance framework shuld protect the rights of the shareholders.

6.1. It is recommended that the company’s capltaukl | Yes

consist only of the shares that grant the sametsrigh
voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to tikir
holders.

The Company's authorized capital consists of ongirja

registered shares which grant to all the Company's

shareholdres the same rights.

6.2. It is recommended that investors should hacess to| Yes

the information concerning the rights attachedh® shares
of the new issue or those issued earlier in advyanee
before they purchase shares.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the compantyits| No
shareholders, such as transfer, investment, anlgglef the
company’s assets or any other type of encumbramoeld
be subject to approval of the general shareholders
meeting'® All shareholders should be furnished with equal
opportunity to familiarize with and participate ithe
decision-making process when significant corporssees,
including approval of transactions referred to ahoare
discussed.

The competence of the Company's General Meeting|and

Board of Directors is regulated by the Law p
Companies of the RL and the Company's bylaws
accordance with the Company's bylaws, decisiong
entering into important transactions are adoptedhiay
Board of Directors.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a geneyes

shareholders’ meeting should ensure equal opptigsarior
the shareholders to effectively participate at theetings
and should not prejudice the rights and interestshe
shareholders. The venue, date, and time of thelsblaters’
meeting should not hinder wide attendance of [the
shareholders.

n
In
on

Procedures for convening and conducting the General
Shareholder's Meeting are regulated by the Law|on
Companies of the RL and the Company's bylaws.

Shareholders are provided with an equal opportunit
participate at the meeting and to exercise theipgrty
and non-property rights.

<

13 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithugi@éficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutiomserning
the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or aitipmisof the long-terms assets accounting for mihv@n 1/20 of the company’s
authorised capital to the competence of the gesbakeholders’ meeting. However, transactionsdt@atmportant and material for the
company’s activity should be considered and appmtdwe the general shareholders’ meeting. The LawCompanies contains no
prohibition to this effect either. Yet, in order thtb encumber the company’s activity and escapeuareasonably frequent
consideration of transactions at the meetings, eones are free to establish their own criteria afterial transactions, which are
subject to the approval of the meeting. While dihing these criteria of material transactionanpanies may follow the criteria set
out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Aetig#l of the Law on Companies or derogate from timewew of the specific nature of
their operation and their attempt to ensure uniapged, efficient functioning of the company.
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6.5. If is possible, in order to ensure sharehaldiring
abroad the right to access to the information, st

recommended that documents on the course of theralgn
shareholders’ meeting should be placed on the gybli

accessible website of the company not only in lathian
language, but in English and /or other foreign leaggs in
advance. It is recommended that the minutes ofyémeral
shareholders’ meeting after signing them and/orptetb
resolutions should be also placed on the publictessible

website of the company. Seeking to ensure the rajht

foreigners to familiarize with the information, wiever

feasible, documents referred to in this recommeondt

should be published in Lithuanian, English and/tieo
foreign languages. Documents referred to in
recommendation may be published on the publ
accessible website of the company to the extent
publishing of these documents is not detrimentaltite
company or the company’s commercial secrets are
revealed.

Yes

his
cly
tha

not

The right of shareholders living abroad to acces$ t

information is ensured on the Company's web
www.dujos.It and through the informational systefn
the NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange, i
Lithuanian and English, by publishing in advance
date and venue of the General Meeting, the recate

Site
o}
n
th
d

of the meeting, the agenda of the meeting and draft

resolutions. Upon the General Meeting, the resohst
adopted are published in the same manner.

6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the dppiy
to vote in the general shareholders’ meeting isq@eand in
absentia. Shareholders should not be prevented ¥atimg
in writing in advance by completing the generalingt
ballot.

Yes

The Company's shareholders may exercise their ty
participate in the General Meeting both in persod ia

absentia provided that the proxy has the due pafe

attorney or provided that the proxy is a party he
agreement on the cession of the voting right.
Company also provides its shareholders with thiet tigy
vote in writing in advance.

nt

-

The

6.7. With a view to increasing the shareholde
opportunities to participate effectively at sharleecs’
meetings, the companies are recommended to expndf
modern technologies by allowing the shareholders
participate and vote in general meetings via ebeatr
means of communication. In such cases security|
transmitted information and a possibility to idéntithe
identity of the participating and voting person wslido be
guaranteed. Moreover, companies could furnish
shareholders, especially shareholders living ahraitt the
opportunity to watch shareholder meetings by meain
modern technologies.

r&lot
applicable

U]

to

of

ts

Given the Company’s shareholders’ structure and vidlel
Regulations for Organizing the General Meetings
Shareholders, there is no need to implement anytiawial
expensive IT systems.

of

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encourageembers of the corporate bodies to avoid conflictsf interest and assure
transparent and effective mechanism of disclosuref @onflicts of interest regarding members of the aporate bodies.
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7.1. Any member of the company’s supervisory 3
management body should avoid a situation, in whisther
personal interests are in conflict or may be inflactnwith
the company’s interests. In case such a situaitboctur, a
member of the company’s supervisory and manage
body should, within reasonable time, inform othenmbers
of the same collegial body or the company’s bodt tias
elected him/her, or to the company’s shareholdbsiaa
situation of a conflict of interest, indicate thature of the
conflict and value, where possible.

ndes

nent

7.2. Any member of the company’s supervisory 3
management body may not mix the company’s asdets|
use of which has not been mutually agreed uponh

his/her personal assets or use them or the infmathich

he/she learns by virtue of his/her position as anber of a
corporate body for his/her personal benefit orthar benefit
of any third person without a prior agreement &f gieneral
shareholders’ meeting or any other corporate b
authorized by the meeting.

ndes
t

ody

7.3. Any member of the company's supervisory &
management body may conclude a transaction with
company, a member of a corporate body of whichheeis.
Such a transaction (except insignificant ones dau¢héir
low value or concluded when carrying out routi
operations in the company under usual conditions3trbe
immediately reported in writing or orally, by redang this
in the minutes of the meeting, to other memberthefsame|
corporate body or to the corporate body that hasted
him/her or to the company’s shareholders. Transast
specified in this recommendation are also subjexrt
recommendation 4.

andes
the

The members of the Board of Directors follow t
provisions indicated in this recommendation. T
Company is not aware of events when the pers
interests of the members of the Board of Direct
would be in conflict with the Company's interests
Prior to starting act as the member of the Boarg
Directors, each member of the Board of Direct]
entered in the confidentiality agreement.

he
he

onal
ors

of
ors

7.4. Any member of the company’s supervisory 3
management body should abstain from voting wi
decisions concerning transactions or other isstipgrgonal
or business interest are voted on.

ndes
nen

The regulations of operation of the Board of Dicest
provide for that the member of the Board of Direstor
his proxy should abstain from voting when decisi
concerning his activity in the Board of Directonshis
responsibility is voted at the meeting of the Boafd
Directors.

DNS

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revsion and disclosure of directors’ remuneration estblished in the company
should prevent potential conflicts of interest andabuse in determining remuneration of directors, inaddition it should ensure
publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneation policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement ef
company’s remuneration policy (hereinafter 1t
remuneration statement) which should be clear asilye
understandable. This remuneration statement shbelq
published as a part of the company’s annual statemme
well as posted on the company’s website.

tho
he

The Company's remuneration policy is not publishsg
this is not provided for by the laws of the Repaluif
Lithuania, moreover, it is the Company's internada
confidential document. The Company's remunerat
policy is formed with due regard for the results
analysis of the situation in the labour market lo¢
country.

ion
of
t
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8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly focus
directors’ remuneration policy for the followingareand, if

appropriate, the subsequent years. The statementldsh

contain a summary of the implementation of
remuneration policy in the previous financial yeSpecial
attention should be given to any significant change
company’s remuneration policy as compared to tleeipus
financial year.

Please refer to comment under Item 8.1.

8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise iechhé
following information:

« Explanation of the relative importance of theiable and
non-variable components of directors’ remuneration;

« Sufficient information on performance criteriattentitles
directors to share options, shares or variable compts of
remuneration;

¢ An explanation how the choice of performanceeciit
contributes to the long-term interests of the campa

¢ An explanation of the methods, applied in order
determine whether performance criteria have belilidd;

« Sufficient information on deferment periods witgard to
variable components of remuneration;

No

—

« Sufficient information on the linkage between the

remuneration and performance;

* The main parameters and rationale for any anbaals
scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

« Sufficient information on the policy regardingrtenation
payments;

« Sufficient information with regard to vesting ets for
share-based remuneration, as referred to in pdiBt & this
Codée

« Sufficient information on the policy regardingeetion of
shares after vesting, as referred to in point 8fithis Cod¢
« Sufficient information on the composition of pegoups

of companies the remuneration policy of which hagrb

examined in relation to the establishment of
remuneration policy of the company concerned;

« A description of the main characteristics of deppentary
pension or early retirement schemes for directors;

« Remuneration statement should not include comialbrc,

sensitive informatiol

the

Please refer to comment under Iltem 8.1.

8.4. Remuneration statement should also summanmze
explain company’s policy regarding the terms of
contracts executed with executive directors and baesof

the management bodies. It should include, intem, &l

information on the duration of contracts with exie

&No

directors and members of the management bodies, the

applicable notice periods and details of provisidos
termination payments linked to early terminationdemn
contracts for executive directors and members of
management bodies.

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.1.
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8.5. Remuneration statement should also contaaildet
information on the entire amount of remuneratiog|usive
of other benefits, that was paid to individual dicgs over
the relevant financial year. This document shoisidat
least the information set out in items 8.5.1 ta8f6r each
person who has served as a director of the comgiaaryy
time during the relevant financial year.

8.5.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments
related information should be disclosed:

« The total amount of remuneration paid or dué t
director for services performed during the releviarancial
year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendance figes by
the annual general shareholders meeting;

« The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

* The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharand/or
bonus payments and the reasons why such bonus ptsym
and/or profit sharing were granted;

« If permissible by the law, any significant addital
remuneration paid to directors for special servingside
the scope of the usual functions of a director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each formecetive
director or member of the management body as &t r&su
his resignation from the office during the previdusncial
year,;

« Total estimated value of non-cash benefits careid as
remuneration, other than the items covered in tiove
points.

8.5.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acqhaees
options and/or all other share-incentive schenhes, t
following information should be disclosed:

« The number of share options offered or sharestegdaby
the company during the relevant financial year it
conditions of application;

« The number of shares options exercised duringelesant
financial year and, for each of them, the numbeshaires
involved and the exercise price or the value ofitierest in
the share incentive scheme at the end of the fiabyear;

« The number of share options unexercised at tHeoéthe
financial year; their exercise price, the exerdate and the
main conditions for the exercise of the rights;

« All changes in the terms and conditions of erghare
options occurring during the financial year.

8.5.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

« When the pension scheme is a defined-benefitnsehe
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits unddrstheme
during the relevant financial year;

* When the pension scheme is defined-contributabrese,
detailed information on contributions paid or paedhy the
company in respect of that director during thevaié
financial year.

8.5.4. The statement should also state amountsitbat
company or any subsidiary company or entity inctLishe
the consolidated annual financial report of the pany has
paid to each person who has served as a directoein
company at any time during the relevant financednjin
the form of loans, advance payments or guarantees,

D

including the amount outstanding and the interatst. r

No

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.1.
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8.6. Where the remuneration policy includes vasa
components of remuneration, companies should setsli
on the variable component(s). The non-variable corept
of remuneration should be sufficient to allow tlempany

to withhold variable components of remuneration mhe

performance criteria are not met.

bNot
applicable

At present, the Company’s remuneration proceduses dwt

provide for the payment of any variable remunerat

components.

8.7. Award of variable components of remuneratibautd
be subject to predetermined and measurable perfmen
criteria.

Not
aapplicable

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

8.8. Where a variable component of remuneration is
awarded, a major part of the variable componentlishioe
deferred for a minimum period of time. The partha
variable component subject to deferment should be
determined in relation to the relative weight of trariable
component compared to the non-variable component of
remuneration.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

8.9. Contractual arrangements with executive oragany
directors should include provisions that permit tbenpany
to reclaim variable components of remuneration thete
awarded on the basis of data which subsequentlyefrto
be manifestly misstated.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

io

8.10. Termination payments should not exceed afixe
amount or fixed number of years of annual remur@rat
which should, in general, not be higher than twargef the
non-variable component of remuneration or the ejait
thereof.

Yes

8.11. Termination payments should not be paid #
termination is due to inadequate performance

thres

8.12. The information on preparatory and decisiakimg
processes, during which a policy of remuneration of
directors is being established, should also bdatisd.
Information should include data, if applicable,aurthorities
and composition of the remuneration committee, rsaamel
surnames of external consultants whose services laen
used in determination of the remuneration policyvell as
the role of shareholders’ annual general meeting.

No

Please refer to comments under Items 4.6 and 8.1.

8.13. Shares should not vest for at least threesyafter
their award.

Not
applicable

The Company does not apply any schemes of remimeiiat
the Company'’s shares.

8.14. Share options or any other right to acquieges or to
be remunerated on the basis of share price movement
should not be exercisable for at least three yaides their
award. Vesting of shares and the right to exeslisge
options or any other right to acquire shares dreto
remunerated on the basis of share price movensis)d
be subject to predetermined and measurable perfmena
criteria.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under Item 8.13
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8.15. After vesting, directors should retain a nemiif
shares, until the end of their mandate, subjettliemeed to
finance any costs related to acquisition of theeshalhe
number of shares to be retained should be fixed, fo
example, twice the value of total annual remunenatihe
non-variable plus the variable components).

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under Item 8.13.

8.16. Remuneration of non-executive or supervisory
directors should not include share options.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under Item 8.13.

8.17. Shareholders, in particular institutionalrshalders,
should be encouraged to attend general meetingewhe
appropriate and make considered use of their votes
regarding directors’ remuneration.

No

In accordance with the Bylaws of the Company, tinectbrs’
remuneration amount setting issues are resolveteéoBoard
of Directors.

8.18. Without prejudice to the role and organizatas the
relevant bodies responsible for setting directg
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any of
significant change in remuneration policy should
included into the agenda of the shareholders’ dngerzeral
meeting. Remuneration statement should be put dtiny
in shareholders’ annual general meeting. The vaig be
either mandatory or advisory.

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.17.

8.19. Schemes anticipating remuneration of dirsdtor
shares, share options or any other right to puechhares or
be remunerated on the basis of share price movement
should be subject to the prior approval of shaméra!
annual general meeting by way of a resolution gaodheir
adoption. The approval of scheme should be relatddthe
scheme itself and not to the grant of such shasedba
benefits under that scheme to individual directik.
significant changes in scheme provisions shoulad laés
subject to shareholders’ approval prior to thewgwn; the
approval decision should be made in shareholdersial
general meeting. In such case shareholders sheuld b
notified on all terms of suggested changes andget
explanation on the impact of the suggested cha

8.20. The following issues should be subject taayg by
the shareholders’ annual general meeting:

« Grant of share-based schemes, including sharenspto
directors;

» Determination of maximum number of shares andhmai
conditions of share granting;

« The term within which options can be exercised;

« The conditions for any subsequent change in xleecise
of the options, if permissible by law;

« All other long-term incentive schemes for whidtedtors
are eligible and which are not available to othmplyees
of the company under similar terms. Annual general
meeting should also set the deadline within whiehliody
responsible for remuneration of directors may award
compensations listed in this article to individdakctors.

No

Not
applicable

At present, the Company does not have such remntiore
schemes.

The said issues were not discussed at the Geneting of
Shareholders, since such discussion is not proviatealy the
Bylaws of the Company.
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8.21. Should national law or company’s Articles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangermeder
which any rights are granted to subscribe to shatragprice
lower than the market value of the share prevaiinghe
day of the price determination, or the averagdefrharket
values over a number of days preceding the date Wiee
exercise price is determined, should also be sttyebe
shareholders’ approval.

Not
applicable

8.22. Provisions of Articles 8.19 and 8.20 shouwddbre
applicable to schemes allowing for participatiomien
similar conditions to company’s employees or empésyof
any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible
participate in the scheme and which has been apgriov
the shareholders’ annual general meeting.

Not
applicable

8.23. Prior to the annual general meeting thattisnded to
consider decision stipulated in Article 8.19, thargholders|
must be provided an opportunity to familiarize wihaft

resolution and project-related notice (the docusehiould
be posted on the company’s website). The noticeildh
contain the full text of the share-based remunana
schemes or a description of their key terms, as agefull

names of the participants in the schemes. Notioaldtelso
specify the relationship of the schemes and theratlv
remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resmotmust
have a clear reference to the scheme itself dre@timmary|
of its key terms. Shareholders must also be predentth

information on how the company intends to providethe
shares required to meet its obligations under iteer
schemes. It should be clearly stated whether tmepaay
intends to buy shares in the market, hold the sharg
reserve or issue new ones. There should also benmary
on scheme-related expenses the company will sdtferto
the anticipated application of the scheme. All infation

given in this article must be posted on the comjzar
website.

Not
applicable

ti

1%

ny

The said issues were not discussed at the Gemdeakting of
Shareholders, it is not provided for by the Bylawofsthe
Company.

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

Please refer to comment under Item 8.19.

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporategovernance

The corporate governance framework should recognizthe rights of stakeholders as established by lawnd encourage active co-
operation between companies and stakeholders in @tng the company value, jobs and financial sustaability. For the purposes of
this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includesnvestors, employees, creditors, suppliers, clientlocal community and other

persons having certain interest in the company corecned.

9.1. The corporate governance framework shouldrashat
the rights of stakeholders that are protected hy tae
respected.

Yes

The compliance with this recommendation is ensumgdhe
meticulous supervision and control of the Compaihyisiness
activities by the state regulatory authorities #melassociated.
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9.2. The corporate governance framework shouldterea
conditions for the stakeholders to participate anporate
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Exasnple
mechanisms of stakeholder participation in cormorat
governance include: employee participation in aibopof
certain key decisions for the company; consultihg |t
employees on corporate governance and other importa
issues; employee participation in the company'sresha
capital; creditor involvement in governance in toatext of
the company’s insolvency, etc.

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corgorat
governance process, they should have access teamele
information

consumer organizations. The publicity of the Conypan
business activities creates conditions for the eltalder
participation in the corporate governance in acaocg with
the procedure established by Law and the Compa@wylaws
and Internal Regulations. The governing bodies albrthe
employees on the issues of corporate governanceotet
important issues; the participation of employees tire
Company’s share capital is not limited.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure #t timely and accurate disclosure is made on all nterial information
regarding the company, including the financial sitation, performance and governance of the company.
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10.1. The company should disclose information on:

« The financial and operating results of the compan

« Company objectives;

« Persons holding by the right of ownership or amtcol of

a block of shares in the company;

« Members of the company’s supervisory and manage
bodies, chief executive officer of the company ahdir

remuneration;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

« Transactions between the company and connectedrg
as well as transactions concluded outside the eonfrshe
company’s regular operations;

¢ Material issues regarding employees and o
stakeholders;

» Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommeénda
while the companies are encouraged not to limit$elves
to disclosure of the information specified in thss.

10.2. It is recommended to the company, which ésgarent
of other companies, that consolidated results efwinole
group to which the company belongs should be distiq
when information specified in item 1 of Recommeratat
10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on thefgssional
background, qualifications of the members of suigsery
and management bodies, chief executive officer haf
company should be disclosed as well as potentiaflicts
of interest that may have an effect on their deosiwhen
information specified in item 4 of Recommendatiod.11
about the members of the company’s supervisory
management bodies is under disclosure. It is
recommended that information about the amount
remuneration received from the company and othasnme
should be disclosed with regard to members of
company’s supervisory and management bodies aref
executive officer as per Principle VIII.

10.4. It is recommended that information about finks
between the company and its stakeholders, inclu
employees, creditors, suppliers, local communisywell as
the company’s policy with regard to human resour
employee participation schemes in the company'ses
capital, etc. should be disclosed when informasipacified
in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclesur

Yes

her

t

—

and
Also
of

the
chi

ding

es
ha

The information indicated in the recommendation

published on the Company's website www.dujos.

through the informational system of the NASDA
OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange and press releases.

t,
Q

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a waat
neither shareholders nor investors are discriméhatéth

regard to the manner or scope of access to infawmal
Information should be disclosed to all simultandpuk is

recommended that notices about material eventsldhizu
announced before or after a trading session orViiméus

Stock Exchange, so that all the company’s sharehsland
investors should have equal access to the infoomatnd
make informed investing decisions.

Yes

it

The Company discloses information through
information disclosure system applied by the NASD

OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange, in Lithuanian and

English, in this way simultaneously providing
stakeholders. With access to information. Inforomat
that may affect the price of securities issued
Company is treated as confidential therefore keigt as
a secret information and is not disclosed unless
published through the informational system in
manner prescribed by laws.

the
AQ

all
i
by

the
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10.6. Channels for disseminating information sho
provide for fair, timely and cost-efficient or inagses
provided by the legal acts free of charge accesslevant
information by users. It is recommended that infation
technologies should be employed for wider dissetitinaof
information, for instance, by placing the inforneetion the
company’s website. It is recommended that inforomat
should be published and placed on the company’'ssitee
not only in Lithuanian, but also in English, andhemever
possible and necessary, in other languages as well.

uNes

The Company simultaneously and in the same s
discloses all the information designated to shddsme
and investors in Lithuanian and English through

informational system of the NASDAQ OMX Vilniu
Stock Exchange, and all information is publishedton
Company’s website www.dujos.It, in this way ensgr
unbiased and inexpensive prompt access to infoomat

tope

the

[

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s anrednts

and other periodical accounts prepared by the coypa

should be placed on the company's website. It
recommended that the company should annod
information about material events and changes énpifice
of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchange en
company’s website too.

Yes

is
nce

th

The Company follows this recommendation 4
information has been placed on the Company’s wel

www.dujos.lt

nd
DSit

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s aux

The mechanism of the selection of the company’staushould ensure independence of the firm of wdi conclusion and opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s financiglars and
interim reports should be conducted by an indepeinfilen

of auditors in order to provide an external andeotiye
opinion on the company’s financial statements

Yes

An independent Company of auditors conducts thé& afithe

Company’s consolidated and parent Company’s firzrn
statements and assesses the conformity of the Afteport

with the financial statements.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s supenyi
board and, where it is not set up, the company'ard
should propose a candidate firm of auditors to ghreral
shareholders’ meeting.

5 Yes
D

A candidate firm of auditors is proposed to the eyah
shareholders’ meeting by the Board of Directorgnigiknto
account the recommendation by the Audit Committee.

11.3. It is recommended that the company shouldatie to
its shareholders the level of fees paid to the fifrauditors
for non-audit services rendered to the company.s
information should be also known to the compan
supervisory board and, where it is not formed,
company’s board upon their consideration which fiofmn
auditors to propose for the general shareholdeegtimg.

Yes

Ihi
y's
the

The audit Company receives from the Company renatioer
for consultations on tax and business issues whichnot
contradict the independence requirements as stt iy the
Law on Audit of the Republic of Lithuania and thermative
acts of the Securities Commission of the Republic
Lithuania. On an annual basis the audit Companifiemthe
Audit Committee on any non-audit services renddmedhe
Company.
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